
1 of 3 
 

NOTICE OF REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 
 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, FORT BEND 
COUNTY, TEXAS, WILL MEET IN REGULAR SESSION OPEN TO THE PUBLIC AS FOLLOWS: 

 
DATE:   Tuesday, April 15, 2014 

 
TIME:   7:00 p.m. 

 
PLACE:  Rosenberg City Hall 

City Hall Council Chamber 
2110 4th Street 
Rosenberg, Texas  77471 

  
PURPOSE:  Regular City Council Meeting, agenda as follows: 
  
The City Council reserves the right to adjourn into Executive Session at any time during the course of this meeting to 
discuss any of the matters listed below, as authorized by Title 5, Chapter 551, of the Texas Government Code. 
 

Call to order:  City Hall Council Chamber 
 
Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance. (Pastor Jeremy Steiner, The Church, Rosenberg) 
 
Presentation of Proclamation Proclaiming April 2014 as Sexual Assault Awareness and Prevention Month in the City of 
Rosenberg. (Vincent M. Morales, Jr., Mayor) 
 
GENERAL COMMENTS FROM THE AUDIENCE. 
Citizens who desire to address the City Council with comments of a general nature will be received at this time.  Each 
speaker is limited to three (3) minutes.  In accordance with the Texas Open Meetings Act, the City Council is restricted 
from discussing or taking action on items not listed on the agenda.  It is our policy to have all speakers identify 
themselves by providing their name and residential address when making comments. 
 
COMMENTS FROM THE AUDIENCE FOR CONSENT AND REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS. 
Citizens who desire to address the City Council with regard to matters on the Consent Agenda or Regular Agenda will 
be received at the time the item is considered.  Each speaker is limited to three (3) minutes.  Comments or discussion by 
the City Council Members will only be made at the time the agenda item is scheduled for consideration.  It is our policy 
to have all speakers identify themselves by providing their name and residential address when making comments. 
 

CONSENT AGENDA 
 

1. Review of Consent Agenda. 
All Consent Agenda items listed are considered to be routine by the City Council and may be enacted by one 
(1) motion.  There will be no separate discussion of Consent Agenda items unless a City Council Member has 
requested that the item be discussed, in which case the item will be removed from the Consent Agenda and 
considered in its normal sequence on the Regular Agenda. 
 

 A. Consideration of and action on Workshop Meeting Minutes for March 25, 2014, and Regular Meeting 
Minutes for April 01, 2014. (Cernosek) 
 

 B. Consideration of and action on authorization to sell the proposed list of surplus property items to be 
included in the on-line auction. (Cernosek) 
 

 C. Consideration of and action on Ordinance No. 2014-16, an Ordinance granting consent to the Fort 
Bend County Municipal Utility District No. 158 for the sale and issuance of Unlimited Tax Bonds, Series 
2014, in an amount not to exceed $1,650,000. (Kalkomey) 
 

 D. Consideration of and action on the Final Plat of River Run at the Brazos Section Three-B, being a 
subdivision of 8.4897 acres out of the Wm. Lusk Survey, A-276, in Fort Bend County, Texas (Fort Bend 
County Municipal Utility District No. 158); 36 lots, 3 blocks, 0 reserves. (Tanner) 
 

REGULAR AGENDA 
 

2. Hear and discuss a presentation regarding a proposed Eagle Scout Project to place restored park benches in 
Brazos Park, and take action as necessary.  (McCarthy) 
 

3. Hear and discuss a presentation regarding a proposed Eagle Scout Project to create eight (8) Bluebird nesting 
boxes and install interpretive signage, and take action as necessary.  (McCarthy) 
 



2 of 3 
 

[EXECUTION PAGE TO FOLLOW]  

4. Hold public hearing on proposed re-adoption of the City’s Drought Contingency Plan. (Maresh) 
 

5. Consideration of and action on Ordinance No. 2014-15, an Ordinance re-adopting and continuing without 
change the City’s Drought Contingency Regulations as set forth in Article II of Chapter 10 of the Code of 
Ordinances; providing rules and regulations for initiation and termination of drought contingency plans within 
the City; providing for response stages and restrictions on certain water uses during drought conditions; 
providing for enforcement of such restrictions; providing for procedures for granting of variances; providing a 
penalty in an amount of not more than $500 for  violation of any provision hereof; repealing all ordinances or 
parts of ordinances inconsistent or in conflict herewith; and providing for severability. (Maresh) 
 

6. Consideration of and action on Ordinance No. 2014-17, an Ordinance amending the Code of Ordinances by 
deleting Article III of Chapter 10 thereof and by substituting therefor a new Article III of Chapter 10 thereof, 
adopting a Water Conservation Plan; providing a penalty in an amount not to exceed $2000 for violation of 
any provision hereof; and providing for severability. (Maresh) 
 

7. Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-1778, a Resolution awarding Bid No. 2014-07 for construction 
of the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Project related to construction services for the North Side 
Sanitary Sewer Improvements – Phase IX; and, providing authorization for the City Manager to negotiate and 
execute, for and on behalf of the City, appropriate documents and/or agreements regarding same. (Maresh) 
 

8. Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-1779, a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute, 
for and on behalf of the City, an amended Administrative Services Agreement by and between the City and 
the West Fort Bend Management District for Plan Review and Inspection Services. (Tanner) 
 

9. Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-1780, a Resolution establishing guidelines for the installation 
and maintenance of ornamental street lights.  (Tanner) 
 

10. Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-1781, a Resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute, for and 
on behalf of the City, a Special Warranty Deed regarding certain real property associated with the Dry Creek 
Drainage Improvements Project. (Kalkomey) 
 

11. Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-1782, a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute, 
for and on behalf of the City, a Texas Department of Transportation Permission for Right-of-Entry for 
Environmental Surveys, Right-of-Entry Agreement for Archeological Evaluation, and Transfer of Ownership 
Archeological Artifacts from Fort Bend County, Texas, associated with the State Highway 36 Improvements 
between US 59 and FM 2218. (Kalkomey) 
 

12. Review and discuss Rosenberg Civic Center usage, and take action as necessary. (Bolf) 
 

13. Consider motion to adjourn for Executive Session. 
 

14. Hold Executive Session to deliberate the employment, evaluation and duties of Police Chief as authorized by 
Section 551.074 of the Texas Government Code. 
 

15. Adjourn Executive Session, reconvene into Regular Session, and take action as necessary as a result of 
Executive Session. 
 

16. Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-1776, a Resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute, for and 
on behalf of the City, an Employment Agreement by and between the City and Dallis Warren to serve as 
Police Chief. (Morales) 
 

17. Announcements. 

18. Adjournment. 
 



3 of 3 
 

 
 

DATED AND POSTED this the ___________ day of ____________________ 2014, at _______________m.,  
 
 
by ____________________________________. 

 
 
 

____________________________________________ 
Attest:       

     Christine Krahn, Acting City Secretary  
 
 
 

____________________________________________ 
Approved for Posting:   
Robert Gracia, City Manager 

 
 
 

____________________________________________ 
Approved:   
Vincent M. Morales, Jr., Mayor 

 
Reasonable accommodation for the disabled attending this meeting will be available; persons with disabilities in need 
of special assistance at the meeting should contact the City Secretary at (832) 595-3340.   
 



CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 

April 15, 2014 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

2 Presentation Regarding a Proposed Eagle Scout Project for Brazos Park 
– Park Bench Restoration 

ITEM/MOTION 
 

Hear and discuss a presentation regarding a proposed Eagle Scout Project to place restored park 
benches in Brazos Park, and take action as necessary. 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[   ] One-time 
[   ] Recurring 
[X] N/A 

Budgeted: 

[  ] Yes  [   ] No  [X] N/A 

Source of Funds: N/A 

 

[   ] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[X] District 4 
[   ] City-wide 
[   ] N/A 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  MUD #:  N/A 
 

1. Presentation – Proposed Eagle Scout Project – Park Bench Restoration 
2. Parks and Recreation Board Meeting Draft Minute Excerpt – 03-27-14 

 
APPROVALS 
Submitted by:   

 
 
Darren McCarthy  
Parks and Recreation Director 

Reviewed by: 
   
[   ] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services   
[   ] Asst. City Manager for Public Services     
[   ] City Attorney 
[   ] City Engineer 
[X] Exec. Dir. of Support Services  

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council:   
 
 
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

On March 27, 2014, Jerrod Schulze of Troop 1000 presented a proposed Eagle Scout Project (Project) to 
be placed in Brazos Park to the Parks and Recreation Board (Board).  After reviewing his presentation 
regarding the proposal to restore park benches, the Board unanimously recommended the Project plan for 
approval as presented. 
 
Staff recommends approval of the proposed Eagle Scout Project at Brazos Park based upon Jerrod 
Schulze’s presentation and the recommendation of the Parks and Recreation Board. 
 
 



Brazos Park Bench ProjectBrazos Park Bench Project
ProposalProposalProposalProposal

Eagle Scout project for Jerrod Schulze Eagle Scout project for Jerrod Schulze 
Troop 1000Troop 1000

“We do our best”“We do our best”



��



P oposalP oposalProposalProposal

�� Project is based around placing bench Project is based around placing bench 
around and near the disk golf course and around and near the disk golf course and gg
track area.track area.



P poseP posePurposePurpose

�� The purpose of this project is for people to The purpose of this project is for people to 
be able to relax after playing a game of be able to relax after playing a game of p y g gp y g g
disk golf and after walking around the disk golf and after walking around the 
track.track.



O e ieO e ieOverviewOverview

�� The benches old wood and nuts and bolts will all The benches old wood and nuts and bolts will all 
be taken offbe taken off

�� The benches will then be transported to gulfThe benches will then be transported to gulf�� The benches will then be transported to gulfThe benches will then be transported to gulf
coastal butane to be sand blasted coastal butane to be sand blasted 

�� After that the frames will be painted as well as After that the frames will be painted as well as 
h d f h d b kh d f h d b kthe wood for the seats and seat backsthe wood for the seats and seat backs

�� They will then be placed in the designated areas They will then be placed in the designated areas 
around the park/track and disk golf areaaround the park/track and disk golf areaaround the park/track and disk golf areaaround the park/track and disk golf area

�� The cost for this project along with materials will The cost for this project along with materials will 
come out to around $400come out to around $400



DRAFT 

PAGE 1 of 1  PARKS & RECREATION BOARD MEETING MINUTES  MARCH 27, 2014. 
 

 

 CITY OF ROSENBERG 

PARKS AND RECREATION BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

*** DRAFT *** 
 
On this the 27

th
 day of March 2014, the Parks and Recreation Board of the City of Rosenberg, Fort Bend 

County, Texas, met in a Regular Session at Rosenberg Civic Center located at 3825 Hwy. 36 South, 
Rosenberg, Texas. 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT  
Teresa Bailey 
Stanley Kucherka 
Bertha Nell Kelm 
Laurie Cook 
Rudy Guerrero 
Ray Kueck 
Eric Ramirez 
George Zepeda 
 

Parks and Recreation Board Chairman  
Parks and Recreation Board Vice Chairman  
Parks and Recreation Board Secretary  
Parks and Recreation Board Member 
Parks and Recreation Board Member 
Parks and Recreation Board Member 
Parks and Recreation Board Member 
Parks and Recreation Board Member 
 

MEMBERS ABSENT  
Melissa Dixon 
Rufus Guebara 
Amanda Bolf 
 

Parks and Recreation Board Member 
Parks and Recreation Board Member  
Council Liaison  

STAFF PRESENT  
Linda Cernosek 
Jeff Trinker 
Darren McCarthy 
Lydia Acosta 
 

City Secretary 
Executive Director of Support Services 
Parks and Recreation Director  
Recreation Programs Coordinator 

GUESTS PRESENT  
Jerrod Schulze 
Treeank Patnaik 

Eagle Scout Candidate, Troop 1000 
Eagle Scout Candidate, Troop 1000 

 
AGENDA 

 
 
CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON PROPOSED EAGLE SCOUT PROJECT BY JERROD SCHULZE OF 
TROOP 1000 IN BRAZOS PARK.   
 
Key Discussion:  Darren McCarthy, Parks and Recreation Director, introduced Eagle Scout candidate Jerrod 
Schulze of Troop 1000 to the Board. Jerrod explained to the Members that he would like refurbish eight park 
benches and then install them in Brazos Park around the walking trail and new disc golf course. Jerrod 
explained the work that would need to be done and noted the proposed budget for the project would be 
approximately $400, which he hoped to raise through friends and family. He added that Coastal Butane agreed 
to volunteer their services to sandblast the existing bench frames. Ray Kueck asked what the new benches 
would be made of, and Jerrod indicated that he would use wooden planks and replace the rusted screws and 
bolts with new ones. Darren said that the benches to be refurbished are ones that the Parks Department has 
pulled from various parks around the City because of their poor condition.  
 
ACTION:  Laurie Cook made a motion, seconded by Bertha Nell Kelm, to approve the proposed Eagle Scout 
project in Brazos Park. The motion passed by a unanimous vote of those present.   
 

reneel
Rectangle



CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 

April 15, 2014 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

3 Presentation Regarding a Proposed Eagle Scout Project for Seabourne 
Creek Nature Park – Bluebird Conservation Project 

ITEM/MOTION 
 

Hear and discuss a presentation regarding a proposed Eagle Scout Project to create eight (8) Bluebird 
nesting boxes and install interpretive signage, and take action as necessary. 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[   ] One-time 
[   ] Recurring 
[X] N/A 

Budgeted: 

[  ] Yes  [   ] No  [X] N/A 

Source of Funds: N/A 

 

[   ] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[X] District 4 
[   ] City-wide 
[   ] N/A 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  MUD #:  N/A 
 

1. Presentation – Proposed Eagle Scout Project – Bluebird Conservation 
2. Parks and Recreation Board Meeting Draft Minute Excerpt – 03-27-14 

 
APPROVALS 
Submitted by:   

Darren McCarthy  
Parks and Recreation 
Director 

Reviewed by:   
 
[   ] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services 
[   ] Asst. City Manager for Public Services   
[   ] City Attorney     
[   ] City Engineer 
[X] Exec. Dir. of Support Services  

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council:   
 
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

On March 27, 2014, Treeank Patnaik of Troop 1000 presented a proposed Eagle Scout Project (Project) to 
build and install eight (8) Bluebird nesting boxes with an interpretative trail sign to be placed in Seabourne 
Creek Nature Park to the Parks and Recreation Board (Board).  After reviewing his presentation regarding 
Bluebird conservation in Seabourne Creek Nature Park, the Board unanimously recommended the Project 
plan for approval as presented. 
 
Staff recommends approval of the proposed Eagle Scout Project at Seabourne Creek Nature Park based 
upon Treeank Patnaik’s presentation and the recommendation of the Parks and Recreation Board. 
 
 



Seabou
Bl ebirdBluebird

Pr

rne Creek Park
d Conservation d Conservation 
roject Proposalj p

Treeank Patnaik

Eagle Project

Troop 1000



Project PlanProject Plan

In this project I will 
bluebird nesting boxg
them along a trail in
Creek Park.

I will also design and
interpretive sign to interpretive sign to 
start of this trail, gi
about bluebirds and

 create 8 
xes and install 
nside Seabourne 

d build an 
 be placed at the  be placed at the 
ving information 
 the nest boxes.



Project PurposeProject Purpose

The bluebird nest boxes have tw

1. These boxes will provide she
d g  h  d t  dangers such as predators an
conditions.

2. I will build the nests with a t
bluebirds may be viewed. Thy
view these birds and be educ

The interpretive sign will be anThe interpretive sign will be an
for visitors to the park. The sign
visual learning experience for v

wo purposes:

elter for bluebirds from natural 
d f bl  th  nd unfavorable weather 

top that can swing open so the 
his way, visitors to the park can y, p
cated on their species.

other education opportunity other education opportunity 
n will provide a colorful, 
visitors.



• Orange 
Stars 
indicate  
bluebird 
nest boxes 
location.

• Each nest 
will be 
b t 500 about 500 

feet apart. 

• The blue 
star is the 
interpretive 

isign.



High level cost High level cost 
Lumber (2-3” cedar) -

Nails (Galvanized):      Nails (Galvanized):      

Cement:                    

Hardware Cloth:         

Stove pipe:                 

Metal pole:                 

Metal Clips: Metal Clips: 

Miscellaneous:             

Interpretive Signboard: 

_______________________

Total: $

 estimate estimate
$50.00 

$12 00$12.00

$50.00 

$14.00

$100.00

$100.00

$50 00$50.00

$50.00

  $1600

________________

$2026



Funds RaiseFunds Raise

Rotary Club:   

Auto Concepts:     

North Point:

Northwest Medical : 

ed so fared so far

$250

$250

$150

 $150



DRAFT 

PAGE 1 of 1  PARKS & RECREATION BOARD MEETING MINUTES  MARCH 27, 2014. 
 

 

 CITY OF ROSENBERG 

PARKS AND RECREATION BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

*** DRAFT *** 
 
On this the 27

th
 day of March 2014, the Parks and Recreation Board of the City of Rosenberg, Fort Bend 

County, Texas, met in a Regular Session at Rosenberg Civic Center located at 3825 Hwy. 36 South, 
Rosenberg, Texas. 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT  
Teresa Bailey 
Stanley Kucherka 
Bertha Nell Kelm 
Laurie Cook 
Rudy Guerrero 
Ray Kueck 
Eric Ramirez 
George Zepeda 
 

Parks and Recreation Board Chairman  
Parks and Recreation Board Vice Chairman  
Parks and Recreation Board Secretary  
Parks and Recreation Board Member 
Parks and Recreation Board Member 
Parks and Recreation Board Member 
Parks and Recreation Board Member 
Parks and Recreation Board Member 
 

MEMBERS ABSENT  
Melissa Dixon 
Rufus Guebara 
Amanda Bolf 
 

Parks and Recreation Board Member 
Parks and Recreation Board Member  
Council Liaison  

STAFF PRESENT  
Linda Cernosek 
Jeff Trinker 
Darren McCarthy 
Lydia Acosta 
 

City Secretary 
Executive Director of Support Services 
Parks and Recreation Director  
Recreation Programs Coordinator 

GUESTS PRESENT  
Jerrod Schulze 
Treeank Patnaik 

Eagle Scout Candidate, Troop 1000 
Eagle Scout Candidate, Troop 1000 

 
AGENDA 

 
 
CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON PROPOSED EAGLE SCOUT PROJECT BY TREEANK PATNAIK 
OF TROOP 1000 IN SEABOURNE CREEK NATURE PARK.   
 
Key Discussion:  Darren McCarthy, Parks and Recreation Director, introduced Eagle Scout candidate Treeank 
Patnaik of Troop 1000 to the Board. Treeank explained to the Members that he would like build and install eight 
bluebird-nesting boxes along the trails in Seabourne Creek Nature Park, as well as an interpretive sign to be 
placed at the start of the trail to give visitor information on bluebirds and the next boxes. The boxes will not only 
provide shelter for the bluebirds from weather and shelter, but visitors will be able to open them to view the birds 
in their habitat. Treeank noted that the boxes would be placed approximately 500 feet apart and begin in the 
wetlands and continue around the outer lake trail with the interpretive sign at the junction of the two trails. He 
estimated that the project would cost approximately $2026 and he’s already received sponsorship from the 
Rosenberg Rotary Club and several local businesses and is confident that he can raise the remainder of the 
funds.  
 
ACTION:  Stanley Kucherka made a motion, seconded by Bertha Nell Kelm, to approve the proposed Eagle 
Scout project in Seabourne Creek Nature Park. The motion passed by a unanimous vote of those present.   
 
 

  

reneel
Rectangle



CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
April 15, 2014 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

4 Public Hearing on Ordinance No. 2014-15 – Re-Adopting Drought 
Contingency Plan 

ITEM/MOTION 

Hold public hearing on proposed re-adoption of the City’s Drought Contingency Plan. 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[   ] One-time 
[   ] Recurring 
[X] N/A 

Budgeted: 

[   ] Yes  [   ] No  [X] N/A 

Source of Funds:  N/A 

 

[   ] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[   ] District 4 
[   ] City-wide 
[X] N/A 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  MUD #:  N/A 
 

1. Notice of Public Hearing on Adoption of Drought Contingency Plan – Published 04-06-14 
 

APPROVALS 

Submitted by:   

 
 
John Maresh 
Assistant City Manager for 
Public Services 
 

Reviewed by:   
 
[   ] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services   
[   ] Asst. City Manager for Public Services  
[   ] City Attorney     
[   ] City Engineer 
[   ] (Other) 
 

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council: 
   
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

This public hearing will allow City Council to receive public comment on the proposed re-adoption of the 
City’s Drought Contingency Plan.  A notice of public hearing was published in the Fort Bend Herald on 
Sunday, April 06, 2014, as well as published to the City’s website. 
 
The City’s Drought Contingency Plan is being proposed for re-adoption without change and will be 
considered as the next Agenda item for Ordinance No. 2014-15. 
 



CITY OF ROSENGERG 
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON 

ADOPTION OF DROUGHT CONTINGENCY PLAN 

 

A public hearing of the City of Rosenberg, Texas will be held on Tuesday, April 15, 2014 at 7:00 p.m. at 

the City Council Chambers, 2110 4th Street, Rosenberg, Texas 77471 to consider the adoption of the 

Drought Contingency Plan. 

 

Copies of the Drought Contingency Plan are available at the offices of the City Secretary, 2110 4th 

Street, Rosenberg, TX 77471.  Any member of the public has the right to appear at the hearing and 

provide input regarding the regulations contained within the plan. 



CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
April 15, 2014 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

5 Ordinance No. 2014-15 – Re-Adopting the Drought Contingency Plan 

ITEM/MOTION 

Consideration of and action on Ordinance No. 2014-15, an Ordinance re-adopting and continuing without 
change the City’s Drought Contingency Regulations as set forth in Article II of Chapter 10 of the Code of 
Ordinances; providing rules and regulations for initiation and termination of drought contingency plans 
within the City; providing for response stages and restrictions on certain water uses during drought 
conditions; providing for enforcement of such restrictions; providing for procedures for granting of 
variances; providing a penalty in an amount of not more than $500 for  violation of any provision hereof; 
repealing all ordinances or parts of ordinances inconsistent or in conflict herewith; and providing for 
severability. 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[   ] One-time 
[   ] Recurring 
[X] N/A 

Budgeted: 

[   ] Yes  [   ] No  [X] N/A 

Source of Funds:  N/A 

 

[   ] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[   ] District 4 
[X] City-wide 
[   ] N/A 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  MUD #:  In-City MUDs 
 

1. Ordinance No. 2014-15 
2. Loft Correspondence – 02-28-14 
3. Ordinance No. 2010-31 – 12-21-10 
4. City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt – 12-21-10 

 

APPROVALS 

Submitted by:   

 
 
John Maresh 
Assistant City Manager for 
Public Services 

Reviewed by:   
 
[   ] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services   
[   ] Asst. City Manager for Public Services  
[X] City Attorney LJL/rl    
[   ] City Engineer 
[   ] (Other) 
 

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council: 
   
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

This item has been placed on the Agenda to offer City Council the opportunity to review and re-adopt the 
Drought Contingency Plan (Plan). The Plan is required by the Texas Commission on Environmental 
Quality (TCEQ) and the current Plan was adopted on December 21, 2010 (Ordinance No. 2010-31). Per 
the attached correspondence from TCEQ, the City is required to review and adopt the Plan by May 01, 
2014. A copy of the adopted Plan will have to be sent to TCEQ. TCEQ typically requires the local entity to 
review and adopt the Plan at least once every five (5) years and May 01, 2014, coincides with the five (5) 
year cycle established by TCEQ. 
 
Staff has reviewed the Plan and did not identify any revisions that need to be made at this time. Staff 
recommends approval of Ordinance No. 2014-15, re-adopting the City’s Drought Contingency Regulations.
 



1 
 

 ORDINANCE NO. 2014-15 

AN ORDINANCE READOPTING AND CONTINUING WITHOUT CHANGE THE CITY’S 
DROUGHT CONTINGENCY REGULATIONS AS SET FORTH IN ARTICLE II OF 
CHAPTER 10 OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, 
TEXAS; PROVIDING RULES AND REGULATIONS FOR INITIATION AND 
TERMINATION OF DROUGHT CONTINGENCY PLANS WITHIN THE CITY; 
PROVIDING FOR RESPONSE STAGES AND RESTRICTIONS ON CERTAIN WATER 
USES DURING DROUGHT CONDITIONS; PROVIDING FOR ENFORCEMENT OF 
SUCH RESTRICTIONS; PROVIDING FOR PROCEDURES FOR GRANTING OF 
VARIANCES; PROVIDING A PENALTY IN AN AMOUNT OF NOT MORE THAN $500 
FOR  VIOLATION OF ANY PROVISION HEREOF; REPEALING ALL ORDINANCES 
OR PARTS OF ORDINANCES INCONSISTENT OR IN CONFLICT HEREWITH; AND 
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY. 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Rosenberg recognizes the amount of water available 
to the City and its water utility customers is limited and subject to depletion during periods of extended 
drought; and, 

 WHEREAS, Section 11.1272 of the Texas Water Code and applicable rules of the Texas 
Commission on Environmental Quality require all public water systems in Texas to prepare a drought 
contingency plan; and,  

 WHEREAS, as authorized under law and in the best interest of the residents, citizens and 
inhabitants of the City of Rosenberg, the City Council deems it expedient and necessary to establish 
certain rules and procedures for the orderly and efficient management of limited water supplies during 
drought conditions and other water-related emergencies; and, 

WHEREAS, the City Council passed and approved a drought contingency plan by Ordinance No. 
2010-31 on December 21, 2010; and, 

WHEREAS, the City Council held a public hearing on Tuesday, April 15, 2014, to allow members 
of the public the right to provide input regarding the drought contingency plan regulations; and, 

WHEREAS, after review of said drought contingency plan, the City Council has determined that 
the current plan adequately provides for comprehensive drought response measures and that no changes 
are needed to the current plan; now, therefore, 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG: 

 Section 1. That the drought contingency plan as provided in Article II of Chapter 10 of the 

Code of Ordinances of the City of Rosenberg is hereby readopted and shall continue without change as 

attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and made a part hereof for all purposes, and the Code of Ordinances shall 

reflect by footnote the adoption of this Ordinance continuing such regulations. 

 Section 2.     All ordinances or parts of inconsistent or in conflict herewith are, to the extent of 

such inconsistency or conflict, hereby repealed. 

 Section 3.     In the event any clause, phrase, provision, sentence, or part of this Ordinance or the 

application of the same to any person or circumstance shall for any reason be adjudged invalid or held 

unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, it shall not affect, impair, or invalidate this Ordinance 



2 
 

as a whole or any part or provision hereof other than the part declared to be invalid or unconstitutional; 

and the City Council of the City of Rosenberg, Texas, declares that it would have passed each and every 

part of the same notwithstanding the omission of any such part thus declared to be invalid or 

unconstitutional whether there be one or more parts.  
 
PASSED AND APPROVED by a vote of      “ayes” in favor and __ “noes” against on this first and final 
reading in full compliance with the provisions of Section 3.10 of the Charter of the City of Rosenberg on 
this, the _____ day of ____________ 2014. 
 
ATTEST:       APPROVED: 
 
 
 
__________________________    ____________________________ 
Linda Cernosek, CITY SECRETARY    Vincent M. Morales, Jr., MAYOR 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
____________________ 
Lora Jean D. Lenzsch, CITY ATTORNEY 



PART II ‐ CODE OF ORDINANCES 
Chapter 10 ‐ EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT—DROUGHT CONTINGENCY REGULATIONS 

ARTICLE II. DROUGHT CONTINGENCY REGULATIONS 

  Rosenberg, Texas, Code of Ordinances  Page 1 

ARTICLE II. DROUGHT CONTINGENCY REGULATIONS [3]  
Sec. 10-30. Declaration of policy, purpose, intent and regulation. 

Sec. 10-31. Statement of public involvement. 

Sec. 10-32. Public education. 

Sec. 10-33. Coordination with regional water planning groups. 

Sec. 10-34. Authorization. 

Sec. 10-35. Application. 

Sec. 10-36. Definitions. 

Sec. 10-37. Triggering criteria for initiation and termination of drought response stages 

Sec. 10-38. Drought response stages. 

Sec. 10-39. Enforcement. 

Sec. 10-40. Variances. 

Secs. 10-41—10-49. Reserved. 

 
 

Sec. 10-30. Declaration of policy, purpose, intent and regulation. 

In order to conserve the available water supply and protect the integrity of water supply facilities, with 
particular regard for domestic water use, sanitation, and fire protection, and to protect and preserve public 
health, welfare, and safety and minimize the adverse impacts of water supply shortage or other water 
supply emergency conditions, the city hereby adopts the following regulation and restrictions on the 
delivery and consumption of water.  

Water uses regulated or prohibited under these drought contingency regulations (regulations) are 
considered to be non-essential and continuation of such uses during times of water shortage or other 
emergency water supply conditions are deemed to constitute a waste of water which subjects the 
offender(s) to penalties as provided for in this article and generally in this Code.  

(Ord. No. 2010-31, § 1, 12-21-10)  

Sec. 10-31. Statement of public involvement. 

Opportunity for the public to provide input into the preparation of the regulations was provided by the 
city by means of providing public notice in a newspaper of general circulation and a public hearing to 
accept input on these regulations.  

(Ord. No. 2010-31, § 1, 12-21-10)  

Sec. 10-32. Public education. 

The city will periodically provide the public with information about these regulations, including 
information about the conditions under which each stage of these regulations is to be initiated and the 

reneel
Text Box
Exhibit "A" to Ordinance No. 2014-15



PART II ‐ CODE OF ORDINANCES 
Chapter 10 ‐ EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT—DROUGHT CONTINGENCY REGULATIONS 

ARTICLE II. DROUGHT CONTINGENCY REGULATIONS 

  Rosenberg, Texas, Code of Ordinances  Page 2 

drought response measures to be implemented in each stage. This information will be provided by means 
of utility bill inserts.  

(Ord. No. 2010-31, § 1, 12-21-10)  

Sec. 10-33. Coordination with regional water planning groups. 

The service area of the City of Rosenberg is located within the Region H Water Planning Group and 
the city has provided a copy of this article to Region H and will cooperate with governmental entities 
located within Region H.  

(Ord. No. 2010-31, § 1, 12-21-10)  

Sec. 10-34. Authorization. 

The city manager or his/her designee is hereby authorized and directed to implement the applicable 
provisions of this article upon determination that such implementation is necessary to protect public 
health, safety and welfare. The city manager, or his/her designee, shall have the authority to initiate or 
terminate drought or other water emergency response measures as described in this article.  

(Ord. No. 2010-31, § 1, 12-21-10)  

Sec. 10-35. Application. 

The provisions of this article shall apply to all persons, customers, and property utilizing water 
provided by the city. The terms "person" and "customer" as used in the article include individuals, 
corporations, partnerships, associations and all other legal entities.  

The beneficial use of treated wastewater (reuse or recycled water), condensate water, or cooling 
tower blow down, without waste, is exempt from the provisions of this article and a defense to 
prosecution. The use of alternate on-site reclaimed sources may be approved through variance from the 
city manager, or his/her designee on a case by case basis.  

All references herein to materials contained in this article shall be deemed to refer to "the plan" and 
any modifications and/or changes thereof as shall be approved from time to time by the city council as an 
amendment to the terms and provision of this article.  

(Ord. No. 2010-31, § 1, 12-21-10)  

Sec. 10-36. Definitions. 

For the purpose of this article, the following definitions shall apply:  

Aesthetic water use shall mean water used for ornamental or decorative purposes such as fountains, 
reflecting pools and water gardens.  

Beneficial use shall mean the use of treated wastewater (reuse or recycled water), condensate 
water, or cooling tower blown down for a purpose not otherwise prohibited by city, state, or federal law or 
regulation, when such use is a reasonable viable alternative offering efficiency of use and economic 
benefits.  

Commercial and institutional water use shall mean water used which is integral to the operations of 
commercial and non-profit establishments and governmental entities such as retail establishments, hotels 
and motels, restaurants, and office buildings.  



PART II ‐ CODE OF ORDINANCES 
Chapter 10 ‐ EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT—DROUGHT CONTINGENCY REGULATIONS 

ARTICLE II. DROUGHT CONTINGENCY REGULATIONS 

  Rosenberg, Texas, Code of Ordinances  Page 3 

Conservation shall mean those practices, techniques, and technologies, that reduce the 
consumption of water, reduce the loss or waste of water, improve the efficiency in the use of water or 
increase the recycling and reuse of water so that a supply is conserved and made available for future or 
alternate uses.  

Customer shall mean any person, company or organization using water supplied by the city.  

Domestic water use shall mean water used for personal needs or for household or sanitary purposes 
such as drinking, bathing, heating, cooking, sanitation, or for cleaning a residence, business, industry or 
institution.  

Even number address shall mean street addresses, box numbers, or rural postal route numbers 
ending in 0, 2, 4, 6, or 8 and locations without addresses.  

Industrial water use shall mean the use of water in processes designed to convert materials of lower 
value into forms that have greater usability and value.  

Landscape irrigation use shall mean water used for the irrigation and maintenance of landscaped 
areas, publicly or privately owned, including residential and commercial lawns, gardens, golf courses, 
parks, rights-of-way and medians.  

Non-essential water use shall mean water uses that are not essential or required for the protection of 
public, health, safety and welfare, including:  

(1) Irrigation of landscape areas including parks, athletic fields and golf courses except otherwise 
provided under these regulations;  

(2) Use of water to wash any motor vehicle, motorbike, boat, trailer, airplane or other vehicle;  

(3) Use of water to wash down any sidewalks, walkways, driveways, parking lots, tennis courts or 
other hard-surfaced areas;  

(4) Use of water to wash down buildings or structures for purposes other than immediate fire 
protection;  

(5) Flushing gutters or permitting water to run or accumulate in any gutter or street; 

(6) Use of water to fill, refill, or add to any indoor or outdoor swimming pools or Jacuzzi-type pools;  

(7) Use of water in a fountain or pond for aesthetic or scenic purposes, except where necessary to 
support aquatic life;  

(8) Failure to repair a controllable leak(s) within a reasonable period after having been given notice 
directing the repair of such leak(s); and  

(9) Use of water from hydrants for construction purposes or any other purposes other than fire 
fighting  

Odd numbered address shall mean street addresses, box numbers, or rural postal numbers ending 
in 1, 3, 5, 7, or 9.  

Reuse or recycled water shall mean domestic or municipal wastewater which has been treated to a 
quality suitable for a beneficial use in accordance with applicable law.  

Waste shall mean the use of water without obtaining maximum beneficial use thereof. Waste shall 
also include, but not be limited to, causing, suffering, or permitting a flow of water used for landscape 
watering to run into any river, creek, stream, or other natural water course or drain, superficial or 
underground channel, bayou, or unto any sanitary or storm sewer, any street, road or highway or other 
impervious surface area, or upon the lands of another person or upon public lands. Waste shall also 
include, but not be limited to, failure to repair any controllable leak on property owned by any registered 
water meter holder.  



PART II ‐ CODE OF ORDINANCES 
Chapter 10 ‐ EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT—DROUGHT CONTINGENCY REGULATIONS 

ARTICLE II. DROUGHT CONTINGENCY REGULATIONS 

  Rosenberg, Texas, Code of Ordinances  Page 4 

(Ord. No. 2010-31, § 1, 12-21-10)  

Sec. 10-37. Triggering criteria for initiation and termination of drought response stages 

The city manager, or his/her designee, shall monitor water supply and/or demand conditions on a 
daily basis and shall determine when conditions warrant initiation or termination of each stage of this 
article. Public notification of the initiation or termination of drought response stages shall be by means of 
publication in a newspaper of general circulation and/or by notification via the electronic media depending 
upon the severity of conditions.  

(a) Stage 1—Mild Water Shortage Conditions.  

Requirements for initiation—Customers shall be requested to voluntarily conserve water and 
adhere to the prescribed conditions on certain water uses, defined in this article and the 
regulations as herein set out when the demand on the city's water supply facilities reaches or 
exceeds sixty-five (65) percent of the production capacity of such facilities for five (5) 
consecutive days, as determined by the city manager or his/her designee.  

Requirements for termination—Stage 1 of the regulations may be rescinded when all of the 
conditions listed as triggering events have ceased to exist for a period of three (3) consecutive 
days, as determined by the city manager or his/her designee.  

(b) Stage 2—Moderate Water Shortage Conditions.  

Requirements for initiation—Customers shall be required to comply with the requirements and 
restrictions on certain non-essential water uses provided for under these regulations when the 
demand on the city's water supply facilities reaches or exceeds seventy-five (75) percent of the 
production capacity of such facilities for five (5) consecutive days, as determined by the city 
manager or his/her designee.  

Requirements for termination—Stage 2 of these regulations may be rescinded when all of the 
conditions listed as triggering events have ceased to exist for three (3) consecutive days, as 
determined by the city manager or his/her designee.  

(c) Stage 3—Severe Water Shortage Conditions.  

Requirements for initiation—Customers shall be required to comply with the requirements and 
restrictions on certain non-essential water uses provided in section 10-36 of these regulations 
when the demand on the city's water supply facilities reaches or exceeds eighty (80) percent of 
the production capacity of such facilities for three (3) consecutive days, as determined by the 
city manager or his/her designee.  

Requirements for termination—Stage 3 of these regulations may be rescinded when all of the 
conditions listed as triggering events have ceased to exist for three (3) consecutive days, as 
determined by the city manager or his/her designee.  

(d) Stage 4—Critical Water Shortage Conditions.  

Requirements for initiation—Customers shall be required to comply with requirements and 
restrictions on certain non-essential water uses provided in section 10-36 of these regulations 
when the demand on the city's water supply facilities reaches or exceeds eighty-five (85) 
percent of the production capacity of such facilities for twenty-four (24) hours, as determined by 
the city manager or his/her designee.  



PART II ‐ CODE OF ORDINANCES 
Chapter 10 ‐ EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT—DROUGHT CONTINGENCY REGULATIONS 

ARTICLE II. DROUGHT CONTINGENCY REGULATIONS 

  Rosenberg, Texas, Code of Ordinances  Page 5 

Requirements for termination—Stage 4 of the article may be rescinded when all of the 
conditions listed as triggering events have ceased to exist for two (2) consecutive days, as 
determined by the city manager or his/her designee.  

(e) Stage 5—Emergency Water Shortage Conditions.  

Requirements for initiation—Customers shall be required to comply with the requirements and 
restrictions for Stage 5 of these regulations when the city manager or his/her designee 
determines that a water supply emergency exists based on:  

(1) Major water line breaks, or pump or system failures, which cause unprecedented loss of 
capacity to provide water service; or  

(2) Natural or manmade contamination of the water supply source(s). 

Requirements for termination—Stage 5 of the article may be rescinded when all of the 
conditions listed as triggering events have ceased to exist as determined by the city manager or 
his/her designee.  

(Ord. No. 2010-31, § 1, 12-21-10)  

Sec. 10-38. Drought response stages. 

The city manager, or his/her designee, shall monitor water supply and/or demand conditions on a 
daily basis and, in accordance with the triggering criteria set forth in this article, shall determine that a 
mild, moderate, severe, critical or emergency condition exists and shall implement the following actions 
upon publication of notice in a newspaper of general circulation:  

Stage 1—Mild Water Shortage Conditions.  

Supply Management Measures—Voluntary Water Use Restrictions.  

(a) Water customers are requested to voluntarily limit the irrigation of landscaped areas to Sundays 
and Thursdays for customers with a street address ending in an even number (0, 2, 4, 6 or 8), 
and Saturdays and Wednesdays for water customers with a street address ending in an odd 
number (1, 3, 5, 7 or 9), and to irrigate landscapes only between the hours of 12:00 midnight 
and 10:00 a.m. and 8:00 p.m. and 12:00 midnight on the designated watering days.  

(b) All operations of the city shall adhere to water use restrictions prescribed for Stage 2 of this 
article.  

(c) Water customers are requested to practice water conservation and to minimize or discontinue 
water use for non-essential purposes.  

Stage 2—Moderate Water Shortage Conditions.  

Target: Achieve a ten percent (10%) reduction in daily water demand.  

Supply Management Measures—Water Use Restrictions.  

It shall be a violation of this Code punishable as otherwise set out in this Code for any person not to 
adhere to the following water use restrictions which shall apply to all persons:  

(a) Irrigation of landscaped areas with hose-end sprinklers or automatic irrigation systems shall be 
limited to Sundays and Thursdays for customers with a street address ending in an even 
number (0, 2, 4, 6 or 8), and Saturdays and Wednesdays for water customers with a street 



PART II ‐ CODE OF ORDINANCES 
Chapter 10 ‐ EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT—DROUGHT CONTINGENCY REGULATIONS 

ARTICLE II. DROUGHT CONTINGENCY REGULATIONS 

  Rosenberg, Texas, Code of Ordinances  Page 6 

address ending in an odd number (1, 3, 5, 7 or 9), and irrigation of landscaped areas is further 
limited to the hours of 12:00 midnight until 10:00 a.m. and between 8:00 p.m. and 12:00 
midnight on designated watering days. However, irrigation of landscaped areas is permitted at 
anytime if it is by means of a hand-held hose, a faucet filled bucket or water can of five (5) 
gallons or less, or a drip irrigation system.  

(b) Use of water to wash any motor vehicle, motorbike, boat, trailer, airplane, or other vehicle is 
prohibited except on designated watering days between the hours of 12:00 midnight and 10:00 
a.m. and between 8:00 p.m. and 12:00 midnight. Such washing, when allowed, shall be done 
with a hand-held bucket or a hand-held hose equipped with a positive shutoff nozzle for quick 
rinses. Vehicle washing may be done at any time on the immediate premises of a commercial 
car wash or commercial service station. The provisions of this section shall not be applicable if 
the health, safety, and welfare of the public is contingent upon frequent cleaning, such as 
garbage trucks and vehicles used to transport food and perishables.  

(c) Use of water to fill, refill, or add to any indoor or outdoor swimming pools, wading pools, or 
Jacuzzi-type pools is prohibited except on designated watering days between the hours of 
12:00 midnight and 10:00 a.m. and 8:00 p.m. and 12:00 midnight.  

(d) Operation of any ornamental fountain or pond for aesthetic or scenic purposes is prohibited 
except where necessary to support aquatic life or where such fountains or ponds are equipped 
with a recirculation system.  

(e) Use of water from hydrants shall be limited to fire fighting, related activities, or other activities 
necessary to maintain public health, safety and welfare, except that use of water from 
designated fire hydrants for construction purposes may be allowed under special permit from 
the city.  

(f) Use of water for the irrigation of golf course greens, tees and fairways is prohibited except on 
designated watering days between the hours of 12:00 midnight and 10:00 a.m. and between 
8:00 p.m. and 12:00 midnight. However, if the golf course utilizes a water source other than that 
provided by the city, the facility shall not be subject to these regulations.  

(g) All restaurants are prohibited from serving water to their patrons except when requested. 

(h) The following uses of water are defined as non-essential and are prohibited: 

1. Wash down of any sidewalks, walkways, driveways, parking lots, tennis courts or other 
hard-surfaced areas;  

2. Use of water to wash down buildings or structures for purposes other than immediate fire 
protection;  

3. Use of water for dust control; 

4. Flushing gutters or permitting water to run or accumulate in any gutter or street; and  

5. Failure to repair controllable leak(s) within a reasonable period after having been given 
notice directing the repair of such leak(s).  

Stage 3—Severe Water Shortage Conditions.  

Target: Achieve a fifteen (15) percent reduction in daily water demand.  

Supply Management Measures—Water Use Restrictions. All requirements of Stage 2 shall remain in 
effect during Stage 3 except:  

(a) Irrigation of landscaped areas shall be limited to designated watering days between the hours of 
12:00 midnight and 10:00 a.m. and between 8:00 p.m. and 12:00 midnight and shall be by 



PART II ‐ CODE OF ORDINANCES 
Chapter 10 ‐ EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT—DROUGHT CONTINGENCY REGULATIONS 

ARTICLE II. DROUGHT CONTINGENCY REGULATIONS 

  Rosenberg, Texas, Code of Ordinances  Page 7 

means of hand-held hoses, hand-held buckets, drip irrigation or permanently installed automatic 
sprinkler system only. The use of hose-end sprinklers is prohibited at all times.  

(b) The watering of golf course tees is prohibited unless the golf course utilizes a water source 
other than that provided by the city.  

(c) The use of water for construction purposes from designated fire hydrants under special permit is 
to be discontinued.  

Stage 4—Critical Water Shortage Conditions.  

Target: Achieve a twenty (20) percent reduction in daily water demand.  

Supply Management Measures—Water Use Restrictions. All requirements of Stage 2 and 3 shall 
remain in effect during Stage 4 except:  

(a) Irrigation of landscaped areas shall be limited to designated watering days between the hours of 
6:00 a.m. and 10:00 a.m. and between 8:00 p.m. and 12:00 midnight and shall be by means of 
hand-held hose, hand-held buckets or drip irrigation only. The use of hose-end sprinklers or 
permanently installed automatic sprinkler systems are prohibited at all times.  

(b) Use of water to wash any motor vehicle, motorbike, boat, trailer, airplane or other vehicle not 
occurring on the premises of commercial car wash and commercial service stations and not in 
the immediate interest of public health, safety and welfare is prohibited. Further, such vehicle 
washing at commercial car washes or service stations shall occur only between the hours of 
6:00 a.m. and 10:00 a.m. and between 6:00 p.m. and 10:00 p.m.  

(c) The filling, refilling, or adding of water to swimming pools, wading pools, and Jacuzzi-type pools 
is prohibited.  

(d) Operation of any ornamental fountain or pond for aesthetic or scenic purposes is prohibited 
except where necessary to support aquatic life or where such fountains or ponds are equipped 
with a recirculation system.  

(e) No applications for new, additional, expanded, or increased-in-size water service connections, 
meters, service lines, pipeline extensions, mains or water service facilities of any kind shall be 
allowed or approved.  

Stage 5—Emergency Water Shortage Conditions.  

Target: Eliminate conditions that triggered drought response Stage 5.  

Supply Management Measures—Water Use Restrictions. All requirements of Stage 2, 3, and 4 shall 
remain in effect during Stage 5, except:  

(a) Irrigation of landscaped areas is absolutely prohibited. 

(b) Use of water to wash any motor vehicle, motorbike, boat, trailer, airplane, or other vehicle is 
absolutely prohibited.  

Interconnections with the City of Richmond Water System and/or Fort Bend County Municipal Utility 
District No. 5 Water System are to be used as alternative water sources, as needed.  

(Ord. No. 2010-31, § 1, 12-21-10)  



PART II ‐ CODE OF ORDINANCES 
Chapter 10 ‐ EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT—DROUGHT CONTINGENCY REGULATIONS 

ARTICLE II. DROUGHT CONTINGENCY REGULATIONS 

  Rosenberg, Texas, Code of Ordinances  Page 8 

Sec. 10-39. Enforcement. 

(a) No person shall knowingly or intentionally allow the use of water from the city for residential, 
commercial, industrial, agricultural, governmental or any other purpose in a manner contrary to any 
provision of these regulations, or in an amount in excess of that permitted by the drought response 
stage in effect at the time pursuant to action taken by the city manager or his/her designee, in 
accordance with provisions of these regulations.  

(b) Any person who shall violate any provisions of this article shall be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor 
and, upon conviction, shall be punished by a fine in an amount not to exceed five hundred dollars 
($500.00). Each day that one (1) or more of the provisions in this article is violated shall constitute a 
separate offense. If a person is convicted of three (3) or more violations of this article, the city 
manager or his/her designee shall be authorized, upon due notice to the customer, to discontinue 
water service to the premises where such violations occur. Services discontinued under such 
circumstances shall be restored only upon payment of a reconnection charge established by the city 
and any other costs incurred by the city in discontinuing service. In addition, suitable assurance must 
be given to the city manager or his/her designee that the same actions shall not be repeated while 
the regulations are in effect. In addition to the relief as otherwise provided herein, the city shall have 
the authority in the proper case to seek injunctive relief in a court of competent jurisdiction.  

(c) Any person, including a person classified as a water customer of the city, in apparent control of the 
property where a violation occurs or originates shall be presumed to be the violator. Proof that the 
violation occurred on the person's property shall constitute a rebuttable presumption that the person 
in apparent control of the property committed the violation, but any such person shall have the right 
to show that he/she did not commit the violation. Parents shall be presumed to be responsible for 
violations of their minor children and proof that violation, committed by a child, occurred on property 
within the parents' control shall constitute as a rebuttable presumption that the parent committed the 
violation. Any such parent may be excused if he/she had previously directed the child not to use the 
water as it was used in violation of these regulations and the parent could not have reasonably 
known of the violation.  

(d) Any city police officer, code enforcement employee or any other employee designated by the city 
manager may issue a citation to a person he/she reasonably believes to be in violation of these 
regulations. Such citation, when issued, shall be served and appropriate hearing set in the manner 
otherwise provided for by law for citations in the Municipal Court of the City of Rosenberg, Texas.  

(Ord. No. 2010-31, § 1, 12-21-10)  

Sec. 10-40. Variances. 

The city manager or his/her designee may, in writing, grant temporary variance for existing water 
uses otherwise prohibited under this article if it is determined that failure to grant such variance would 
cause an emergency condition adversely affecting health, sanitation, or fire protection for the public or the 
person requesting such variance and if one (1) or more of the following conditions are met:  

(a) Compliance with this article cannot be technically accomplished during the duration of the water 
supply shortage or other conditions for which the regulations are in effect.  

(b) Alternative methods can be implemented which will achieve the same level of reduction in water 
use.  

Persons requesting an exemption from the provisions of this article shall file a petition for variance 
with the city within five (5) days after the provisions of this article or a particular drought response stage 
has been invoked. All petitions for variances shall be reviewed by the city manager or his/her designee, 
and shall include the following:  



PART II ‐ CODE OF ORDINANCES 
Chapter 10 ‐ EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT—DROUGHT CONTINGENCY REGULATIONS 

ARTICLE II. DROUGHT CONTINGENCY REGULATIONS 

  Rosenberg, Texas, Code of Ordinances  Page 9 

(a) Name and address of the petitioner(s), 

(b) Purpose of water use, 

(c) Specific provision(s) of this article from which the petitioner is requesting relief, 

(d) Detailed statement as to how the specific provision of this article adversely affects the petitioner 
or what damage or harm will occur to the petitioner or others if petitioner complies with the 
provisions of this article,  

(e) Description of the relief requested, 

(f) Period of time for which the variance is sought, 

(g) Alternative water use restrictions or other measures the petitioner is taking or proposes to take 
to meet the intent of this article and the compliance date, and  

(h) Other pertinent information. 

Variances granted by the city shall be subject to the following conditions, unless waived or modified 
by the city manager or his/her designee:  

(a) Variances granted shall include a timetable for compliance. 

(b) Variances granted shall expire when the regulations are no longer in effect, unless the petitioner 
has failed to meet specified requirements.  

No variance shall be retroactive or otherwise justify any violation of these regulations prior to the 
issuance of the variance.  

(Ord. No. 2010-31, § 1, 12-21-10)  

Secs. 10-41—10-49. Reserved. 

 

 

FOOTNOTE(S): 

 

--- (3) ---  

Editor's note— Ord. No. 2010-31, § 1, adopted December 21, 2010, repealed former Art. II, and enacted 
provisions designated as a new Art. II to read as herein set out. Prior to inclusion of said ordinance, Art. II 
pertained to similar subject matter. See also the Code Comparative Table. (Back) 





























reneel
Rectangle



reneel
Rectangle



CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
April 15, 2014 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

6 Ordinance No. 2014-17 – Adopting Water Conservation Plan 

ITEM/MOTION 

Consideration of and action on Ordinance No. 2014-17, an Ordinance amending the Code of Ordinances 
by deleting Article III of Chapter 10 thereof and by substituting therefor a new Article III to Chapter 10 
thereof, adopting a Water Conservation Plan; providing a penalty in an amount not to exceed $2000 for 
violation of any provision hereof; and providing for severability. 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[   ] One-time 
[   ] Recurring 
[X] N/A 

Budgeted: 

[   ] Yes  [   ] No  [X] N/A 

Source of Funds:  N/A 

 

[   ] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[   ] District 4 
[X] City-wide 
[   ] N/A 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  MUD #:  In-City MUDs 
 

1. Ordinance No. 2014-17 – Redlined w/o attachments 
2. Ordinance No. 2014-17 
3. Loft Correspondence – 02-28-14 
4. Ordinance No. 2009-17 – 04-07-09 
5. City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt – 04-07-09 

 

APPROVALS 

Submitted by:   

 
 
John Maresh 
Assistant City Manager for 
Public Services 
 

Reviewed by:   
 
[   ] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services   
[   ] Asst. City Manager for Public Services  
[X] City Attorney LJL/rl    
[   ] City Engineer 
[   ] (Other) 
 

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council: 

   
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

This item has been placed on the Agenda to offer City Council the opportunity to review and adopt the 
updated Water Conservation Plan (Plan). The Plan is required by the Texas Commission on Environmental 
Quality (TCEQ) and the current Plan was adopted on April 07, 2009 (Ordinance No. 2009-17). Per the 
attached correspondence from TCEQ, the City is required to review and adopt an updated Plan by May 01, 
2014. After approval, a copy of the Plan will have to be sent to TCEQ. TCEQ typically requires the local 
entity to review and adopt the Plan at least once every five (5) years and May 01, 2014, coincides with the 
five (5) year cycle established by TCEQ. Staff has reviewed the Plan and updated the statistics and  
projections used for reporting purposes. Staff is in the process of finalizing the growth projections for the 
updated Water Conservation Utility Profile which serves as Appendix “C” to the Plan. The final version of 
the profile will be attached as Appendix “C” before the plan is submitted to TCEQ.     
 
Staff recommends approval of Ordinance No. 2014-17, adopting the City’s Water Conservation Plan. 
 



ORDINANCE NO. 2014-17 
 

 AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF 
THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS, BY DELETING ARTICLE III 
OF CHAPTER 10 THEREOF AND BY SUBSTITUTING 
THEREFOR A NEW ARTICLE III OF CHAPTER 10 THEREOF, 
ADOPTING A WATER CONSERVATION PLAN; PROVIDING A 
PENALTY IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $2000 FOR 
VIOLATION OF ANY PROVISION HEREOF; AND PROVIDING 
FOR SEVERABILITY. 

 
*  *  *  *  * 

 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG: 
 
 Section 1. The Code of Ordinances of the City of Rosenberg, Texas, is 

hereby amended by deleting Article III of Chapter 10 and substituting therefor a 

new Article III of Chapter 10 thereof, to provide as follows: 

 
 “ARTICLE III.  WATER CONSERVATION PLAN 

 
Section 10-50.  Adoption of water conservation plan. 
 

There is hereby adopted for the city a “water conservation 
plan,” dated April 200914, a true and correct copy of which is filed 
and maintained in the office of the city secretary.” 

 
Section 2. Any person who shall intentionally, knowingly, recklessly, or 

with criminal negligence, violate any provision of this Ordinance, shall be deemed 

guilty of a misdemeanor and, upon conviction, shall be fined in an amount not to 

exceed $2000.  Each day of violation shall constitute a separate offense. 

 

 Section 3. In the event any clause, phrase, provision, sentence, or part of 

this Ordinance or the application of the same to any person or circumstance shall 

for any reason be adjudged invalid or held unconstitutional by a court of competent 

jurisdiction, it shall not affect, impair, or invalidate this Ordinance as a whole or any 

part or provision hereof other than the part declared to be invalid or 

unconstitutional; and the City Council of the City of Rosenberg, Texas, declares 

that it would have passed each and every part of the same notwithstanding the 



 2

omission of any such part thus declared to be invalid or unconstitutional, whether 

there be one or more parts. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED by a vote of ______ “ayes” in favor and 

_______ “noes” against on this first and final reading in full compliance with the 

provisions of Section 3.10 of the Charter of the City of Rosenberg on the ______ 

day of ____________, 2014. 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
 
             
Linda Cernosek, City Secretary    Vincent M. Morales, Jr., Mayor 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
       
Lora Jean D. Lenzsch, City Attorney 
 



ORDINANCE NO. 2014-17 
 

 AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF 
THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS, BY DELETING ARTICLE III 
OF CHAPTER 10 THEREOF AND BY SUBSTITUTING 
THEREFOR A NEW ARTICLE III OF CHAPTER 10 THEREOF, 
ADOPTING A WATER CONSERVATION PLAN; PROVIDING A 
PENALTY IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $2000 FOR 
VIOLATION OF ANY PROVISION HEREOF; AND PROVIDING 
FOR SEVERABILITY. 

 
*  *  *  *  * 

 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG: 
 
 Section 1. The Code of Ordinances of the City of Rosenberg, Texas, is 

hereby amended by deleting Article III of Chapter 10 and substituting therefor a 

new Article III of Chapter 10 thereof, to provide as follows: 

 
 “ARTICLE III.  WATER CONSERVATION PLAN 

 
Section 10-50.  Adoption of water conservation plan. 
 

There is hereby adopted for the city a “water conservation 
plan,” dated April 2014, a true and correct copy of which is filed and 
maintained in the office of the city secretary.” 

 
Section 2. Any person who shall intentionally, knowingly, recklessly, or 

with criminal negligence, violate any provision of this Ordinance, shall be deemed 

guilty of a misdemeanor and, upon conviction, shall be fined in an amount not to 

exceed $2000.  Each day of violation shall constitute a separate offense. 

 

 Section 3. In the event any clause, phrase, provision, sentence, or part of 

this Ordinance or the application of the same to any person or circumstance shall 

for any reason be adjudged invalid or held unconstitutional by a court of competent 

jurisdiction, it shall not affect, impair, or invalidate this Ordinance as a whole or any 

part or provision hereof other than the part declared to be invalid or 

unconstitutional; and the City Council of the City of Rosenberg, Texas, declares 

that it would have passed each and every part of the same notwithstanding the 



 2

omission of any such part thus declared to be invalid or unconstitutional, whether 

there be one or more parts. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED by a vote of ______ “ayes” in favor and 

_______ “noes” against on this first and final reading in full compliance with the 

provisions of Section 3.10 of the Charter of the City of Rosenberg on the ______ 

day of ____________, 2014. 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
 
             
Linda Cernosek, City Secretary    Vincent M. Morales, Jr., Mayor 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
       
Lora Jean D. Lenzsch, City Attorney 
 



 
CITY OF ROSENBERG 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

WATER CONSERVATION PLAN 
 

April 2014 
 

Public Water Supply Identification Number: 0790003 
Fort Bend County 

 
John Maresh, Assistant City Manager for Public Services 

Karl Zwahr, Utilities Director 
 

P.O. Box 32 
2110 Fourth Street 

Rosenberg, TX 77471-0032 
832-595-3310 

www.ci.rosenberg.tx.us 
 



CITY OF ROSENBERG  2014 WATER CONSERVATION PLAN 
 

Page 2 of 9 

 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 
Section 1 - Introduction & Purpose  3 
Section 2 – Utility Profile  3 
Section 3 – Conservation Goals  4 
Section 4 – Water Conservation Plan Elements 5 
Appendix A:ORDINANCE OF THE ROSENBERG CITY COUNCIL 
ADOPTING WATER CONSERVATION PLAN 

A 

Appendix B :Transmittal letter to TWDB Region H Regional Water Planning 
Group  

 
B 

Appendix C: Water Conservation Utility Profile (TWDB Form 1965)  C 
Appendix D: Water Utility Rates D 
 
 
 



CITY OF ROSENBERG  2014 WATER CONSERVATION PLAN 
 

Page 3 of 9 

Section 1 – Introduction & Purpose 
 
The City of Rosenberg (the “City”), a community located within central Fort Bend 
County, Texas, recognizing the need for efficient use of existing water supply and 
treatment facilities, shall adopt the following water conservation plan for the 
purposes of identifying and establishing principals and practices to effectively 
monitor and conserve the efficient use of available water supplies and distribution 
system capacity. This is an update of the current plan previously adopted on April 
07, 2009. The plan was prepared in general accordance with The Texas Water 
Development Board’s water conservation plan requirements contained in Title 
31, Part 10, Chapter 363, Subchapter A, Rule 363.15 of the Texas Administrative 
Code.  
 
Section 2  – Utility Profile 
 
2.1  General Information & Population 
 
The City’s Water Utilities Department manages a water distribution service area 
of approximately 18 square miles and serves a population of over 34,000 
residents.  The area consists primarily of single family and light commercial with 
some scattered industrial development.  Currently, the area is partially 
developed, but substantial growth is anticipated. The City provides potable water 
to its customers through a network of over 152 miles of transmission and 
distribution lines that provide service to 13,858 active water connections at the 
end of calendar year 2013. The official U.S. Census population count for the City 
in 2010 was 30,618, an increase of 27% from the 2000 Census.   
 
2.2  Water Use Data, Supply System & Wastewater System  
 
Appendix C to this Water Conservation Plan is an evaluation of the City’s water 
and wastewater system completed using the TWDB’s Water Conservation Utility 
Profile (TWDB-1965).  The profile includes information regarding population, 
customer data, water use data, water supply system information, and wastewater 
treatment system information.  



CITY OF ROSENBERG  2014 WATER CONSERVATION PLAN 
 

Page 4 of 9 

Section 3  – Conservation Goals 
 

3.1  Five (5) & Ten (10) Year Targets 
 
The purpose of this water conservation plan is to reduce long-term demand on 
limited water resources by encouraging more efficient water use practices in the 
City of Rosenberg.  Table 1 below shows historical and projected per capita 
municipal water use for the City in gallons per capita per day (gpcd). Municipal 
use is the total water use less wholesale sales to other another utility for resale 
less sales to industrial users.  
 

Table 1.  Municipal Per Capita Water Use 
 

 

 Historic 5yr 
Average Baseline 

5yr Goal for 
year 2019 

10yr Goal for 
year 2024 

Total GPCD1 117 117 112 107 

Residential GPCD2 62 62 61 60 

Water Loss (GPCD)3 21 21 17 13 

Water Loss (Percentage)4 18% 18% 15% 12% 
1.  Total GPCD = (Total Gallons in System ÷ Permanent Population) ÷ 365 
2.  Residential GPCD = (Gallons Used for Residential Use ÷ Residential Population) ÷ 365 
3.  Water Loss GPCD = (Total Water Loss ÷ Permanent Population) ÷ 365 
4.  Water Loss Percentage = (Total Water Loss ÷ Total Gallons in System) x 100; or (Water Loss GPCD ÷ Total GPCD) x 100 

 
The City’s water conservation goals include the following: 
 
1. Achieve a 2019 per capita municipal water use of 112 total gpcd (five year 

goal) and a 2024 per capita municipal water use of 107 total gpcd (ten 
year goal). 

 
2. Continue the City’s program of universal metering and meter 

maintenance. 
 
3. Decrease the level of unaccounted water in the system to less than  12 

percent in 2019 and subsequent years.  
 
4. Raise public awareness of water conservation and encourage responsible 
 public behavior though public education and information programs, as 
 discussed in Section 4.3 
 
3.2  Schedule 
  
The State Water Conservation Implementation Task Force recommends that 
municipalities set goals of reducing per capita consumption by 1% per year.  The 
goals proposed in this plan are structured so that consumption is reduced by 1% 
each year, meeting the ultimate goal within ten years.  The City will periodically 



CITY OF ROSENBERG  2014 WATER CONSERVATION PLAN 
 

Page 5 of 9 

evaluate the plan in accordance with State and Federal regulations to determine 
the extent, if any, that the plan needs modification. 
 
Section 4  – Water Conservation Plan Elements 
 
4.1 Metering of Raw Water & Universal Metering 
 
The City meters all water produced at water plant facilities. Meters at City water 
production facilities are calibrated and tested at a maximum of three (3) year 
intervals in accordance with American Water Works Association (AWWA) 
standards to provide a minimum accuracy of plus or minus five percent (5%). 
 
The ability to meter all water distribution and consumption uses allows the City to 
closely monitor actual water use, water losses, and prevent unauthorized use.  
All service connections in the City are metered.  All production wells, pumping 
stations, interconnections, irrigation, parks, and municipal structures operated by 
the City are metered. 
 
The City meters all water delivered by the City and will continue to provide a 
preventive maintenance program for its water meters, wherein regular scheduled 
testing, repairs, and replacement are performed in accordance with American 
Water Works Association (AWWA) standards. 
 
4.2 Determination and Control of Water Loss 
 
The goal of the City’s water loss control program is to maintain unbilled water at 
or below 10% of water produced, on a monthly basis.  In order to meet this goal, 
the City has several programs in place, including routine water audits, visual 
inspections, a program of leak detection and repair, and meter testing and 
accuracy. 
 

A. Routine Audits of Water System 
 
The City Customer Services Department generates a monthly water loss 
report that compares metered production with metered consumption, as 
well as accounted-for and unaccounted-for water losses.  This report 
provides an effective tracking system of water loss.  The City will also 
complete a detailed water system audit following Texas Water 
Development Board (TWDB) guidelines at least once each year.  TWDB 
rules only require this audit to be submitted once every five years.  The 
water system audit determines the volume of actual water loss, the 
identification of water loss sources, the status and condition of primary 
water meters, an analysis of water line breaks, an evaluation of 
underground leakage potential, and provides recommendations for meter 
replacement. 
 



CITY OF ROSENBERG  2014 WATER CONSERVATION PLAN 
 

Page 6 of 9 

B.  Leak Detection and Repair 
 
The City administers a leak detection and repair program for its water 
distribution system.  This program features a work order prioritization 
system for leaks needing repair and an inventory of equipment and 
materials needed to promptly repair all detected or reported leaks.  The 
City’s Capital Improvement Plan to upgrade its water distribution system 
also addresses high volume leaks.   

 
4.3  Continuing Public Education Program  
 
The City promotes water conservation issues by informing the general public in 
the following ways: 
 

• Making water conservation information available to new customers 
• Providing water conservation information to all customers upon request 
• Coordinating education presentations, lectures, and demonstrations for 

schools, civic groups, and the general public upon request 
• Publishing water conservation information on a regular basis in the City’s 

utility bill insert or other written form 
• Continue sponsorship of the Water Wise Program administered by the 

Fort Bend Subsidence District. This program teaches direct water 
conservation principals and concepts to public school elementary students 
who reside within the City’s service area.  

 
4.4 Non Promotional Water Rate Structure  
 
The City’s water rate structure utilizes the cost-of-service method, which is based 
on costs incurred for services provided by the Water Utilities Department.  The 
current rate structure charges monthly service charges based on meter size, plus 
a uniform water usage rate per thousand (1,000) gallons (Code of Ordinances 
Section 29-50). A copy of the current water rate structure is included as Appendix 
D. 
 
The City utilizes an inclining water rate structure to encourage residential 
customers to reduce both peak and overall water usage, while fairly allocating 
cost of service to each customer class. Under an inclining rate structure, the rate 
per thousand gallons increases as the amount of water used increases.  This 
rate structure is reviewed on a regular basis to ensure that the rates adequately 
recover the cost of service and meet the goals of this water conservation plan. 
 
In 2013, the City also established a rate structure for Type I reclaimed water 
used for irrigation purposes. The reclaimed water rate is not subject to the 
Subsidence (GRP) Fee which is currently $1.20 per 1,000 gallons of potable 
water used. This lower overall rate serves as an incentive for users to convert 
from potable water to reclaimed water to meet irrigation needs.    



CITY OF ROSENBERG  2014 WATER CONSERVATION PLAN 
 

Page 7 of 9 

 
4.5  Optional Plan Elements 
 

A. Plumbing Code and Retrofit Program  
 
The City has adopted the International Plumbing Code, which requires the 
use of water saving, Ultra Low Flow (ULF) fixtures to be installed in new 
construction and in the replacement of plumbing in existing structures. 
 
The City educates the residents, plumbers, and contractors on the 
benefits of retrofitting existing facilities with water saving devices through 
its public education program.  In addition, the City will evaluate the 
feasibility and cost effectiveness of implementing an Ultra-Low Flow (ULF) 
rebate program or similar incentive program that would offer cash rebates 
or other incentives to water customers that replace old toilets, 
showerheads, and other fixtures with new ULF models. 
 
B.  Landscape Water Management  
 
The City provides information about the methods and benefits of water 
conserving landscaping practices and devices, through public education to 
homeowners, business owners, landscape architects and designers, and 
irrigation professionals.  The following methods are encouraged: 
 
• The use of Xeriscape (trademark) and “Water Wise” landscaping 
 techniques, including drought tolerant plants and grasses for 
 landscaping new homes and commercial areas. 
 
• The use of drip irrigation systems when possible or other water 
 conserving irrigation systems that utilize efficient sprinklers and 
 considerations given to prevailing winds. 

 
• Making sure that ornamental fountains or similar water features are 
 designed to recycle water and use minimal amounts of water. 
 
C. Water Reuse 
 
The goal for the City’s water reuse program is to reduce peak demand on 
the potable water system by switching non-potable uses of water, such as 
athletic field irrigation, to reuse water. In 2009, the City received 
authorization from the TCEQ to reuse its treated wastewater effluent from 
Wastewater Treatment Plant No. 2 as Type 1 reuse water, the highest 
quality of reuse water.    
 
The first phase of the reuse project completed in 2009, included the 
construction of reclaimed water infrastructure to serve the City’s 



CITY OF ROSENBERG  2014 WATER CONSERVATION PLAN 
 

Page 8 of 9 

Seabourne Creek Park and Athletic Complex. Athletic field irrigation and 
other landscaping water uses were converted from potable water to 
reclaimed water. In 2013, the City Council approved a reclaimed water 
distribution system master plan and completed phase two construction 
which expanded the distribution system network to areas beyond the park 
complex As part of the Phase Two project, the City partnered with Lamar 
Consolidated Independent School District (LCISD) to convert the athletic 
field and landscape irrigation uses at the B F Terry High School complex 
to reclaimed water. Full implementation of the reclaimed water use at B F 
Terry High School is scheduled for April 2014. Additional customers are 
also now able to connect to the reclaimed water distribution system for 
irrigation purposes.  When this system is fully implemented, it will provide 
in excess of 500,000 gallons per day of reclaimed water, further reducing 
demand on the potable water system.  In the future, the City plans to 
expand its water reuse program to include additional parks, school 
campuses and public spaces.  Consideration will be given to providing 
reuse water to area Municipal Utility Districts. 
 
The City has also converted two (2) major wastewater treatment plants 
from potable process and wash down water to non-potable process and 
wash down water. Wastewater Treatment Plant No. 2 was converted in 
2008 and Wastewater Treatment Plant No. 1A was converted in 2012.  
This has resulted in potable water use reduction exceeding one million 
gallons per month at each plant. 
 
Since its inception in 2009, the City has documented use of approximately 
170 million gallons of reclaimed/reuse water in lieu of potable water 
through fiscal year FY 2013, ending September 30, 2013,  

 
4.6 Reservoir Systems Operation Plan 
 
The City does not own any reservoirs within a common watershed or river basin.  
 
4.7  Records Management System  
 
The City administers a comprehensive record management system that accounts 
for water use characteristics throughout the water system and allows for the 
separation of aggregate water sales and water usage characteristics into 
customer-specific categories.  The system is configured to provide the following 
water use information:  
 

• Water production 
• Water sales 
• Water consumption 
• Water losses 

 



CITY OF ROSENBERG  2014 WATER CONSERVATION PLAN 
 

Page 9 of 9 

4.8  Requirement for Water Conservation Plans for Wholesale Water Supply 
 Contracts  
 
The City will, as part of contracts for the sale of water to any other entity re-
selling water, require that entity to adopt applicable provisions of the City’s water 
conservation and drought contingency plan or have a plan in effect previously 
adopted and meeting the basic requirements of 30 TAC Chapter 288.  These 
provisions will be through contractual agreement prior to the sale of any water to 
the water re-seller. 

 
4.9  Record Management and Performance Measures  
 
The City will compile an annual report on the Water Conservation Plan, to include 
the following: 

• Summary of public information issued in the previous year 
• Effectiveness of Water Conservation Plan in reducing peak and overall 

water consumption 
• Per capita water consumption for the previous calendar year 
• Implementation progress and status of plan 
 

4.10 Implementation and Enforcement  
 
Appendix A contains a copy of the City ordinance adopting this water 
conservation plan. The ordinance designates responsible officials to implement 
and enforce the water conservation plan.    
 
4.11 Coordination with Regional Water Planning Group 
 
Appendix B includes a copy of the letter sent to the Chair of Region H Water 
Planning Group with this water conservation plan. 
 
 



ORDINANCE NO. 2014-17 
 

 AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF 
THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS, BY DELETING ARTICLE III 
OF CHAPTER 10 THEREOF AND BY SUBSTITUTING 
THEREFOR A NEW ARTICLE III OF CHAPTER 10 THEREOF, 
ADOPTING A WATER CONSERVATION PLAN; PROVIDING A 
PENALTY IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $2000 FOR 
VIOLATION OF ANY PROVISION HEREOF; AND PROVIDING 
FOR SEVERABILITY. 

 
*  *  *  *  * 

 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG: 
 
 Section 1. The Code of Ordinances of the City of Rosenberg, Texas, is 

hereby amended by deleting Article III of Chapter 10 and substituting therefor a 

new Article III of Chapter 10 thereof, to provide as follows: 

 
 “ARTICLE III.  WATER CONSERVATION PLAN 

 
Section 10-50.  Adoption of water conservation plan. 
 

There is hereby adopted for the city a “water conservation 
plan,” dated April 2014, a true and correct copy of which is filed and 
maintained in the office of the city secretary.” 

 
Section 2. Any person who shall intentionally, knowingly, recklessly, or 

with criminal negligence, violate any provision of this Ordinance, shall be deemed 

guilty of a misdemeanor and, upon conviction, shall be fined in an amount not to 

exceed $2000.  Each day of violation shall constitute a separate offense. 

 

 Section 3. In the event any clause, phrase, provision, sentence, or part of 

this Ordinance or the application of the same to any person or circumstance shall 

for any reason be adjudged invalid or held unconstitutional by a court of competent 

jurisdiction, it shall not affect, impair, or invalidate this Ordinance as a whole or any 

part or provision hereof other than the part declared to be invalid or 

unconstitutional; and the City Council of the City of Rosenberg, Texas, declares 

that it would have passed each and every part of the same notwithstanding the 

reneel
Text Box
APPENDIX "A"



 2

omission of any such part thus declared to be invalid or unconstitutional, whether 

there be one or more parts. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED by a vote of ______ “ayes” in favor and 

_______ “noes” against on this first and final reading in full compliance with the 

provisions of Section 3.10 of the Charter of the City of Rosenberg on the ______ 

day of ____________, 2014. 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
 
             
Linda Cernosek, City Secretary    Vincent M. Morales, Jr., Mayor 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
       
Lora Jean D. Lenzsch, City Attorney 
 



 

OFFICE OF THE ASSISTANT CITY MANAGER OF PUBLIC SERVICES 
2110 4th Street * P.O. Box 32 * Rosenberg, Texas 77471-0032 

E-mail:  johnm@ci.rosenberg.tx.us * Main: (832) 595-3310 * Fax (832) 595-3311 
 

 
 
 
 
April 10, 2014 
 
 
Mr. Mark Evans, Chair 
Region H Water Planning Group 
c/o San Jacinto River Authority 
P.O. Box 329 
Conroe, TX 77305 
 
 
Re: Water Conservation Plan for the City of Rosenberg 

PWS #079003 
 
 
Dear Mr. Evans:  
 
Enclosed please find a copy of the Water Conservation Plan for the City of Rosenberg.  This plan 
and a copy of the City Council Ordinance adopting the plan (included as Appendix “A” to the plan) 
are being submitted in accordance with Texas Commission on Environmental Quality rules. 
 
This plan was approved by the City Council on April 15, 2014.  If you have any questions, please 
feel free to contact me by phone at (832) 595-3310 or email at johnm@ci.rosenberg.tx.us. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
John Maresh 
Assistant City Manager of Public Services 
 
JM/sn 
 
xc: Robert Gracia, City Manager 

Karl Zwahr, Utilities Director 
Charles Kalkomey, City Engineer 
Linda Cernosek, City Secretary 
Mike Turco, Fort Bend Subsidence District 
File/Correspondence 
 

encl:   Water Conservation Plan  
 

reneel
Text Box
APPENDIX "B"



D
R
A
FT

Utility Profile 
TWDB Form No. 1965 - R 
Revised on: 4/1/14 

Page 1 of 11 

 
 

UTILITY PROFILE FOR RETAIL WATER SUPPLIER 
 

Fill out this form as completely as possible. 
If a field does not apply to your entity, leave it blank. 

 
CONTACT INFORMATION 

 
 
Name of Utility:             
 
Public Water Supply Identification Number (PWS ID):        
 
Certificate of Convenience and Necessity (CCN) Number:        
 
Surface Water Right ID Number:        
 
Wastewater ID Number:        
 
Completed By:       Title:       
 
Address:        City:     Zip Code:    
 
Email:        Telephone Number:      
 
Date:     

 
Regional Water Planning Group:   Map 
 
Groundwater Conservation District:   Map 
 

Check all that apply: 
 

Received financial assistance of $500,000 or more from TWDB 
 
Have 3,300 or more retail connections 
 
Have a surface water right with TCEQ 

 
 
 

http://www.twdb.texas.gov/mapping/doc/maps/RWPAs_8x11.pdf
http://www.twdb.texas.gov/mapping/doc/maps/GCDs_8x11.pdf
reneel
Text Box
APPENDIX "C"



D
R
A
FT

Utility Profile 
TWDB Form No. 1965 - R 
Revised on: 9/1/13 

Page 2 of 11 

Section I: Utility Data 
 

A. Population and Service Area Data  
  

1. Current service area size in square miles:      
(Attach or email a copy of the service area map.) 
 

2. Provide historical service area population for the previous five years, starting with the 
most current year. 

 

 
3. Provide the projected service area population for the following decades.  
 

 
4. Describe the source(s)/method(s) for estimating current and projected populations. 
 

   
 

 

  

 

 

 

 

Year 
Historical Population  

Served By  
Retail Water Service 

Historical Population  
Served By  

Wholesale Water Service 

Historical Population  
Served By  

Wastewater Service 

    

    
    
    
    

Year 
Projected Population  

Served By  
Retail Water Service 

Projected Population  
Served By  

Wholesale Water Service 

Projected Population  
Served By  

Wastewater Service 

2020    
2030    
2040    
2050    
2060    



D
R
A
FT

Utility Profile 
TWDB Form No. 1965 - R 
Revised on: 9/1/13 

Page 3 of 11 

 

B. System Input 
 Provide system input data for the previous five years. 

Total System Input = Self-supplied + Imported – Exported 
 

Year 
Self-supplied 

Water in 
Gallons 

Purchased/Imported 
Water in Gallons 

Exported Water 
in Gallons 

Total System 
Input 

 
Total GPCD 

 
      
      
      
      
      

Historic 5-
year Average 

     

 
C. Water Supply System (Attach description of water system) 
 

1. Designed daily capacity of system       gallons per day. 
2. Storage Capacity:  

Elevated      gallons 
Ground       gallons  

 
3. List all current water supply sources in gallons. 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
                        *Select one of the following source types: Surface water, Groundwater, or Contract 

 
4. If surface water is a source type, do you recycle backwash to the head of the plant?

  Yes      estimated gallons per day   
No 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Water Supply Source Source Type* Total Gallons 
   
   
   
   
   
   



D
R
A
FT

Utility Profile 
TWDB Form No. 1965 - R 
Revised on: 9/1/13 

Page 4 of 11 

 

D. Projected Demands 
 

1. Estimate the water supply requirements for the next ten years using population 
trends, historical water use, economic growth, etc. 

 

Year Population Water Demands (gallons) 
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

 
2. Describe sources of data and how projected water demands were determined.  

Attach additional sheets if necessary. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



D
R
A
FT

Utility Profile 
TWDB Form No. 1965 - R 
Revised on: 9/1/13 

Page 5 of 11 

 

E. High Volume Customers 
 

1. List the annual water use, in gallons, for the five highest volume RETAIL customers. Select  
one of the following water use categories to describe the customer; choose Residential, 
Industrial, Commercial, Institutional, or Agricultural. 
 

Retail Customer Water Use Category* Annual Water Use  Treated or Raw 
    
    
    
    
    
*For definitions on recommended customer categories for classifying customer water use, refer to the online Guidance and 
Methodology for Reporting on Water Conservation and Water Use.  
 

2. If applicable, list the annual water use for the five highest volume WHOLESALE 
customers.  Select one of the following water use categories to describe the customer; 
choose Municipal, Industrial, Commercial, Institutional, or Agricultural. 

 

Wholesale Customer Water Use Category* Annual Water Use Treated or Raw 
    
    
    
    
    
*For definitions on recommended customer categories for classifying customer water use, refer to the online Guidance and 
Methodology for Reporting on Water Conservation and Water Use.  

 

F. Utility Data Comment Section 
 Provide additional comments about utility data below. 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

http://www.twdb.texas.gov/conservation/doc/SB181Guidance.pdf
http://www.twdb.texas.gov/conservation/doc/SB181Guidance.pdf
http://www.twdb.texas.gov/conservation/doc/SB181Guidance.pdf
http://www.twdb.texas.gov/conservation/doc/SB181Guidance.pdf


D
R
A
FT

Utility Profile 
TWDB Form No. 1965 - R 
Revised on: 9/1/13 

Page 6 of 11 

Section II: System Data 
 
A. Retail Connections 

1. List the active retail connections by major water use category.   
 

Water Use Category* 
Active Retail Connections  

Metered Unmetered Total 
Connections 

Percent of Total 
Connections 

Residential – Single Family     
Residential – Multi-family (units)     
Industrial      
Commercial      
Institutional      
Agricultural     

TOTAL     
*For definitions on recommended customer categories for classifying customer water use, refer to the online Guidance and 
Methodology for Reporting on Water Conservation and Water Use.  
 

2. List the net number of new retail connections by water use category for the 
previous five years.  

 

*For definitions on recommended customer categories for classifying customer water use, refer to the online Guidance and 
Methodology for Reporting on Water Conservation and Water Use.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Water Use Category* 
Net Number of New Retail Connections 

Residential – Single 
Family 

     

Residential – Multi-
family (units) 

     

Industrial       
Commercial       
Institutional       
Agricultural      

TOTAL      

http://www.twdb.texas.gov/conservation/doc/SB181Guidance.pdf
http://www.twdb.texas.gov/conservation/doc/SB181Guidance.pdf
http://www.twdb.texas.gov/conservation/doc/SB181Guidance.pdf
http://www.twdb.texas.gov/conservation/doc/SB181Guidance.pdf


D
R
A
FT

Utility Profile 
TWDB Form No. 1965 - R 
Revised on: 9/1/13 

Page 7 of 11 

 

B. Accounting Data  
For the previous five years, enter the number of gallons of RETAIL water provided in each 
major water use category.  

 

Water Use Category* 
Total Gallons of Retail Water 

Residential - Single Family      
Residential – Multi-family      
Industrial      
Commercial      
Institutional      
Agricultural      

TOTAL      
*For definitions on recommended customer categories for classifying customer water use, refer to the online Guidance and 
Methodology for Reporting on Water Conservation and Water Use.  
 

C. Residential Water Use 
For the previous five years, enter the residential GPCD for single family and multi-family 
units.  

 

Water Use Category* 
Residential GPCD 

Residential - Single Family      
Residential – Multi-family      

     
 

D. Annual and Seasonal Water Use 
 1. For the previous five years, enter the gallons of treated water provided to RETAIL 

customers. 
 

Month 
Total Gallons of Treated Retail Water 

January      
February      
March      
April      
May      
June      
July      
August      
September      
October      
November      
December      

TOTAL      
 
 
 

http://www.twdb.texas.gov/conservation/doc/SB181Guidance.pdf
http://www.twdb.texas.gov/conservation/doc/SB181Guidance.pdf


D
R
A
FT

Utility Profile 
TWDB Form No. 1965 - R 
Revised on: 9/1/13 

Page 8 of 11 

2. For the previous five years, enter the gallons of raw water provided to RETAIL 
customers. 

 

Month 
Total Gallons of Raw Retail Water 

January      
February      
March      
April      
May      
June      
July      
August      
September      
October      
November      
December      

TOTAL      
 
3. Summary of seasonal and annual water use. 

 

Water Use 
Seasonal and Annual Water Use 

Average in 
Gallons 

Summer Retail 
(Treated + Raw) 

      
_______________ 

5yr Average 

TOTAL Retail 
(Treated + Raw) 

      
_                                   

5yr Average 
 

E. Water Loss  
Provide Water Loss data for the previous five years.  
Water Loss GPCD = [Total Water Loss in Gallons ÷ Permanent Population Served] ÷ 365 
Water Loss Percentage = [Total Water Loss ÷ Total System Input] x 100  

  

Year Total Water Loss 
in Gallons 

Water Loss 
in GPCD 

Water Loss 
as a Percentage 

    
    
    
    
    

5-year average    
 

 
 
 
 



D
R
A
FT

Utility Profile 
TWDB Form No. 1965 - R 
Revised on: 9/1/13 

Page 9 of 11 

 

F. Peak Water Use  
Provide the Average Daily Water Use and Peak Day Water Use for the previous five years.  
 

Year Average Daily Use (gal) Peak Day Use (gal) Ratio (peak/avg) 

    
    
    
    
    

 

G. Summary of Historic Water Use 
 

Water Use 
Category Historic 5-year Average Percent of Connections Percent of Water Use 

Residential SF    
Residential MF    
Industrial    
Commercial    
Institutional    
Agricultural    

 
H. System Data Comment Section 
 Provide additional comments about system data below. 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



D
R
A
FT

Utility Profile 
TWDB Form No. 1965 - R 
Revised on: 9/1/13 

Page 10 of 11 

Section III: Wastewater System Data 
If you do not provide wastewater system services then you have completed 
the Utility Profile.  Save and Print this form to submit with your Plan.  
Continue with the Water Conservation Plan Checklist to complete your 
Water Conservation Plan. 
 
A. Wastewater System Data (Attach a description of your wastewater system.) 
 

1. Design capacity of wastewater treatment plant(s):       
gallons per day.  

 
2. List the active wastewater connections by major water use category. 
 

Water Use Category* 

Active Wastewater Connections  
Metered Unmetered Total 

Connections 
Percent of Total 

Connections 
Municipal     
Industrial      
Commercial      
Institutional      
Agricultural     

TOTAL     
 
2. What percent of water is serviced by the wastewater system?  % 
 
3. For the previous five years, enter the number of gallons of wastewater that was 

treated by the utility. 
 

Month 
Total Gallons of Treated Wastewater 

January      
February      
March      
April      
May      
June      
July      
August      
September      
October      
November      
December      

TOTAL      

http://www.twdb.texas.gov/conservation/municipal/plans/doc/WCPChecklist.pdf


D
R
A
FT

Utility Profile 
TWDB Form No. 1965 - R 
Revised on: 9/1/13 

Page 11 of 11 

 
4. Can treated wastewater be substituted for potable water?  

Yes  No 
 

B. Reuse Data 
 
1. Provide data on the types of recycling and reuse activities implemented during the 

current reporting period. 
 

Type of Reuse  Total Annual Volume (in gallons) 
On-site irrigation  
Plant wash down  
Chlorination/de-chlorination  
Industrial  
Landscape irrigation (parks, golf courses)  
Agricultural  
Discharge to surface water   
Evaporation pond  
Other  

TOTAL  
 
C. Wastewater System Data Comment 
 Provide additional comments about wastewater system data below. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

You have completed the Utility Profile.  Save and Print this form to submit with your Plan. Continue with the Water 
Conservation Plan Checklist to complete your Water Conservation Plan. 

http://www.twdb.texas.gov/conservation/municipal/plans/doc/WCPChecklist.pdf
http://www.twdb.texas.gov/conservation/municipal/plans/doc/WCPChecklist.pdf


Sec. 29-50. Metered rates; charge for late payment; senior citizen discount; outside city rates; prorated service; 

construction water usage; bulk water rates. 

(a) The city will furnish water through meters, and the following charges will be made by the city for water furnished to consumers:  

(1) Single-family residences. Rates for single-family residences shall be as follows:  

a. The minimum monthly charge for single-family residences shall be the sum of ten dollars and twenty-

eight cents ($10.28), for which up to two thousand (2,000) gallons of water may be used.  

b. For use of over two thousand (2,000) gallons up to ten thousand (10,000) gallons, there shall be a 

charge of two dollars and fifty cents ($2.50) per thousand gallons.  

c. For all water used over ten thousand (10,000) gallons, there shall be a charge of two dollars and eighty-

eight cents ($2.88) per thousand gallons.  

(2) Multiple-dwelling units. Rates for multiple-dwelling units shall be as follows:  

a. The monthly water usage charge for a multiple-dwelling unit that is separately metered shall be 

calculated by applying the rates established for single-family residences.  

b. The monthly water usage charge for a multiple-dwelling unit complex that is master metered shall be 

calculated by dividing the total water usage by the total number of dwelling units and applying the rates 

established for single-family residences. The monthly water usage charge for such multiple-dwelling unit 

complex shall be determined by multiplying the charge per dwelling unit by the total number of dwelling 

units. The number of dwelling units for mobile home and travel trailer parks shall be determined by 

calculating the number of available spaces.  

(3) Commercial/industrial users. The minimum monthly charge for commercial/industrial uses for up to two thousand 

(2,000) gallons of water shall be based on meter size, as described below. All water used over two thousand (2,000) 

gallons will be two dollars and fifty cents ($2.50) per thousand gallons.  

 

Meter Size  Minimum Charge 
per Unit 

¾ inch  $10.28 

1 inch  $30.85 

2 inch  $51.41 

3 inch  $71.97 

4 inch  $113.10 

6 inch  $154.23 

 (4) Combination residential and commercial/industrial users. Combination residential and commercial/industrial users 

whose primary activity is not commercial/industrial related will be classified as multiple-dwelling units and will be 

charged using the multiple-dwelling unit formula at one hundred (100) percent of the minimum single-family 

residence monthly usage and rate. Combination residential and commercial/industrial users whose primary activity 

is commercial/industrial in nature shall be charged the appropriate commercial/industrial rates.  

(5) All customers with a separate fire line and meter installed, will be billed a minimum monthly charge of seven dollars 

and fifty cents ($7.50) unless there is consumption, and then the appropriate metered rate class charges will apply 

above the minimum.  

(b) Charge for late payments. All fees become due upon the city's issuance of a monthly bill and are payable on the date stated on 

the bill. Payments received after the due date stated on the bill shall be subject to a ten (10) percent charge on the unpaid 

current balance. On an individual basis, customer accounts that have a twelve-month history of no late fees charged, can 

request to have a one-time waiver of the charge for late payment. Residential accounts for the principal residence only of 

reneel
Text Box
APPENDIX "D"



persons over the age of sixty-five (65) shall not be subject to the charge for late payments as prescribed in this section. Persons 

over the age of sixty-five (65) may declare only one (1) principal residence for which he is responsible for payment of the 

monthly bill. However, such accounts are subject to all other fines and fees as prescribed herein.  

(c) Persons over the age of sixty-five (65) shall receive a discount of one dollar ($1.00) on single-family residential water service 

and one dollar ($1.00) on single-family residential sewer service, upon application to the customer service department.  

(d) All users of city water service outside city limits shall pay one and one-half (1½) times the amount of the applicable minimum 

charge as set forth in subsection (a) and one and one-half (1½) times the amount of all applicable charges as set forth in 

subsection (a) for water used above the minimum charge.  

(e) Customers shall be billed minimum charges for the first and last months of service for water and wastewater service on a 

prorated basis of the actual number of days service was provided. Solid waste charges for the first and last months of service 

shall be based on the city's actual cost to the contracted solid waste collection company.  

(f) Construction water usage. Upon receipt of an application for service and the required deposit and installation fee as set forth in 

section 29-36(c), the city will provide a hydrant meter for the purposes of measuring the construction water usage if available. 

The meter shall be read in accordance with section 29-49 and water usage shall be billed at the rate of thirty-five dollars 

($35.00) per month minimum for the first two thousand (2,000) gallons, and four dollars ($4.00) per one thousand (1,000) 

gallons thereafter. The deposit described herein will be refunded after all water charges have been paid and it has been 

determined that the fire hydrant and hydrant meter have not been damaged.  

(g) Bulk water usage. The taking of bulk water shall be allowed only from a designated hydrant and shall be during the normal 

business hours, Monday through Friday, except holidays, unless an application for after-hours delivery is filed by the customer 

and approved. Bulk water customers will be responsible for paying overtime charges incurred at twenty dollars ($20.00/hour) 

with a minimum charge of one (1) hour, if applicable, in addition to the rate of thirty-five dollars ($35.00) for the first two 

thousand (2,000) gallons, and four dollars ($4.00) per one thousand (1,000) gallons thereafter assessed for the usage of bulk 

water within the city limits.  

(h) Wholesale water usage.  

(1) The purchase of wholesale water shall be allowed in accordance with an agreement with a specific entity approved 

by the Rosenberg City Council. Wholesale water customers shall be responsible for individual meter reading, 

billing, collection of monthly payments, termination of water service, and repair/maintenance of the water meters. 

Secondly, the entity shall be responsible for installation of a water interconnect with the Rosenberg water 

distribution system at a location approved by the Rosenberg City Council. Wholesale water customers shall be 

billed at a rate of 82.47 percent of Rosenberg's commercial water rate.  

(2) For wholesale water customers, monthly payments on water usage shall be made to the City of Rosenberg within 

thirty (30) days of the date the city prints the monthly bill. Failure to submit payment within thirty (30) days will 

result in a late fee of ten (10) percent charge on the unpaid current balance.  

(i) A water subsidence fee (GRP fee) surcharge of one dollar and twenty cents ($1.20) per one thousand (1,000) gallons shall be 

charged for all water used. Such water subsidence fee shall be applicable to all water customers including single-family 

residences, multiple-dwelling units, commercial/industrial users, combination residential and commercial/industrial users, 

construction water usage, bulk water usage and wholesale water usage.  

(j) Reclaimed/recycled water usage. The purchase of reclaimed/recycled water shall be allowed in accordance with city 

policies/requirements and with an agreement with a specific customer approved by the city manager. A minimum monthly 

charge for up to two thousand (2,000) gallons of reclaimed/recycled water shall be based upon meter size, as described below. 

All reclaimed/recycled water used over two thousand (2,000) gallons will be two dollars and fifty cents ($2.50) per thousand 

gallons.  

 

 



Meter Size Minimum Monthly Charge 

¾ inch $10.28 

1 inch $10.28 

2 inch $10.28 

3 inch $71.97 

4 inch $113.10 

6 inch $154.23 

  

No Subsidence Fee (GRP Fee) shall be charged for reclaimed/recycled water used.  

(Ord. No. 2008-33, § 1, 9-16-08; Ord. No. 2009-14, §§ 1, 2, 4-7-09; Ord. No. 2010-09, § 1, 3-16-10; Ord. No. 2011-01, § 1, 1-4-11, eff. 3-1-11; Ord. No. 2011-

13, § 1, 6-7-11; Ord. No. 2011-18, § 1, 8-16-11; Ord. No. 2011-33, § 1, 11-15-11; Ord. No. 2012-25, § 1, 7-17-12; Ord. No. 2013-17, § 1, 3-19-13 ; Ord. No. 

2013-33, § 1, 8-20-13 )  

Editor's note—  

Section 3 of Ord. No. 2011-33 states the rates and charges adopted by this ordinance shall become effective January 1, 2012.  

 







oRD|NANCE NO.2009-17

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF
THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS, BY ADDING A NEW
ARTICLE III OF CHAPTER 1O THEREOF, ADOPTING A WATER
CONSERVATION PLAN; PROVIDING A PENALTY lN AN
AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $2OOO FOR VIOLATION OF ANY
PROVIS¡ON HEREOF; AND PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY.

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG:

Section 1. The Code of Ordinances of the City of Rosenberg, Texas, is
hereby amended by adding a new Article lll of Chapter 10 thereof, to provide as

follows:

..ARTICLE III. WATER CONSERVATION PLAN

Section 10-50. Adoption of water conservation plan.

There is hereby adopted for the city a "water conservation
plan," dated April 2009, a true and correct copy of which is filed and
maintained in the office of the city secretary."

Section 2. Any person who shall intentionally, knowingly, recklessly, or
with criminal negligence, violate any provision of this Ordinance, shall be deemed
guilty of a misdemeanor and, upon conviction, shall be fined in an amount not to
exceed $2000. Each day of violation shall constitute a separate offense.

Section 3. ln the event any clause, phrase, provision, sentence, or part of
this Ordinance or the application of the same to any person or circumstance shall
for any reason be adjudged invalid or held unconstitutional by a court of competent
jurisdiction, it shall not affect, impair, or invalidate this Ordinance as a whole or any
part or provision hereof other than the part declared to be invalid or
unconstitutional; and the City Council of the City of Rosenberg, Texas, declares
that it would have passed each and every part of the same notwithstanding the
omission of any such part thus declared to be invalid or unconstitutional, whether
there be one or more parts.

-A"ayes" 
in favor and

U "noes" against on this first and final reading in full compliancewrþjf¡e
provisio¡ç of $çtion 3.10 of the Charter of the City of Rosenberg on the ' flli-
day of

ROSENBERG/Art.¡ I l-Ch. 1 0/3.25.09



APPROVED:ffilþ
k, Gity Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

y, Mayor

William A. Olson, Jr.
CITY ATTORNEY

ROSENBERG/Art.l I l-Ch.1 0/3.25.09



il¡r\ I'f #'i- f 

nr

CITY OF ROSENBERG

WATER CONSERVATION PLAN

April 2009

Public Water Supply ldentification Number. 0790003
Fort Bend County

John Maresh, Utilities Director
Karl Zwahr, Utilities Superintendent

P.O. Box 32
2110 Fourth Street

Rosenberg , TX 77 471-0032
832-595-3500

www. ci. rosenberq.tx. us

City Engineer
Charles A. Kalkomey, P.E., RPLS

Jones & Carter, lnc.

$



CITY OF ROSENBERG 2OO9 WATER CONSERVATION PLAN

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Section 1 - lntroduction & Purpose
Section 2 - Utility Profile
Section 3 - Conservation Goals
Section 4 - Water Conservation Plan Elements
Appendix A:ORDINANCE OF THE ROSENBERG CITY COUNCIL
ADOPTING WATER CONSERVATION PLAN
Appendix B :Transmittal letter to TWDB Region H Regional Water Planning

Group
Appendix C: Water Conservation Utility Profile (WRD-264)
Appendix D: Water Utility Rates

3

3
4
5
A

B

c
D

Page 2 of 9



CITY OF ROSENBERG 2OO9 WATER CONSERVATION PLAN

Section 1 - lntroduction & Purpose

The City of Rosenberg (the "City"), a community located within central Fort Bend
County Texas, recognizing the need for efficient use of existing water supply and
treatment facilities shall adopt the following water conseryation plan for the
purposes of identifying and establishing principals and practices to effectively
monitor and conserve the efficient use of available water supplies and distribution
system capacity. The plan was prepared in general accordance with The Texas
Water Development Board's water conservation plan requirements contained in

Title 31, Part 10, Chapter 363, Subchapter A, Rule 363.15 of the Texas
Administrative Code.

Section 2 - Utilitv Profile

2.1 General lnformation & Population

The City's Water Utilities Department manages a water distribution service area
of approximately 16.5 square miles and serves a population of over 30,000
residents. The area consists primarily of single family and light commercial with
some scattered industrial development. Currently, the area is partially
developed, but substantial growth is anticipated. The City provides potable water
to its customers through a network of over 152 miles of transmission and
distribution lines that provide service to 12,072 active water connections. The
official U.S. Census population count for the City in 2000 was 24,043, an

increase of 160/o from the 1990 Census.

2.2 Water Use Data, Supply System & Wastewater System

Appendix C to this Water Conservation Plan is an evaluation of the City's water
and wastewater system completed using the TWDB's Water Conservation Utility
Profile (WRD-264). The profìle includes information regarding population,

customer data, water use data, water supply system information, and wastewater
treatment system information.

Page 3 of9



CITY OF ROSENBERG 2OO9 WATER CONSERVATION PLAN

Section 3 - Conservation Goals

3.1 Five (5) & Ten (10) Year Targets

The purpose of this water conservation plan is to reduce long{erm demand on
limited water resources by encouraging more efficient water use practices in the
City of Rosenberg, Table 1 below shows historical and projected per capita
municipal water use for the City in gallons per capita per day (gpcd). Municipal
use is the total water use less wholesale sales to other another utility for resale
less sales to industrial users.

Table l. Municipal Per Capita Water Use

Parameter
Highest

Histoncal
(GPCD)

Gc

Fire Year
Goal

(GPCD)

als
Ten Year

Goal
(GPCD)

Per Capita Water Usage 103

Proiected Per Caoita Water Usaqe 100 95

The City's water conservation goals include the following.

1. Achieve a 2014 per capita municipal water use of 100 gpcd (five year
goal) and a 2019 per capita municipal water use of 95gpcd (ten year goal).

2. Continue the City's program of universal metering and meter
maintenance.

3, Continue to keep the level of unaccounted water in the system less than
10 percent in2014 and subsequent years.

4. Raise public awareness of water conservation and encourage responsible
public behavior though public education and information programs, as
discussed in Section 4.3

3.2 Schedule

The State Water Conservation lmplementation Task Force recommends that
municipalities set goals of reducing per capita consumption by 1o/o pêt year. The
goals proposed in this plan are structured so that consumption is reduced by 1%
each year, meeting the ultimate goal within ten years. The City will periodically
evaluate the plan in accordance with State and Federal regulations to determine
the extent, if any, that the plan needs modification.

Page 4 of9



CITY OF ROSENBERG 2OO9 WATER CONSERVATION PLAN

Section 4 - Water Conservation Plan Elements

4.1 Metering of Raw Water & Universal Metering

The City meters all water produced at water plant facilities. Meters at City water
production facilities are calibrated and tested at a maximum of three (3) year
intervals in accordance with American Water Works Association (A\AIWA)

standards to provide a minimum accuracy of plus or minus five percent (5%).

The ability to meter all water distribution and consumption uses allows the City to
closely monitor actual water use, water losses, and prevent unauthorized use.
All service connections in the City are metered. All production wells, pumping
stations, interconnections, irrigation, parks, and municipal structures operated by
the City are metered.

The City meters all water delivered by the City and will continue to provide a

preventive maintenance program for its water meters, wherein regular scheduled
testing, repairs, and replacement are performed in accordance with American
Water Works Association (A\ÂA/I/A) standards.

4.2 Determination and Control of Water Loss

The goal of the City's water loss control program is to maintain unbilled water at
or below 10% of water produced, on a monthly basis, ln order to meet this goal,
the City has several programs in place, including routine water audits, visual
inspections, a program of leak detection and repair, and meter testing and
accuracy.

A. Routine Audits of Water System

The City Customer Services Department generates a monthly water loss
report that compares metered production with metered consumption, as
well as accounted-for and unaccounted-for water losses. This report
provides an effective tracking system of water loss. The City will also
complete a detailed water system audit following Texas Water
Development Board (TWDB) guidelines at least once each year. TWDB
rules only require this audit to be submitted once every five years. The
water system audit determines the volume of actual water loss, the
identification of water loss sources, the status and condition of primary
water meters, an analysis of water line breaks, an evaluation of
underground leakage potential, and provides recommendations for meter
replacement.

Page 5 of9



CITY OF ROSENBERG 2OO9 WATER CONSERVATION PLAN

B. Leak Detection and Repair

The City administers a leak detection and repair program for its water
distribution system. This program features a work order prioritization
system for leaks needing repair and an inventory of equipment and
materials needed to promptly repair all detected or reported leaks. The
City's Capital lmprovement Plan to upgrade its water distribution system
also addresses high volume leaks.

4.3 Continuing Public Education Program

The City promotes water conservation issues by informing the general public in
the following ways:

¡ Making water conservation information available to new customers
o Providing water conservation information to all customers upon request
. Coordinating education presentations, lectures, and demonstrations for

schools, civic groups, and the general public upon request
o Publishing water conservation information on a regular basis in the City's

utility bill insert or other written form
. Continue sponsorship of the Water Wise Program administered by the

Fort Bend Subsidence District. This program teaches direct water
conservation principals and concepts to public school elementary students
who reside within the City's service area.

4.4 Non Promotional Water Rate Structure

The City's water rate structure utilizes the cost-of-service method, which is based
on costs incurred for services provided by the Water Utilities Department. The
current rate structure charges monthly service charges based on meter size, plus
a uniform water usage rate per thousand (1,000) gallons (City Ordinance No.
2008-33). A copy of the current water rate structure is included as Appendix D.

The City utilizes an inclining water rate structure to encourage residential
customers to reduce both peak and overall water usage, while fairly allocating
cost of service to each customer class. Under an inclining rate structure, the rate
per thousand galtons increases as the amount of water used increases. This
rate structure is reviewed on a regular basis to ensure that the rates adequately
recover the cost of service and meet the goals of this water conservation plan.

Page 6 of9



CITY OF ROSENBERG 2OO9 WATER CONSERVATION PLAN

4.5 Optional Plan Elements

A. Plumbing Code and Retrofit Program

The City has adopted the lnternational Plumbing Code, which requires the
use of water saving, Ultra Low Flow (ULF) fixtures to be installed in new
construction and in the replacement of plumbing in existing structures.

The City educates the residents, plumbers, and contractors on the
benefits of retrofitting existing facilities with water saving devices through
its public education program. ln addition, the City will evaluate the
feasibility and cost effectiveness of implementing an Ultra-Low Flow (ULF)

rebate program or similar incentive program that would offer cash rebates
or other incentives to water customers that replace old toilets,
showerheads, and other fixtures with new ULF models.

B. Landscape Water Management

The City provides information about the methods and benefits of water
conserving landscaping practices and devices, through public education to
homeowners, business owners, landscape architects and designers, and

irrigation professionals. The following methods are encouraged:

o The use of Xeriscape (trademark) and "Water Wise" landscaping
techniques, including drought tolerant plants and grasses for
landscaping new homes and commercial areas.

o The use of drip irrigation systems when possible or other water
conserving irrigation systems that utilize efficient sprinklers and
considerations given to prevailing winds.

. Making sure that ornamental fountains or similar water features are
designed to recycle water and use minimal amounts of water.

C. Water Reuse

ln 2009, the City plans to receive authorization from the TCEQ to reuse its
treated wastewater effluent from Wastewater Treatment Plant No, 2 as

Type 1 reuse water, the highest quality of reuse water. The goal for the
City's water reuse program is to reduce peak demand on the potable
water system by switching non-potable uses of water, such as athletic field
irrigation, to reuse water.

The first part of this plan will include extending reclaimed water
infrastructure to the City's Seabourne Creek Park and Athletic Complex.
The City hopes to complete the first phase of its water reuse program by

PageT of9



CITY OF ROSENBERG 2OO9 WATER CONSERVATION PLAN

2010. When this system is fully implemented, it will provide nearly 500,000
gallons per day of reclaimed water to the park, reducing demand on the
potable water system. ln the future, the City plans to expand its water
reuse program to include additional parks and public spaces.
Consideration will be given to providing reuse water to area Municipal
Utility Districts. Also an expansion project of the existing Wastewater
Treatment Plant No. 2 in 2008 included the installation of a non-potable
water system for use within the facility operations. This has resulted in
potable water use reduction exceeding one million gallons per month.

4.6 Reservoir Systems Operation Plan

The City does not own any reservoirs within a common watershed or river basin.

4.7 Records Management System

The City administers a comprehensive record management system that accounts
for water use characteristics throughout the water system and allows for the
separation of aggregate water sales and water usage characteristics into
customer-specific categories. The system is configured to provide the following
water use information:

. Water production
o Water sales
. Water consumption
. Water losses

4.8 Requirement for Water Conservation Plans for Wholesale Water Supply
Contracts

The City will, as part of contracts for the sale of water to any other entity re-
selling water, require that entity to adopt applicable provisions of the City's water
conservation and drought contingency plan or have a plan in effect previously
adopted and meeting the basic requirements of 30 TAC Chapter 288. These
provisions will be through contractual agreement prior to the sale of any water to
the water re-seller.

4.9 Record Management and Performance Measures

The City will compile an annual report on the Water Conservation Plan, to include
the following:

. Summary of public information issued in the previous year
o Effectiveness of Water Conservation Plan in reducing peak and overall

water consumption
. Per capita water consumption for the previous calendar year
. lmplementation progress and status of plan

Page 8 of9



CITY OF ROSENBERG 2OO9 WATER CONSERVATION PLAN

4.10 lmplementation and Enforcement

Appendix A contains a copy of the City ordinance adopting this water
conservation plan. The ordinance designates responsible officials to implement
and enforce the water conservation plan.

4.11 Coordination with Regional Water Planning Group

Appendix B includes a copy of the letter sent to the Chair of Region H Water
Planning Group with this water conservation plan.

Page 9 of9



Appendix "4"
Ordinance of the City of Rosenberg City Council Adopting the Water Conservation Plan

oRDINANCE NO.200s-17

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF
THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS, BY ADD]NG A NEW
ARTICLE III OF CHAPTER 1O THEREOF, ADOPTING A WATER
CONSERVATION PLAN; PROVIDING A PENALTY lN AN
AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $2OOO FOR VIOLATION OF ANY
PROVISION HEREOF; AND PROVIÐlNG FOR $EVERABILITY.

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG:

Section 1. The Code of Ordinances of the City of Rosenberg, TeXas, is

hereby amended by adding a new Article lll of Chapter 10 thereof, to provide as

follows:

,.ARTICLE III. WATER CONSERVATION PLAN

Section 10-50. Adoption of water conservation plan'

There is hereby adopted for the city a "water conservation
plan," dated April 2009, a true and correct copy of which is filed and
maintained in the office of the city secretary."

Section 2. Any person who shall intentionally, knowingly, recklessly, or

with criminal negligence, violate any provision of this Ordinance, shall þe deemed
guilty of a misdemeanor and, upon conviction, shall be fined in an amount not to
exceed $2CI00. Each day of violation shall constitute a separate offense'

Section 3. ln the event any clause, phrase, provision, sentence, or part of

this Ordinance or the application of the same to any person or circumstance shall

for any reason be adjudged invalid or held unconstitutional by a court of competent
jurisdiction, it shall not affect, impair, or invalidate this Ordinance as a whole or any
part or provision hereof other than the part declared to be invalid or

unconstitutional; and the City Council of the City of Rosenberg, Texas, declares

that it would have passed each and every part of the same notwithstanding the

omission of any such part thus declared to be invalid or unconstitutional, whether

there be one or more parts.
rJ

i PASSED AND APPROVED by a vote ot t "ayes" in favor and/', r¡,LlùùElJ AlllJ ,{rrf\LrYElJ uy d vulrt ul 
----l-- 

qyve rrr rqvv¡ err\

{j "noes" against on this first and final reading in full compliance *'¡ryff.
nro'iisionq of Sectinn 3.10 of the Charter of the Citv of Rosenberq on the " i +1; -provisiopq of n 3.10 of the Charter of the City of Rosenberg on the " ¡'{t..-
day of

RoSENBERc/Art. ll l-Ch. 1 0/3.25.09

2009.



APPROVED:

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

l^J'ã ü7 ¿*.
William A" Olson, Jr.
CITY ATTORNEY

ROSENBERG/Ad.lll"Ch.10/3.25.09



wry

Appendix "8"

April 9, 2009

Mr. Mark Evans, Chair
Region H Water Planning Group
c/o Harris-Galveston Coastal Subsidence District
1660 W. Bay Area Boulevard
Friendswood, Texas 77 546

RE: Water Conservation Plan for the City of Rosenberg
PWS # 0790003

Dear Mr. Evans:

Enclosed please find a copy of the Water Conservation Plan for the City of
Rosenberg, This plan and a copy of the City Council Ordinance adopting the
plan (included as Appendix "A" to the plan) are being submitted in accordance
with Texas Commission on Environmental Quality rules,

This plan was approved by the City Council on April 7, 2009. lf you have any
questions, please feel free to contact me by phone at (832)595-3500 or email at
ioh nm@ci, rosenbers.tx. us.

Sincerely,

þt+tq*,þ-
John Maresh
Utilities Director

cc: Jack Hamlett, City Manager
Karl Zwahr, Utilities Superintendent
Charles Kalkomey, City Engineer
Linda Cernosek, City Secretary
Tom Michel, Fort Bend Subsidence District

Office of Utililies Dlrector
P.O. Box 32'222A Fourth Street * Rosenberg, Texas77471

Main: (832)595-3500 * Fax (832) 595-3501



Appendix "C"

'lhe prr¡rose of the Utilily Profile is to assist wítl¡ water conscrvâtion platt developtnenl

and io cnsurc thnl impoilant jnfonnation and data bs considered when preparing yourand to onsurc thnl imporlant jnfonnatíon and data bs considered when prepanng your

w&ter cÕnservation plan and its target and goats, Irloase complcte all questions as cornpletely and objectively

as possible. Se,e l(àrcr Conseflaion Ptan Gultlunce Checklt,tt (WRD-022) for i¡tlonnatioil on ôlher wster

conservation provioions. You may contaçl tho Muniolpal Water Conservatíon Unit of fl¡e TWDB at 512'936'

2391 for assistonce,

wRD-264 (2'25-05)

TEX,A,S \ryATER DEVELOPMANT BOARI)

UTILITY PROFILE

Name of Utility: Citv of Rosenbero

Address &,Z;î1>: 21 10" t-o,pr,tjr -9-!r.99t,..Roge.lberg, Texas..774Z1-0Q-3.2... -.- - *... -. . ...

1'elephone Nurnber: "932-595-3Þgq-- Fax: - 9*3?-595-359'1 ,- .

Fonn Cornplete<l By: John.Meresh-*. . . .. .,". Title: Ptllitiqs*.Qlrector - .-.

signnû'e: q<¿*fn"-¡=- 
-

Date: 4-7-2009

Naurc and Pl¡onc Nr¡tnl¡er of Pelson/Dcparhnent responsible for implcmenting n water

conscrvation prograrn:

Narnel* John Maresh Phoner. B3?:990-3Q-00 - -- .

I,

A,

CUSTOMER DATA

Populatlon and Scrvice Area D¡tn

1, Please attach n copy of your Certificate of Convonicnce arrd Ncccssìty (CCN) fi'om

the TÇEQ

2, Servics alea sizc (squaro niles):- 19.9---.

Page I



3. cunent population of service area:-- 3_p,89J

4, Current popuÌation served by utility; a: \ryatcr _ 99,897 . -. *
b:wastewater_32,3?9._ .*

5, Population served by water utility 6, Projected population for
for the prevíous five years:

Year Population
.2004 2e.q33 ,..
.2005 . * 30.405_"..
.2006 ,u,9_4.6-...
.2002. .. 32.979
_2008 _ 33.897

sorvice area ur the following
dccades:

Year Population
2010 9.5,000
2020 .43,0p0.*.
2030 .4e,4_q0
2040 -5,0"_867_,2o5o ,6p,.400....

?. List source(s)/method(s) for the calculation of cur¡ent and projected population:

2008,,City of &q.enþerg Watefi$&$tewalellmpact-Egç Study, w-hich .

inelrrdod the trT.l

B. Active Connections

l, Cunent number of active connectio¡rs by user type. If not a separate classification, check
whether multi-family service is counted as Residcntial 

- 

or Commercial -.-

Tlegted water users: Metered Noþmeterqd Total

Rcsidential-Single-Family 7.0?0"._"

Residential.Multí-Family 3.709

7,020

9,709,, ,

.1,Q4.9*-,

b

^
.21".0 ...

Commercial

Industrial

Publis

Other

.J*p4e_.. ,

q_.
69

214

I

Page 2



2, List tho net number of now connections pcr ycar for most recsnt three yoars:

Yea¡ 2006 2007 2008

Residential-Single-Family q1q -. ?48--. -..- :1,9.9- --..

Residential-Multi-Family 1 (308) q.,, 
- 

.q . *
23 35 24Commercial

lndusfrial

Public

Other

.1 _0_j
012
29. --..-. 4-. * .u^- -

C. High Volume Customers

List annual wateruse for the five highest volume retail and wholesale customers

(Please indicate if treated or raïv watar delivery.) 
bdlc.rg

Cusúomçr Use (I.000ga1./yr.) Treated OR"Bzury

(1) L.g,mqr,Ç-J.S,D,",. 32.422 ,.,,,"---. Trç-êted -- . ,

(2) Nelv"Qqg-gt Prop, 25.53S .,. *.. .Tlç.aipd
Club of the Brazos(3) .AÈârtmenfs.- *-.* ?1.,9Ê.5...,,.. - ."....* -Treated.,..
Brittany Square(4) .Apartnlents .?0,,991... . 

- 
-f.rpat-ed 

-
Pecan Park(5) AÞartmentq-.--, .* ,:!-0..447" .Treated ---

Page 3



II.

A.

IVATER USI DATA FOR SBRYICE AREA

lVatcr Accountlng Datr

L Amount of water uso for previous f¡ve years (in 1,000 gal.)r
Please indioate: Þivcrted Water

Year
January
February
March
April
May
June
July
August
September
Ootober
Novcmber
December

Total

?4"44. . .,.
76,623 _
72.557 _
80.552 _

7f.87j.__
83,306
77,879
s'åFz---
93.450
91,797,

.86..s.3.9
77.056 *
78.801

Treeted Water

2q9ç ?0.06
76.3ee 9å921 _
0g*ei4_. 71,93,7.. . .

76,078... . 1Q0,f07,.,,.
84,51Q 9.5.676__-
92.788 _ 101.925 _

10-7.607 _ 10,ã¿13__
106.301 . - 97.716
1"0-0,32_5 1JA3ç2*--
99.487 m5.u$*.
9-ã"$+3 . e4.e3e- "
.83.7-05- "_ 8_6,4_0".8_ . _

81.902 _ 84,959 _

_x_
. ?007 20-03.***-

8.3,676 89.Þ31_.

7il-"e6 _ 841õõ _:
9J*1üL*. 94,n81
&¿,683. . 101 3æ. _
s6 264 12.!.ApQ-..
e8.13 *, 1?4.qgJ*_g6.817 122.108 -
1pÞJ_5-ç _ 11ß,1.11..
1p6*CI*6*. I 19,763 _

1".02,"30L__. 10qß0.8...
95,656 " ,. 98.093
87 971 _ 93.972

984,691 . 1.074,849 1,155.162 L]Æ¿00 1,274,669-.

Pleass indicate how the above figures rver€ determined (e,g,, nom a master mctcr locatcd at the
point of a diversion from a sfteam or located at a point whcre ra\ry water enters the üeaûnent plant,

or ûom water sales).
l\,íeste r mciers at wnler wclls

Amount of water (in 1,000 gallons) delivcrcd (sotd) as recorded by the following
account types (See #1, Appendix A) for the past five years.

Ys$ Resi@¡Scl
?a94 591.534
2005 030-,-6---e-7--.

200s 0z1"¿gl*
2Ðf.7 0az-494_.
æ!8 667,924

Çopqsrcial
200,82,1,
211.370
?79.,W5.^_-
215,364 ._

228.869

Induskial Wholosale Qlhel
10-,JJ9-.. ". N¿A--- 29,863
m*14f...-_ 1,970 45AÊ7
r0,8e4 _52.073. 53.JÃ2
11,645. _" 52,Ê.âL-.. 59 930
12,747 .9692q - 101,563

Toøl S=qIS-

89?,9_31 *.
q99,645

1.,05Ê,.966
952,.096 *
rJ-o&026_

Page 4



3, List previous flve years records
for water loss
(Sec #2, Appendix A)

Yeqr Am.B,$ntl.gel,)
2004 152,358

2005_ 17 1202.*._-*_
2o0F 96,194,- ,"
zDÐ7- 16,8,16L
290€- 4S6.,640-

List previous five years records for
annual peak-to-average daily use ratio
(See#3, Appendix A)

Yoar Ane¡egg.-MgD Scak MGD"

ry)!_ _z7U._ _4,qp"5" , .,

200_9. _2,946_ _5.96_6.
2006 _3.13?_ _,4,855__.
2ga7-. 

-3"063- 
r5,445

2908- *3'499- -5SOg-'

RatÍo
1,65
T7T
1.53*
lJJ_
1A3-

5,

Yçe{

20Q4m
2a0s".,.

2AO7-
2008*

6.

Year
2004
2005
?006.
2QQ7.

:o0&

PsuÈlefu

_ 29,533
_3q4qg-_
* 31,846

-32878-
-39897-

Ponulation

_29,533
_9p-á45. "

-í-e!ñ-*32,gzg-
-€g#sr-

Total per capita water use for prcvious five years (See #4, Appendix A):

Total Diverted (or
Trsi*tçd-.Lesç -Wþ.çlesa le
Sales11.000 sal.\
_984,691 _

_1,Q74,949 -
_,1,155,1F,2 -

-1T4*o¡?60--_,1;274;êê9 _

Base Per
Capita Use

_86_._*
**F3 _
_84*-
_84 _

-€€--

Summer Per
Caoita Usc

98

_--1,15-*

-.111,.*-_98--

-JJ-g--

Fet Canita
(epsd)

_9_1 _-

-97_99_
-93-*493-

Seasonal watsr use for the previous five years (ln gallons per perôon por day)
(See #5, Appendíx A):

B. ProJected Water Demands

Projeot water supply requirements for ât lçast the next ten years using population tends, hietorical water

usc, and economió growth, etc. Indicate souroes of data and how projected water demands were

determined.
Attach additional sheets if necessary.

P le,.se eee At+q.he.d 
"

Page 5



III. WATER SUPPLY SYSTtrM

,{, Watcr $upply Sources

List all current water supply sources and the smounts availablc with eaçht

SotltpS Aqp.Unt,Ayaålaþle

MGDSurface Water:

Croundwateu Wells 12.4 ..... .*MCD

MGDContracts;

Othcn MCD

B. Treatment and Distrfbutlon System

L Design daily oapacity of systemt *12"* -..-- MCD

2, Storage Capacity: Elcvated 
- 

1 B . MCÐ, Grorurd -EJgg.* MOD

3, If surfacç water, do you recycle filterbackwash to the head of theplant?
Yes-No '*.-..'-, If yes, approximatoly -- MCD'

4. Please desçribe thç water systcm, Include the numbcr of e€etnent plants, wells, and

storage tanks, If possible, include a sketch of the system layout,

Nurnber of water plants: 6
Number of water supply wells: I
Number of ground storage tanks: 5

Number of elevated storage tanks: 4
Number of hydropneumatic tanks: 2
Storage capacity of hydropneumatic tanks: ,016 MGD

Page 6



rv,

A.

IVASTE\ryATER UTILITY SYSTEM

Wastewater System Data

t, Design câpacity of wastewatêr treatment plånt(s): .6.525 * MGD

2. Is heated effluent used for irrigatlon on-$lte off'site ---- plant
washdown.X* rorohlorination/decilorinatlon . .,.-?
If yes, approximately 1,000.,9.00 galtons pcr month. Could this be substituted for
potable water now belng used in these areas 

- 
yllÇ. ?

*wastewater treatment plant #2
3. Briefiy dessri'be the wastervater sysremls) of the area serviced by the wator utility.

DescribE how treatcd wastçwator is disposed of. Wherc applicable, identiþ
treatment plant(s) with the TCEQ name and number, the operator, owner, and, if
wastewater is disoharged, the receiving stream. Pleaso provide a sketch or m¿p
whioh locates the plant(s) and disoharge points or disposal sites,

Please see attachment "4"

Wsstcwatcr Data for Servlce Area

Percent of \ryater sçrvice area served by wastewater system: .9!%

Monthly volume üeated forprevious three years (in 1,000 gallons):

B.

I,

2,.

Year
January
February
Maroh
April
May
June
July
August
September
Ootober
November
December

Totsl

.2006

.84,362 _
71,5Q4"- *_
82-606 , " _*,_
8Q_922 .. ". -'_08.892 *
78.19?...._..-_ _
1CI3...ã2r.. _ . _
84.293. ..........*
8,1.2q2., . _
122.723 ._
79.091 _
88.31e..," ,. **
.903.50e _

.2007
130.0?3,.. ..-...,.. ._

73,157 . ^
.192.471 "*. ,.,. ."
.,93,0€-0*.._. --. "" ._
_95.6¿3 .._._

.e2,??5..
,141.323_.-... . *
,91.64'3- - -.__- ._
.87,020 , .. _
9Q 0e5 --.
8q,6.J2 _....-
å4.,928. " .. ." ..."*.-

_ 1,170.826 _*

_2009 -__*-..".
110.497 _-__
89,757 .*,
.9.s.411 _.-._

.79.78.4..., _

- 79.418 . .. _
.a1,s30-.
83 0n6 _.._
81.464
73.251 .....,,,-
69.9.S3 ...__..
z3Jl8-.
.71,7,95 .."".. -

-e8.2.27! ,,_ _

Page ?



-Ciîy dîRõsönöôrs-

Future Projected Water Demand

Citv of Rosenbers

Year

Ilstimate<l Based o¡r Ðevelopme¡rt

Estimated

Number of
Comections

Average
Daily Flow

(MGD)

Projected Annua
Water Dema¡rsl

(keals)

2009 3"678 3,s6 298.442

z0 0 4,303 3,72 357,355

20 5.^t t6 4.09 491.448

20 2 18,256 4.7 5 732,494
20 3 2l,130 5.49 2,045,237

20 4 )1 )1',) 5,78 2,109,817

20 5 i1 aoJ 5.98 2,lg1,g4l
2t 6 23,579 6.1 3 2.237,647

20 7 24.128 6.21 2,299,747

20 I 24.606 6.44 2,335,109

20 9 24.973 6.49 2,369,938

Texas Vy'ater f)evelopment Boarcl

2006 Resional Water Plan - Resion I"l

Year

ßstirnatecl Annual Water
I)emand
(keals)

2000 t,1 14,410

201 0 1,261,695

2020 i,403,I 14

2030 1,585,591

2040 1,778,1ó9

2050 2.048.299

2CI60 2.375,128

Historical Water Demand

Year

'fotal Diverled
(keals)

2004

2005

2006

2007

2008

984.691

1.074.849

1,155,162

1,120,260

1,27.4,669

or
u)J
!
tr
(d

È
(¡¡

e¡
{tt

g
c

Projected Water Bemand

2,500,000

2,000,CI00

1,500,000

1,000,000

500,000

1995 2000 2005 2010 2A15
Year

2Õ20 2025 2030

L:+- city Projections -t:TW_D 2_0_Q9_FSgln{lyate_r Plan **r"* ¡1.i:-lglig4_Pgrglgj



Utility Profile
Attachment "A"

Question #3. The wastewater treatment system is comprised of gravity sanitary
sewer lines, force mains, multiple lift stations and three wastewater treatment
plants. Treated effluent is discharged into the adjacent receiving stream at each
wastewater treatment plant and ultimately to the Brazos River, in segment No.
1202 ot the Brazos River Basin,

Facility Name TPDËS Permit
No.

Operator Owner

Wastewater
Treatment Plant
No, 1-A

Wastewater
Treatment Plant
No. 2

Wastewater
Treatment Plant
No. 3

wQ0010607003

wQ0010607002

wQ0010607004

Southwest Water
Company

Southwest Water
Company

Southwest Water
Company

City of Rosenberg

City of Rosenberg

City of Rosenberg



hf{,..\..,,.., 
^* 

.t 
À,,

Waste Water Treatment Plant Map

¡t.t.ttrttt¡
I
I
a

I

-t?¡'l'\. ¿l'"a- ì1''' ¿')"''\;'\ .,\
'\

_\¡\,f Waste Water Treatment Plant

i-.-l nou"nberg Waterways

* Railroads

í:._"."i cnyLimits

0 0.25 0.5 I
æMiles

Ðisdaimen Thb inforTnstþn ls for dlscüssion purposes only.
All intomstion shouH be verifi€d by a licensed engineer

or pl€nning profussþnal.

(M k CedRGdérE GISISFìltEtrF&ia¿L*ivhådsÀÃr-ÉãùrnPH oabsæþd: Ø7¿00e



Appendix "D"
Water Ut¡l¡ty Rates

City of Rosenberg Code of Ordinances

Chapter 29 UïlLlTlES
Arlicle ll WATER
Division 1. Water Service
Section 29-50, Metered rates; charge for late payment; senior citizen discount;
outside City rates; prorated service; construction water usage; bulk water rates

(a) The city will furnish water through meters, and the following charges will be
made by the city for water furnished to consumers:

(1) Single-family residences. Rates for single-family residences shall be
as foflows:

a, The minimum monthly charge for single-family residences shall
be the sum of ten dollars and twenty-eight cents ($10.28), for which
up to two thousand (2,000) gallons of water may be used.

b. For use of over two thousand (2,000) gallons up to five
thousand (5,000) gallons, there shall be a charge of two dollars and
sixty-five cents ($2.65) per thousand gallons,

c. For use of over five thousand (5,000) gallons up to ten
thousand (10,000) gallons, there shall be a charge of two dollars
and seventy-two cents ($2,12¡ per thousand gallons,

d. For all water used over ten thousand (10,000) gallons, there
shall be a charge of two dollars and eighty-eight cents ($2.88) per
thousand gallons,

(2) Multiple-dwelling units. Rates for multiple-dwelling units shall be as
follows:

a. The monthly water usage charge for a multiple-dwelling unit
that is separately metered shall be calculated by applying the rates
established for single-family residences.

b. The monthly water usage charge for a multiple-dwelling unit
complex that is master metered shall be calculated by dividing the
total water usage by the total number of dwelling units and applying
the rates established for single-family residences. The monthly
water usage charge for such multiple-dwelling unit complex shall be
determined by multiplying the charge per dwelling unit by the total
number of dwelling units. The number of dwelling units for mobile
home and travel trailer parks shall be determined by calculating the
number of available spaces.

(3) Commercíal/industrialusers, The minimum monthly charge for
commercial/industrial uses for up to two thousand (2,000) gallons of water shall

Page 1 of 3



Appendix "D"
Water Ut¡l¡ty Rates

be based on meter size, as described below, Allwater used over two thousand
(2,000) gallons will be two dollars and sixty-five cents ($2.65) per thousand
gallons.

TABLE INSET:

A surface water subsidence fee (GRP Fee) surcharge of thirty-five cents ($0,1S;
per thousand gallons shall also be charged for all water used up to five thousand
(5,000) gallons, A surface water subsidence fee (GRP Fee) surcharge of forty
cents ($0,+O¡ per thousand gallons shall also be charged for all water used over
five thousand (5,000) gallons,

(4) Combinatíon residential and commercíal/indusfrlal users,
Combination residential and commercial/industríal users whose primary activity is
not commercial/industrial related will be classified as multiple-dwelling units and
will be charged using the multiple-dwelling unit formula at one hundred (100)
percent of the minimum single-family residence monthly usage and rate,
Combination residential and commercial/industrial users whose primary activity is

commercial/industrial in nature shall be charged the appropriate
commercìal/i ndustrial rates.

(5) All customers with a separate fire line and meter installed, will be
billed a minimum monthly charge of seven dollars and fifty cents ($Z.SO¡ unless
there is consumption, and then the appropriate metered rate class charges will
apply above the minirnum.

(b) Charge for late payments, Allfees become due upon the city's
issuance of a monthly bill and are payable on the date stated on the bill.
Payments received after the due date stated on the bill shall be subject to
a ten (10) percent charge on the unpaid current balance, On an individual
basis, customer accounts that have a twelve-month history of no late fees
charged, can request to have a one-time waiver of the charge for late
payment. Residential accounts for the princlpal residence only of persons
over the age of sixty-five (65) shall not be subject to the charge for late
payments as prescribed in this section. Persons over the age of sixty-five

Meter Size
Minimum Charge

per Unit

3/4 inch $10.28

I inch $30.85

2 inch $5r.41

3 inch $71.e7

4 inch $1 13.10

6 inch $154.23

Page 2 of 3



Appendix "D"
Water Ut¡l¡ty Rates

(65) may declare only one (1)principal residence forwhich he is
responsible for payment of the monthly bill, However, such accounts are
subject to all other fines and fees as prescribed herein,

(c) Persons over the age of sixty-five (65) shall receive a discount
of one dollar ($1,00) on single-family residential water service and one
dollar ($1.00) on single-family residential sewer seryice, upon application
to the customer service department.

(d) All users of city water service outside city limits shall pay one
and one-half (1 1/2) times the amount of the applicable minimum charge
as set forth in subsection (a) and one and one-half (1 112) times the
amount of all applicable charges as set forth in subsection (a) for water
used above the minimum charge.

(e) Customers shall be billed minirnum charges for the first and

last months of service for water and wastewater service on a prorated
basis of the actual number of days service was provided, Solid waste
charges for the first and last months of service shall be based on the city's
actual cost to the contracted solid waste collection company.

(f¡ Construction water usage. Upon receipt of an application for
service and the required deposit and installation fee as set forth in section
29-36(c), the City will provide a hydrant meter for the purposes of
measuring the construction water usage if available, The meter shall be
read in accordance with section 29-49 and water usage shall be billed at
the rate of thirty-five dollars ($35,00) per month minimum for the first two
thousand (2,000) gallons, and four dollars ($4,00) per one thousand
(1,000) gallons thereafter. The deposit described herein will be refunded
after all water charges have been paid and it has been determined that the

fire hydrant and hydrant meter have not been damaged.

(g) Bulk water usage. The taking of bulk water shall be allowed
only from a designated hydrant and shall be during the normal business
hours, Monday through Friday, except holidays, unless an application for
after-hours delivery is filed by the customer and approved. Bulk water
customers will be responsible for paying overtime charges incurred at

twenty-five dollars ($25,00)/hour with a minimum charge of one (1) hour, if
applicable, in addition to the rate of thirty-five dollars ($35,00) for the first
two thousand (2,000) gallons, and four dollars ($4.00) per one thousand
(1,000) gallons thereafter assessed for the usage of bulk water within the
ciiy limits.

(Ord. No, 2008-33, $ 1, 9-16-08)

Page 3 of 3



reneel
Rectangle



reneel
Rectangle



 CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 

April 15, 2014 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

7 Resolution No. R-1778 - Community Development Block Grant North Side 
Sanitary Sewer Improvements Phase IX Bid Award 

ITEM/MOTION 

Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-1778, a Resolution awarding Bid No. 2014-07 for 
construction of the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Project related to construction services 
for the North Side Sanitary Sewer Improvements Phase IX; and, providing authorization for the City 
Manager to negotiate and execute, for and on behalf of the City, appropriate documents and/or 
agreements regarding same. 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[X] One-time 
[   ] Recurring 
[   ] N/A 

Budgeted: 

[X] Yes  [   ] No  [   ] N/A 

Source of Funds:   

216-1900-540-7030 (CP1407) 

[X] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[   ] District 4 
[   ] City-wide 
[   ] N/A 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  MUD #:  N/A 
1. Bid Summary Form 
2. Proposal 
3. Kaluza Correspondence – 04-02-14 
4. Project Map 
5. Resolution No. R-1778 

 

APPROVALS 

Submitted by:   
 
 
 
John Maresh 
Assistant City Manager for 
Public Services 

Reviewed by:   
 
[X] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services 
[   ] Asst. City Manager for Public Services 
[   ] City Attorney 
[   ] City Engineer 
[X] Project Director  

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council: 
 
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Proposals were received on Wednesday, April 02, 2014, for Phase IX of the Community Development Block 
Grant (CDBG) sanitary sewer improvements. The bids were opened and tabulated as indicated on the attached 
Bid Summary. A total of five (5) bids were received. 
 
Staff recommends Bid No. 2014-07 be awarded to T Construction, LLC, for the Base Bid amount of $165,273.00 
and Alternate Bid No.1 in the amount of $48,509.00, for a total amount of $213,782.00 with a term of sixty-five 
(65) working days. The attached correspondence from Kelly R. Kaluza & Associates, Inc., recommends same. 
Should the bid be awarded as recommended, the T Construction, LLC, proposal will be attached and will serve 
as Exhibit “A” to Resolution No. R-1778. 
 
CDBG funding of $177,401.00 has been provided for construction on this project. The City would provide local 
matching funds in the amount of $36,381.00 to fully fund the remaining construction cost that is above the grant 
amount.  
 
Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. R-1778 which will award Bid No. 2014-07 and provide 
authorization for the City Manager to negotiate and execute all required documents necessary to facilitate the 
project.  
 



 
BID SUMMARY 
Bid No. 2014-07 

CDBG North Side Sanitary Sewer Improvements – Phase IX 
 

 

 

Contractor Base Bid Amount Alt. Bid 1 
Amount 

Total Amount 
Bid 

Total No. 
Working Days 

     
T Construction, LLC 
 

$165,273.00 $48,509.00 $213,782.00 65 

PM Construction & Rehab, LLC 
 

$183,516.40 $54,997.90 $238,514.30 50 

Horseshoe Construction 
 

$205,502.50 $60,440.00 $265,942.50 135 

Nerie Construction 
 

$224,550.00 $71,085.00 $295,635.00 40 

Menade, Inc. 
 

$278,610.00 $96,260.00 $374,870.00 45 

 



































melissap
Text Box



 
RESOLUTION NO. R-1778 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROSENBERG, TEXAS, AWARDING BID NO. 2014-07 FOR 
CONSTRUCTION OF THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK 
GRANT (CDBG) PROJECT RELATED TO CONSTRUCTION SERVICES 
FOR THE NORTH SIDE SANITARY SEWER IMPROVEMENTS PHASE 
IX; AND, PROVIDING AUTHORIZATION FOR THE CITY MANAGER TO 
NEGOTIATE AND EXECUTE, FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE CITY OF 
ROSENBERG, TEXAS, APPROPRIATE DOCUMENTS AND/OR 
AGREEMENTS REGARDING SAME. 

 
*  *  *  *  * 

 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG: 

Section 1. The approval and award of Bid No. 2014-07 to 

___________________, in the amount of $______________ for construction of 

Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Project North Side Sanitary Sewer 

Improvements – Phase IX, generally located in the area bounded by Avenue A to the 

north, Avenue E to the south, 5th street to the east and 1st Street to the west.   

Section 2. The City Manager is hereby authorized to negotiate and execute 

any documentation necessary to facilitate said project. 

Section 3.   A copy of the Proposal is attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and made 

a part hereof for all purposes. 

 PASSED, APPROVED, AND RESOLVED this _____ day of ___________ 2014.  

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
 
              
Linda Cernosek, City Secretary    Vincent M. Morales, Jr., Mayor 
 



CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
April 15, 2014 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

8 Resolution No. R-1779 – Administrative Services Agreement with West 
Fort Bend Management District 

ITEM/MOTION 

Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-1779, a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to 
execute, for and on behalf of the City, an amended Administrative Services Agreement by and between 
the City and the West Fort Bend Management District for Plan Review and Inspection Services.  

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[   ] One-time 
[   ] Recurring 
[X] N/A 

Budgeted: 

[   ] Yes  [   ] No  [X] N/A 

Source of Funds:  N/A 

 

[   ] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[   ] District 4  
[   ] City-wide 
[X] N/A 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  MUD #:  N/A 
1. Resolution No. R-1779 
2. Administrative Services Agreement – Redlined 
3. Resolution No. R-899 – 01-06-09 
4. City Council Meeting Minutes Excerpt – 01-06-09 

 

APPROVALS 

Submitted by:   

 
Travis Tanner, AICP 
Executive Director of 
Community Development 

Reviewed by:   
 
[   ] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services   
[   ] Asst. City Manager for Public Services 
[X] City Attorney LL/ks 
[   ] City Engineer 
[   ] (Other) 

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council: 
 
 
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Currently, the City’s Administrative Services Agreement with the West Fort Bend Management District 
(District) essentially provides for the following: 
 

1. District use of Rosenberg facilities 
2. Rosenberg provision of finance, accounting, and general services (e.g., records management) 
3. Rosenberg provision of plan review and inspection services 

 
The District compensates the City $500 per month, or $1,500 per quarter, for the finance, accounting, and 
general services, and the City collects permit fees for the plan review and inspection services. 
 
Several months ago, City staff approached the District regarding it potentially being more efficient for the 
District to perform its own records management services.  Subsequently, the District expressed an interest 
in performing its own accounting services as well.  City staff did not object to this and therefore it is 
proposed that the Agreement be amended to reflect that the City will only provide facilities and plan review 
and inspection services.  Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. R-1779 as presented. 
 



RESOLUTION NO. R-1779 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROSENBERG, TEXAS, PROVIDING AUTHORIZATION FOR THE CITY 
MANAGER TO EXECUTE, FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE CITY OF 
ROSENBERG, AN AMENDED ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES 
AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, 
TEXAS, AND WEST FORT BEND MANAGEMENT DISTRICT FOR 
PLAN REVIEW AND INSPECTION SERVICES. 
 

*  *  *  *  * 
  
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG: 
 
 Section 1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to execute an Amended 

Administrative Services Agreement (Agreement), by and between the City of 

Rosenberg, Texas, and West Fort Bend Management District for certain City plan 

review and inspection services.    A copy of such Agreement is attached hereto as 

Exhibit “A” and made a part hereof for all purposes.  

 PASSED, APPROVED, AND RESOLVED this _____ day of ___________ 2014. 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
 
              
Linda Cernosek, City Secretary    Vincent M, Morales, Jr., Mayor 
 
 



1 
 

THE STATE OF TEXAS  § 
     § 
COUNTY OF FORT BEND  § 
 
 

ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN  
THE CITY OF ROSENBERG 

AND THE WEST FORT BEND MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 
FOR PLAN REVIEW AND INSPECTION SERVICES 

 
This Agreement is entered into by and between the City of Rosenberg 

(hereinafter referred to as “Rosenberg”) and West Fort Bend Management District 
(hereinafter referred to as the “District”). 

WHEREAS, Rosenberg wishes to aid and cooperate coordinating certain 
functions and services for the effective and efficient operation of the District; and, 

WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of Rosenberg to cooperate with the District in 
that the District is acting on behalf of Rosenberg to promote and encourage quality 
development within District boundaries; and, 

WHEREAS, the governing body of Rosenberg has duly authorized this 
agreement; and 

WHEREAS, the governing body of the District has duly authorized this 
agreement; 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and further consideration 
of the mutual promises, covenants, and conditions herein, Rosenberg and the District 
hereby agree as follows: 

Use of Rosenberg Facilities 

1. Rosenberg agrees to allow the District to use City Hall, Rosenberg Civic Center, 
and other meeting facilities without fee, but only if it does not conflict with any 
other scheduled event/activity, to hold District Board and other meetings as may 
be required from time-to-time and the City Manager or his designee agrees to the 
date and time.   

2. Rosenberg agrees to post District notices for public hearings, special and/or 
regular meetings, and/or workshops at Rosenberg City Hall. 

Services to be Provided 

3. Rosenberg agrees to provide the following services to the District pursuant to the 
Rosenberg City Manager’s direction and approval, and such employees 

Exhibit "A" to Resolution No. R-1779



2 
 

furnishing said services are to be considered at all times to be employees of 
Rosenberg. 

a. Plan Review and Inspection Services 

1. As an agent of the District, the City of Rosenberg personnel shall 
review plans for construction and improvements located within the 
District to require compliance with the standards and regulations 
adopted by the District and Rosenberg.  This review shall be 
completed at the same time as Rosenberg staff is conducting their 
review for compliance with Rosenberg ordinances and regulations. 

2. In addition to plan reviews, Rosenberg personnel will conduct on-site 
inspections to assure compliance with District standards and 
regulations.  If a noncompliance violation is determined and cannot be 
resolved, personnel will present a report to the District who will 
determine if any enforcement action shall be authorized. 

3. Rosenberg’s Building Official or designee shall be the Rosenberg 
representative to the District Board regarding the above services.  
Rosenberg will provide a monthly report to the District Board 
outlining the previous month’s activities and services provided. 

4. The above services shall apply to all properties within the District 
which are located within Rosenberg corporate limits and 
extraterritorial jurisdiction. 

b. Other Services 

1. General Services:  The District may request other needed services from 
time to time from Rosenberg such as, but not limited to, those services 
to be provided by the City Manager or his designee.   Services 
provided by the City Engineer shall be reimbursed at cost as invoiced 
by the City. 

Compensation 

4.  Rosenberg shall collect and retain the permit fees and inspection fees approved 
by the District for properties located in Rosenberg’s corporate limits or 
extraterritorial jurisdiction.  Rosenberg shall provide a quarterly report on the 
fees collected. If any penalties or fines are imposed by the District related to 
enforcement of the Standards, the District shall retain such funds. 

Period of Duration 

5. This agreement will have no force or effect until duly executed by all parties 
hereto and thereafter automatically renewed annually on each successive 



3 
 

January 1 of each year.  The District or Rosenberg may cancel this agreement at 
anytime upon thirty (30) days written notice to ALL parties to this agreement. 

6. Previous Agreement The Administrative Services Agreement Between the City 
of Rosenberg and the West Fort Bend Management District dated January 1, 
2009, is terminated, and replaced with this Administrative Services Agreement, 
the effective date being the last and final date of execution.  

[EXECUTION PAGE FOLLOWING]



4 
 

Execution 

Executed, in duplicate originals, by the City of Rosenberg on the ____ day of 
____________, 2014, at Rosenberg, Fort Bend County, Texas, and by the West Fort 
Bend Management District on the  ____ day of ____________, 2014, at Rosenberg, Fort 
Bend County, Texas, to be effective upon execution by both parties, the effective date 
being the last date of execution on ____________________, 2014. 

WEST FORT BEND MANAGEMENT 
DISTRICT 

 
By:         
Name:         
Title:         

Date:       

ATTEST: 
 
By:        
Name:       
Title:        

Date:       

 

CITY OF ROSENBERG 
 
By:         
Name:         
Title:         

Date:       

 
ATTEST: 
 
By:        
Name:       
Title:        

Date:       

 

 



 

WFBMD Adm Agree 2009 Merged - Redlined 

THE STATE OF TEXAS  § 
     § 
COUNTY OF FORT BEND  § 
 
 

ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN  
 THE CITY OF ROSENBERG   

AND THE WEST FORT BEND MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 
FOR PLAN REVIEW AND INSPECTION SERVICES 

 
This Agreement is entered into by and between the City of Rosenberg (herein 

afterhereinafter referred to as “Rosenberg”) and West Fort Bend Management District 
(hereinafter referred to as the "“District").”). 

WHEREAS, the city of “Rosenberg” wishes to aid and cooperate coordinating certain 
functions and services including administrative services for the effective and efficient operation of 
the “District”;; and, 

WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of “Rosenberg” to cooperate with the “District” in 
that the “District” is acting on behalf of “Rosenberg” to promote and encourage quality 
development  within District boundaries; and, 

WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of “Rosenberg” and the “District” that “Rosenberg” 
perform certain administrative services, activities, and duties on behalf of all above named interested 
parties; and, the governing body of Rosenberg has duly authorized this agreement; and 

WHEREAS, the governing bodies of “Rosenberg” have duly authorized this agreement; and, 
WHEREAS, the governing body of the “District” has duly authorized this agreement; 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and further consideration of the 
mutual promises, covenants, and conditions herein, “Rosenberg” and the “District” hereby agree 
as follows: 

 Use of “Rosenberg” Facilities 

1. 1. “Rosenberg” agrees to allow the “District” to use City Hall, Rosenberg Civic and 
Convention Center, and other meeting facilities without fee, but only if it does not conflict 
with any other scheduled event/activity, to hold “District” Board and other meetings as 
may be required from time-to-time.  Utilities include telephone service and hardware, internet 
connections,the City Manager or his designee agrees to the date and shared building 
utilitiestime.   

2. “Rosenberg” agrees to  disseminate any and all mail for the District which is received at 
City Hall without charge. 

2. 3. “Rosenberg” agrees to post “District” notices for public hearings, special and/or 
regular meetings, and/or workshops at Rosenberg City Hall. 

 
Services to be Provided 



 

__________________________________________________________ 
Joint Administrative Services Agreement: 

West Fort Bend Management District and City of Rosenberg 

 Page -2- 
WFBMD Adm Agree 2009 Merged - Redlined 

3. 4. “Rosenberg” agrees to provide the following services to the “District” pursuant to 
the Rosenberg City Manager’s direction and approval, and such employees furnishing 
said services are to be considered at all times to be employees of “Rosenberg”.. 

a. Finance, Accounting, and General 
 

1. Payment of any and all bills submitted by the “District” and within 
“District’s” budgetary requirements, after approval by the “District”.  
“Rosenberg” accepts no responsibility for the legitimacy of bills 
submitted.  Receive and manage “District” funds maintained in a local 
bank account in equal amounts received and deposited from “Rosenberg” 
and the City of Richmond. 

2. Maintenance of accounting records, including but not limited to general 
ledger, income and expense accounts and balance sheet. 

3. Allowance for the “District” to retain auditors.  If “Rosenberg” auditors 
are retained, “District” shall reimburse “Rosenberg” for applicable 
“District” audit costs. 

4. Processing of budget information, including periodic budget reports. 
5. Records Management of the District financial records and other 

documents. 
6. City requests W-9 Forms from the vendors and will prepare information 

required for reporting 1099 Forms. 
7. Receive and manage District funds maintained in a local bank account 

which includes City contributions, donations, and plan check fees. 
8.   Provides records and data requested by auditors. 

 
b.a. Plan Review and Inspection Services 

 
1. As an agent of the District, the City of Rosenberg personnel shall review plans 

for construction and improvements located within the District to require 
compliance with the standards and regulations adopted by the District and the 
City of Rosenberg.  This review willshall be completed at the same time as 
CityRosenberg staff is conducting their review for compliance with 
CityRosenberg ordinances and regulations. 

 
2. In addition to plan reviews, CityRosenberg personnel will conduct on-site 

inspections to assure compliance with District standards and regulations.  If a 
noncompliance violation is determined and cannot be resolved, City personnel 
will present a report to the District Board of Directors who will determine if any 
enforcement action shall be authorized. 

3. The City’s Planning DirectorRosenberg’s Building Official or designee shall be 
the CityRosenberg representative to the District Board regarding the above 
services.  The City Planner shall serve as the back-up representative.  The City  
Rosenberg will provide a monthly report to the District Board outlining the 
previous month’s activities and services provided. 



 

__________________________________________________________ 
Joint Administrative Services Agreement: 

West Fort Bend Management District and City of Rosenberg 

 Page -3- 
WFBMD Adm Agree 2009 Merged - Redlined 

4. The above services shall apply to all properties within the District which are 
located within the City of Rosenberg corporate limits and the City of Rosenberg 
extraterritorial jurisdiction. 

 
b. c. Other Services 

1. General Services:  The “District” may request other needed services from time 
to time from “Rosenberg” such as, but not limited to, those services to be 
provided by the City Engineer.Manager or his designee.   Services provided by 
the City Engineer shall be reimbursed at cost as invoiced by the City Engineer. 

Compensation 

5. In consideration for the services, equipment, buildings, and related costs provided by  
4.  “Rosenberg” for the benefit of the “District”, the “District” agrees to reimburse “Rosenberg” for 
anticipated expenses as follows: 

 
a. Quarterly Payments to “Rosenberg” by the “District” shall be made on or before the 

following dates: 
  March 31, 2009 
  June 30, 2009 
  September 30, 2009 
  December 31, 2009 

b. Compensation Expenses will be reviewed concurrently with the establishment of the 
annual budget, and if there are any changes, a revised summary of anticipated 
expenses will be provided.  The fees for services to the District shall be $500 per 
month or $1,500 per quarter. 

 
c. District will reimburse the City for any direct costs such as postage, printed forms, 

envelopes, etc. 
The City shall collect and retain the permit fees and inspection fees establishedapproved by 
the District for properties located in the City’sRosenberg’s corporate limits or 
extraterritorial jurisdiction.  The CityRosenberg shall provide a quarterly report on the 
fees collected.  If any penalties or fines are imposed by the District related to enforcement 
of the Standards, the District shall retain such funds. 

 Period of Duration 

5. 6. This agreement will have no force or effect until duly executed by all parties hereto and 
thereafter automatically renewed annually foron each succeedingsuccessive January 1 of 
each year.  The “District” or “Rosenberg” may cancel this agreement at any timeanytime 
upon thirty (30) days written notice to ALL parties to this agreement.  The obligations of 
the “District”, including its obligation to pay “Rosenberg” for all costs incurred under this 
agreement prior to such notice, shall survive such cancellation, as well as any other obligation 
incurred under this agreement, until performed or discharged by the “District”. 

6. Previous Agreement The Administrative Services Agreement Between the City of 
Rosenberg and the West Fort Bend Management District dated January 1, 2009, is 



 

__________________________________________________________ 
Joint Administrative Services Agreement: 

West Fort Bend Management District and City of Rosenberg 

 Page -4- 
WFBMD Adm Agree 2009 Merged - Redlined 

terminated, and replaced with this Administrative Services Agreement, the effective date 
being the last and final date of execution.  

[EXECUTION PAGE FOLLOWING]



 

-5- 
WFBMD Adm Agree 2009 Merged - Redlined 

Execution 

 
Executed, in duplicate originals, by the City of Rosenberg on the ______ day of 

_______________, 20____, ____ day of ____________, 2014, at Rosenberg, Fort Bend 
County, Texas, and by the West Fort Bend Management District on the ______ ____ day of 
_______________, 20____,____________, 2014, at Rosenberg, Fort Bend County, Texas, to be 
effective on January 01, 2009upon execution by both parties, the effective date being the last 
date of execution on ____________________, 2014. 

WEST FORT BEND MANAGEMENT 
DISTRICT 
By:         
Name:         
Title:         

Date:       

ATTEST:__________________________   
 
By:        
Name:       
Title:        
Date:       

 

CITY OF ROSENBERG 
By:  ___________________________________ 
Name:_________________________________ 
Title: _________________________________   

Date:  ________________________________  

 
ATTEST: 
By:  _______________________________ 
Name:_____________________________   
Title:        

Date:       

 

 

















CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
April 15, 2014 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

9 Resolution No. R-1780 – Ornamental Street Light Guidelines 

ITEM/MOTION 

Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-1780, a Resolution establishing guidelines for the 
installation and maintenance of ornamental street lights. 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[   ] One-time 
[   ] Recurring 
[X] N/A 

Budgeted: 

[   ] Yes  [   ] No  [X] N/A 

Source of Funds:  N/A 

 

[   ] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[   ] District 4 
[X] City-wide 
[   ] N/A 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  MUD #:  N/A 
1. Resolution No. R-1780 
2. City of Missouri City Design Standard Excerpt – Chapter 4, Section 4.05 – Ornamental Street Lights 
3. Code Of Ordinances Excerpt, Sec. 25-71 
4. Design Standards Excerpt, Sec. 2.9 
5. Ornamental Street Light Example Photos 
6. City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt – 01-28-14 
7. Planning Commission Meeting Minute Excerpt – 02-26-14 

 

APPROVALS 
Submitted by:   
 

 
 
Travis Tanner, AICP 
Executive Director 
Community Development 

Reviewed by:   
 
[X] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services 
[X] Asst. City Manager for Public Services  
[X] City Attorney LJL/rl    
[   ] City Engineer 
[   ] (Other) 
 

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council: 
  
 
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

It was discussed at the January 28, 2014, City Council Workshop Meeting that staff had received an 
inquiry from a developer wanting to install ornamental street lights, as opposed to the standard “cobra” 
lights, and wanting the City to accept and maintain the street lights as with standards lights.  Currently, per 
City regulations (Code of Ordinances, Sec. 25-71; and Design Standards, Sec. 2.9), the location of street 
lighting systems are designed by CenterPoint Energy and approved by the City.  The developer pays for 
the cost of installation of the lights plus three (3) years’ maintenance.  The developer can install, and the 
City will accept, standard lights.  If the City were to accept non-standard or ornamental lights, it would 
require more lights to meet the same lighting standards because the ornamental lights are typically 
smaller.  Therefore it would result in greater long-term costs to the City. 
 
For example, in the subdivision that initiated this discussion, a standard street lighting system would 
require approximately thirty (30) lights.  To utilize ornamental lights and still meet the same lighting 
standards would require approximately thirty-five (35) lights.  If the lights cost approximately $15 per light 
per month to maintain (a rough estimate), the ornamental lighting system would cost the City an additional 
$900 annually if the City accepted the system.  Under the current City Ordinance, however, there is the 
option to (1) use standard lighting or (2) have a private system that the Homeowners Association (HOA), 
not the City, would be responsible for maintaining. 
 
City regulations do not specifically address ornamental street lights and there are not numerous examples 
of other cities’ policies addressing this particular issue.  Possibly the best example from the research staff 



conducted was the City of Missouri City, which will enter into an agreement where the HOA is responsible 
for additional ongoing costs above and beyond the standard number of street lights. 
 
Per direction from City Council on January 28, 2014, this item was brought to the Planning Commission on 
February 26, 2014.  The Planning Commission directed staff to move forward with a policy, but requested 
that staff inquire with CenterPoint Energy about more energy-efficient lighting options that could save the 
City money and cautioned staff about the potential for an HOA to become defunct and not pay its light bill 
in the future.  CenterPoint did not have any more energy-efficient lighting options and the latter concern 
regarding HOAs would also apply to the current Ordinance if a developer installed a private lighting 
system.  A CenterPoint representative stated that if the HOA did not pay its light bill, the lights would be 
turned off. 
 
Staff has drafted a policy that (1) does not discourage upgraded lighting systems and (2) does not result in 
the City incurring additional costs for them.  Up to ten (10) extra lights could be approved administratively, 
whereas a greater number of lights must come before City Council for approval.  Staff believes this would 
minimize the City’s risk.  Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. R-1780, establishing guidelines for 
ornamental street lighting. 
 



RESOLUTION NO. R-1780 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, 
TEXAS, ESTABLISHING GUIDELINES FOR THE INSTALLATION AND 
MAINTENANCE OF ORNAMENTAL STREET LIGHTS. 
 

*  *  *  *  * 
 

WHEREAS, neither the “Subdivision” Ordinance (Chapter 25, Code of 
Ordinances) nor the Public Infrastructure Design Standards specifically address the 
installation and maintenance of ornamental street lights; and,  
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Rosenberg does not wish to discourage the installation of 
ornamental street lights; and,  
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Rosenberg does not wish to incur any additional costs as 
a result of the installation of ornamental street lights; now, therefore,  
 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG: 
 
 Section 1. The City Council hereby establishes guidelines for the installation 

and maintenance of ornamental street lights. 

Section 2. A copy of such guidelines is attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and 

made a part hereof for all purposes. 

 PASSED, APPROVED, AND RESOLVED this _____ day of ___________ 2014. 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
 
              
Linda Cernosek, CITY SECRETARY   Vincent M. Morales, Jr., MAYOR 
 
  



EXHIBIT “A” 

GUIDELINES FOR THE INSTALLATION AND MAINTENANCE OF ORNAMENTAL 
STREET LIGHTS 

 
 

Should a subdivider wish (1) to install ornamental street lights in a subdivision and (2) 
for the City of Rosenberg to accept said lighting system, the following guidelines shall 
apply: 
 

1. In accordance with Section 25-71 of the “Subdivision” Ordinance (Chapter 25, 
Code of Ordinances) or with the City’s most current ordinances, policies, or 
procedures in effect at the time, the subdivider shall be responsible for 
installation of street lights and for three (3) years’ maintenance cost of the lighting 
system to the City of Rosenberg. 
 

2. A street light design/layout from CenterPoint Energy shall be submitted for 
standard street lights, with the minimum number of lights required to comply with 
City of Rosenberg and Illuminating Engineering Society (IES) standards. 
 

3. A street light design/layout from CenterPoint Energy shall be submitted for 
ornamental street lights complying with City of Rosenberg and Illuminating 
Engineering Society (IES) standards. 

 
4. If item #3 (ornamental street light design/layout) contains a greater number of 

lights than item #2 (standard street light design/layout), the recurring costs 
associated with any additional lights shall be paid by the subdivider, a 
homeowners association, or a property owners association directly to 
CenterPoint Energy. 
 

5. The City of Rosenberg shall accept the lighting system and shall be responsible 
for the recurring costs associated with only the standard number of lights in 
accordance with the applicable ordinances, policies and procedures in effect at 
the time of installation. 
 

6. Specific approval of the Public Works Director of the City of Rosenberg shall be 
required for an ornamental street light design/layout in which the number of 
ornamental lights is greater than the number of standard lights by one (1) to ten 
(10) lights.  For an ornamental street light design/layout in which the number of 
ornamental lights exceeds the number of standard lights by more than (10) lights, 
approval of City Council shall be required. 
 

7. The subdivider shall submit a letter to the City of Rosenberg documenting that 
the above guidelines are met and that the recurring costs associated with any 
additional lights will be paid directly to CenterPoint Energy. 

reneel
Text Box
Exhibit "A" to Resolution No. R-1780



 
City of Missouri City, Texas 
Design Manual Excerpt 
Chapter 4 - Street Lighting & Overhead Utilities

reneel
Text Box
City of Missouri City, TexasDesign Manual ExcerptChapter 4 - Street Lighting & Overhead Utilities

reneel
Rectangle





reneel
Rectangle

reneel
Rectangle



reneel
Rectangle

reneel
Rectangle





reneel
Rectangle



reneel
Rectangle



reneel
Rectangle



reneel
Rectangle



reneel
Rectangle



reneel
Rectangle



CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
April 15, 2014 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

10 Resolution No. R-1781 – Dry Creek Drainage Improvements Project 
Special Warranty Deed 

ITEM/MOTION 

Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-1781, a Resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute, for 
and on behalf of the City, a Special Warranty Deed regarding certain real property associated with the Dry 
Creek Drainage Improvements Project. 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[   ] One-time 
[   ] Recurring 
[X] N/A 

Budgeted: 

[   ] Yes  [   ] No  [X] N/A 

Source of Funds:  N/A 

 

[   ] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[X] District 4 
[   ] City-wide 
[   ] N/A 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  MUD #:  N/A 
 

1. Resolution No. R-1781 
2. Bayou Crossing Section 1  
3. Bayou Crossing Section 1 Partial Replat No. One 
4. Bayou Crossing Section 2 
5. Bayou Crossing Section 2 Partial Replat No. One 

 

APPROVALS 
Submitted by:   

 
Charles A. Kalkomey, P.E. 
City Engineer 
 

Reviewed by:   
 
[   ] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services   
[   ] Asst. City Manager for Public Services  
[X] City Attorney    LL/ks 
[   ] City Engineer 
[   ] (Other) 

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council: 
   
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

As part of the City’s continuing efforts to improve Dry Creek, the City and the County worked together to 
construct major channel improvements to that section of Dry Creek between Louise Street and Airport 
Avenue.  The channel was widened to conform to the 150-foot wide easement granted by the developer of 
the Bayou Crossing development. 
 
In order to minimize costs on the project, the City was successful in negotiating with the developer for the 
disposal of the dirt.  In Bayou Crossing Section One, Restricted Reserve “B” was adjacent to the channel 
and was a detention basin.  This basin received the majority of the excavated material and has been 
replatted as an unrestricted reserve. 
 
In Bayou Crossing Section Two, Restricted Reserve “A” was also a detention basin.  This has been 
replatted into Reserve “A-1” which is still restricted to detention purposes and Reserve “A-2” which was 
also filled and is an unrestricted reserve.   
 
The homeowners association, which is controlled by the developer at this point in time, will retain 
ownership of both Unrestricted Reserve “B” in Section One and Unrestricted Reserve “A-2” in Section Two.  
The City is being deeded Restricted Reserve “A-1”, which will continue to be used for detention purposes 
for the Dry Creek Watershed. 



 
Also included in the deed to the City is Restricted Reserve “B” in Section Two.  This is a 0.0962 acre parcel 
adjacent to Louise Street that contains both Reliant Energy and Southwestern Bell easements.  The 
property has no other potential use at this time due to its size and the easements. By conveying these two 
parcels to the City, the homeowners association will no longer have title to any common property within the 
development. 
 
A copy of the four (4) plats referenced above are attached for your information.  Staff recommends 
approval of Resolution No. R-1781 as presented. 
 



RESOLUTION NO. R-1781 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROSENBERG, TEXAS, AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE, 
FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE CITY, A SPECIAL WARRANTY DEED 
REGARDING CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY ASSOCIATED WITH THE 
DRY CREEK DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT. 
 

*  *  *  *  * 
 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG: 
 
 Section 1. The Mayor is hereby authorized to execute a Special Warranty 

Deed between the City of Rosenberg, Texas, and Bayou Crossing Homeowners’ 

Association, to convey a certain real property associated with the Dry Creek Drainage 

Improvements Project. A copy of such Special Warranty Deed is attached hereto as 

Exhibit “A” and made a part hereof for all purposes.  

 PASSED, APPROVED, AND RESOLVED this _____ day of ___________ 2014. 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
 
              
Linda Cernosek, CITY SECRETARY   Vincent M. Morales, Jr., MAYOR 
 
 



Exhibit "A" to Resolution  No. R-1781













                                                                                                                                                                                                           











CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
April 15, 2014 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

11 Resolution No. R-1782 – TxDOT ROE Permission for Environmental 
Survey/Evaluation and Transfer of Ownership of Archeological Artifacts 

ITEM/MOTION 

Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-1782, a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to 
execute, for and on behalf of the City, a Texas Department of Transportation Permission for Right-of-Entry 
for Environmental Surveys, Right-of-Entry Agreement for Archeological Evaluation, and Transfer of 
Ownership Archeological Artifacts from Fort Bend County, Texas, associated with the State Highway 36 
Improvements between US 59 and FM 2218. 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[   ] One-time 
[   ] Recurring 
[X] N/A 

Budgeted: 

[   ] Yes  [   ] No  [X] N/A 

Source of Funds:  N/A 

 

[   ] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[X] District 4 
[   ] City-wide 
[   ] N/A 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  MUD #:  N/A 
 

1. Resolution No. R-1782 
2. Castille Correspondence 01-07-14 

 

APPROVALS 

Submitted by:   

 
Charles A. Kalkomey, P.E. 
City Engineer 
 

Reviewed by:   
 
[   ] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services   
[   ] Asst. City Manager for Public Services  
[X] City Attorney    LL/ks 
[   ] City Engineer 
[   ] (Other) 
 

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council: 
   
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT) is in the planning stages for improvements to State 
Highway 36 between U.S. Highway 59/IH 69 and F.M. Highway 2218.  As a part of process, they must 
conduct an Environmental Survey and an Archeological Evaluation on the potential areas of right-of-way 
takings. 
 
The parcels of land identified in this Right of Entry request from TxDOT are those properties owned by the 
City adjacent to State Highway 36.  This includes the Seabourne Creek Park property, as well as the public 
rights-of-way such as Band Road, J. Meyer Road, Marvin Street, and Kay-Cee Drive.  The work would be 
limited to the area of interest adjacent to State Highway 36, and would not, for example, include the entire 
Seabourne Creek Park. 
 
There are two forms for each parcel of land.  The first is simply a Right-of-Entry granted to TxDOT.  The 
second form would transfer any ownership of any found artifacts.  This would require TxDOT to transfer 
any items found to the Texas Historical Commission at TxDOT’s expense. 
 
Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. R-1782. 
 



RESOLUTION NO. R-1782 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROSENBERG, TEXAS, AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO 
EXECUTE, FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE CITY, A TEXAS 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION PERMISSION FOR RIGHT-OF-
ENTRY FOR ENVIRONMENTAL SURVEYS, RIGHT-OF-ENTRY 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHEOLOGICAL EVALUATION, AND 
TRANSFER OF OWNERSHIP ARCHEOLOGICAL ARTIFACTS FROM 
FORT BEND COUNTY, TEXAS, ASSOCIATED WITH THE STATE 
HIGHWAY 36 IMPROVEMENTS BETWEEN US 59 AND FM 2218. 
 

*  *  *  *  * 
  
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG: 
 
 Section 1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to execute the following 

documents related to the State Highway 35 Improvements Project between US 59 and 

FM 2218: 

a) Permission for Right-of-Entry for Environmental Surveys/Texas 

Department of Transportation Right-of-Entry Agreement for 

Archeological Evaluation. 

b) Transfer of Ownership Archeological Artifacts from Fort Bend County, 

Texas. 

Section 2. Copies of such documents are attached hereto as Exhibit “A” (ID 

No. 0312-00-000-0123-901), Exhibit “B” (ID No. 6205-00-000-0002-901), Exhibit “C” (ID 

No. 0131-00-000-005-901), Exhibit “D” (ID No. 0312-00-000-0007-901), Exhibit “E” (ID 

No. 0358-00-006-0061-901), Exhibit “F” (0312-00-000-0006-901), Exhibit “G” (0312-00-

000-0120-901), Exhibit “H” (0131-00-000-0007-901), Exhibit “I” (0392-00-000-0002-

901), Exhibit “J” (0131-00-009-0031-901), EXHIBIT “K” (0312-00-000-0415-901), 

EXHIBIT “L” (5615-00-000-0001-901), EXHIBIT “M” (0312-00-000-0480-901), EXHIBIT 

“N” (0312-00-000-0436-901) and EXHBIT “O” (6205-00-000-0001-901) made a part 

hereof for all purposes.  

  



PASSED, APPROVED, AND RESOLVED this _____ day of ___________ 2014. 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
 
              
Linda Cernosek, CITY SECRETARY   Vincent M. Morales, Jr., MAYOR 
 
 



EXHIBIT "A" (1 of 5)



EXHIBIT "A" (2 of 5)



EXHIBIT "A" (3 of 5)



EXHIBIT "A" (4 of 5)



EXHIBIT "A" (5 of 5)

KAYES
Typewritten Text

KAYES
Typewritten Text

KAYES
Typewritten Text
Figure 1

KAYES
Typewritten Text



EXHIBIT "B" (1 of 5)



EXHIBIT "B" (2 of 5)



EXHIBIT "B" (3 of 5)



EXHIBIT "B" (4 of 5)



EXHIBIT "B" (5 of 5)

KAYES
Typewritten Text
Figure 1

KAYES
Typewritten Text

KAYES
Typewritten Text

KAYES
Typewritten Text

KAYES
Typewritten Text

KAYES
Typewritten Text



EXHIBIT "C" (1 of 5)



EXHIBIT "C" (2 of 5)



EXHIBIT "C" (3 of 5)



EXHIBIT "C" (4 of 5)



EXHIBIT "C" (5 of 5)

KAYES
Typewritten Text
Figure 1

KAYES
Typewritten Text

KAYES
Typewritten Text

KAYES
Typewritten Text

KAYES
Typewritten Text

KAYES
Typewritten Text



EXHIBIT "D" (1 of 5)



EXHIBIT "D" (2 of 5)



EXHIBIT "D" (3 of 5)



EXHIBIT "D" (4 of 5)



EXHIBIT "D" (5 of 5)

KAYES
Typewritten Text
Figure 1

KAYES
Typewritten Text

KAYES
Typewritten Text

KAYES
Typewritten Text

KAYES
Typewritten Text

KAYES
Typewritten Text



EXHIBIT "E" (1 of 5)



EXHIBIT "E" (2 of 5)



EXHIBIT "E" (3 of 5)



EXHIBIT "E" (4 of 5)



EXHIBIT "E" (5 of 5)

KAYES
Typewritten Text
Figure 1

KAYES
Typewritten Text

KAYES
Typewritten Text

KAYES
Typewritten Text

KAYES
Typewritten Text

KAYES
Typewritten Text



EXHIBIT "F" (1 of 5)



EXHIBIT "F" (2 of 5)



EXHIBIT "F" (3 of 5)



EXHIBIT "F" (4 of 5)



EXHIBIT "F" (5 of 5)

KAYES
Typewritten Text
Figure 1

KAYES
Typewritten Text

KAYES
Typewritten Text

KAYES
Typewritten Text

KAYES
Typewritten Text

KAYES
Typewritten Text



EXHIBIT "G" (1 of 5)



EXHIBIT "G" (2 of 5)



EXHIBIT "G" (3 of 5)



EXHIBIT "G" (4 of 5)



EXHIBIT "G" (5 of 5)

KAYES
Typewritten Text
Figure 1

KAYES
Typewritten Text

KAYES
Typewritten Text

KAYES
Typewritten Text

KAYES
Typewritten Text

KAYES
Typewritten Text



EXHIBIT "H" (1 of 5)



EXHIBIT "H" (2 of 5)



EXHIBIT "H" (3 of 5)



EXHIBIT "H" (4 of 5)



EXHIBIT "H" (5 of 5)

KAYES
Typewritten Text
Figure 1

KAYES
Typewritten Text

KAYES
Typewritten Text

KAYES
Typewritten Text

KAYES
Typewritten Text

KAYES
Typewritten Text



EXHIBIT "I" (1 of 5)



EXHIBIT "I" (2 of 5)



EXHIBIT "I" (3 of 5)



EXHIBIT "I" (4 of 5)



EXHIBIT "I" (5 of 5)

KAYES
Typewritten Text
Figure 1

KAYES
Typewritten Text

KAYES
Typewritten Text

KAYES
Typewritten Text

KAYES
Typewritten Text

KAYES
Typewritten Text



EXHIBIT "J" (1 of 5)



EXHIBIT "J" (2 of 5)



EXHIBIT "J" (3 of 5)



EXHIBIT "J" (4 of 5)



EXHIBIT "J" (5 of 5)

KAYES
Typewritten Text
Figure 1

KAYES
Typewritten Text

KAYES
Typewritten Text

KAYES
Typewritten Text

KAYES
Typewritten Text

KAYES
Typewritten Text



EXHIBIT "K" (1 of 5)



EXHIBIT "K" (2 of 5)



EXHIBIT "K" (3 of 5)



EXHIBIT "K" (4 of 5)



EXHIBIT "K" (5 of 5)

KAYES
Typewritten Text
Figure 1

KAYES
Typewritten Text

KAYES
Typewritten Text

KAYES
Typewritten Text

KAYES
Typewritten Text

KAYES
Typewritten Text



EXHIBIT "L" (1 of 5)



EXHIBIT "L" (2 of 5)



EXHIBIT "L" (3 of 5)



EXHIBIT "L" (4 of 5)



EXHIBIT "L" (5 of 5)

KAYES
Typewritten Text
Figure 1

KAYES
Typewritten Text

KAYES
Typewritten Text

KAYES
Typewritten Text

KAYES
Typewritten Text

KAYES
Typewritten Text



EXHIBIT "M" (1 of 5)



EXHIBIT "M" (2 of 5)



EXHIBIT "M" (3 of 5)



EXHIBIT "M" (4 of 5)



EXHIBIT "M" (5 of 5)

KAYES
Typewritten Text
Figure 1

KAYES
Typewritten Text

KAYES
Typewritten Text

KAYES
Typewritten Text

KAYES
Typewritten Text

KAYES
Typewritten Text



EXHIBIT "N" (1 of 5)



EXHIBIT "N" (2 of 5)



EXHIBIT "N" (3 of 5)



EXHIBIT "N" (4 of 5)



EXHIBIT "N" (5 of 5)

KAYES
Typewritten Text
Figure 1

KAYES
Typewritten Text

KAYES
Typewritten Text

KAYES
Typewritten Text

KAYES
Typewritten Text

KAYES
Typewritten Text



EXHIBIT "O" (1 of 5)



EXHIBIT "O" (2 of 5)



EXHIBIT "O" (3 of 5)



EXHIBIT "O" (4 of 5)



EXHIBIT "O" (5 of 5)

KAYES
Typewritten Text
Figure 1

KAYES
Typewritten Text

KAYES
Typewritten Text

KAYES
Typewritten Text

KAYES
Typewritten Text

KAYES
Typewritten Text





CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
April 15, 2014 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

12 Rosenberg Civic Center Usage Discussion 

ITEM/MOTION 

Review and discuss Rosenberg Civic Center usage, and take action as necessary. 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[   ] One-time 
[   ] Recurring 
[X] N/A 

Budgeted: 

[   ] Yes  [   ] No  [X] N/A 

Source of Funds:  N/A 

 

[   ] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[   ] District 4 
[   ] City-wide 
[X] N/A 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  MUD #:  N/A 
 

1. Rosenberg Civic Center Usage – 2013 – Provided under separate cover. 
2. Civic Center Rental and Facility Use Policies – 01-02-14 

 

APPROVALS 
Submitted by:   

Amanda Bolf/ks 
 
Amanda Bolf 
Councilor, District 4 
 

Reviewed by:   
 
[   ] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services  
[   ] Asst. City Manager for Public Services  
[X] Exec. Dir. of Support Services     
[   ] City Engineer 
[   ] (Other) 
 

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council: 
   
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

This Agenda item will allow for City Council to review and discuss the overall usage of the Rosenberg Civic 
Center by paying customers as well as complimentary use by non-profit organizations.  The current Rental 
and Facility Use Policies have been included as supporting documentation for this Agenda item. A 
spreadsheet documenting all usage for calendar year 2013 has been provided under separate cover for 
City Council’s review.   
 



Rosenberg Civic Center Rental and Facility Use Policies                  Page 1 of 7 
Updated:  1/2/2014 

www.rosenbergciviccenter.com 
832.595.3520 

3825 Highway 36 South 
Rosenberg, Texas 77471 

Civic Center 
Rental and Facility Use Policies 

 

We strive to provide first class service to all of our users at the Civic Center, and to do so, there are a few rules that must 
be followed to ensure public safety, and an enjoyable experience for all.  It is the responsibility of all renters and users of 
the facility to know and follow the Rosenberg Civic Center Rental and Facility Use Policies, and to ensure everyone 
involved in their event follows them as well (attendees, guests, contractors such as caterer, deejay, decorators, etc.).  
Failure to comply with these policies may result in expulsion, loss of fees paid, and/or prohibition of future Center use.  
Please consult with Center management if there are any questions related to facility use.     
 

FACILITY HOURS 
 Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday Sunday 

Business 
Hours 

7:30 a.m. – 
5:30 p.m. 

7:30 a.m. – 
5:30 p.m. 

7:30 a.m. – 
5:30 p.m. 

7:30 a.m. – 
5:30 p.m. 

8:00 a.m. – 
5:00 p.m. 

n/a n/a 

Regular 
Rental Hours 

7:30 a.m. – 
9:00 p.m. 

7:30 a.m. – 
9:00 p.m. 

7:30 a.m. – 
9:00 p.m. 

7:30 a.m. – 
9:00 p.m. 

8:00 a.m. – 
5:00 p.m. 

n/a n/a 

After Hours 
Rental hours 

n/a n/a n/a n/a 
5:00 p.m. – 
1:00 a.m. 

8:00 a.m. – 
1:00 a.m. 

8:00 a.m. – 
6:00 p.m. 

 

GENERAL CONDITIONS 
The individual listed on the Rental Contract must be present at the scheduled function for the entire duration (including 
set up and dismantle).  Lessee may not use the Center for any purpose other than that stated on the lease agreement.   
At no time shall a reserving party sublease or assign its lease to another group or organization.  Functions held at the 
Civic Center must comply with all applicable City, State and Federal regulations.   
 

Center common areas (halls, sidewalks, entrances and exits, restrooms) may not be used for the exclusive purpose of 
any one group, unless the entire facility has been reserved on the rental contract.  Minors shall be supervised at all times 
and are not allowed to run, play or loiter in spaces not listed in the rental contract, including exterior areas and 
playground.  Event attendees should not roam or loiter in hallways or common areas as not to disrupt other events in 
progress. 
 

Lessee shall not permit more persons in the facility than can safely and freely move about, as determined by the Fire 
Marshal of the City of Rosenberg. 
 

The Center is a non-smoking facility. Smoking prohibited except in designated outdoor areas. 
  

RESERVATIONS 
Reservations must be made in person during business hours at the Rosenberg Civic Center (3825 Highway 36 South, 
Rosenberg, Texas 77471).  A 50% booking deposit is required (this will be applied toward total rental fees due), along 
with an executed contract, to reserve a particular room, date and time.  Hours reserved must include the necessary time 
for set-up, dismantle, and clean-up activities.     
 

FEES 
Civic Center usage fees are established by the Rosenberg City Council, and are attached to these policies as a separate 
exhibit – Rosenberg Civic Center Fee Schedule.  In general, the fees are based on hourly use of the facility (regular hours 
and after-hours), and these fees include all necessary and available equipment required by the rental (tables, chairs, 
microphones, etc. – please consult with Center staff for a list of available equipment for your event).  The Saturday 
Rental Packages for the Entire Facility, Main Hall, or ½ Main Hall are available for these days/rooms only, and include ten 
(10) hours of room use (booked on the same day), and any required equipment available at the Center (tables, chairs, 
dance floor, stage, microphones, etc.).  These package fees are based on daily use vs. hourly.    



Rosenberg Civic Center Rental and Facility Use Policies                  Page 2 of 7 
Updated:  1/2/2014 

 
DAMAGE DEPOSITS 
A damage deposit (refundable) will be required to guarantee Lessee will leave the Center, equipment and grounds in as 
good or better condition than existed prior to Lessee’s occupancy for event.  Amount of damage deposit will be 
determined by Staff dependent on risk level of event, not to exceed fifty (50) percent of total rental costs (exclusive of 
any security costs).  Damage deposits must be paid at least thirty (30) days before event, and may be reduced for costs 
incurred from damages, replacement of missing equipment or for required clean-up.  The City of Rosenberg will refund 
any damage deposit due within thirty (30) days of the rental date.  Any charges made against the deposit will be 
specified at the time of the refund.  In the event of reduction of the deposit, the decision of the City of Rosenberg shall 
be deemed final and binding.  If damage to the building or other leased equipment is incurred that exceeds the amount 
of the damage deposit paid, the City will retain the deposit and bill the Lessee for additional charges.    
Pre and post event inspections of the event space specified in the Lessee’s contract (includes common areas such as 
lobby, restrooms, front portico and parking lot) will be conducted by civic center event staff prior to set up  and after 
clean up of the contracted event.  Lessee assumes all responsibility for damages incurred during contracted event by 
lessee, attendees/guests, third party vendors hired by lessee and/or any other participant of the contracted event time 
and space.  
The City of Rosenberg reserves the right to increase the damage deposit amount or deny a contract based on applicant’s 
past rental history such as damaging city property, non-payment and not following City usage policies. 
 

SECURITY AND SUPERVISION FEES 
Security is required for any event involving the consumption of alcoholic beverages, or as deemed necessary by 
management for other high risk events.  Security/supervision shall be provided by the Rosenberg Police Department.  No 
other agencies or outside services will be permitted to provide security of any event at the Rosenberg Civic Center.  
If security is required due to event risk, security fees shall be borne in full by the Lessee, and shall be paid no less than 
thirty (30) days before the event.  Failure to provide payment by thirty (30) days prior to the event shall result in 
cancellation of security, and any related activities (alcohol service, high-risk activities) at the event (see “Alcohol” section 
below).   
The number of officers required, and their hours shall be set by the Rosenberg Police Department, whose decision will 
be final.  All certified peace officers will be in uniform and shall remain on duty until the facility and parking lots are 
vacated.  If circumstances exist or develop that will likely require additional security, the City shall have the right to 
determine to what extent it is required, and any expenses incurred by the City for said security will be paid in full by 
Lessee.   
 

Police Security fees are reviewed and adjusted periodically by the City to ensure costs are being covered by fees paid.  
Current rates are available from Center Staff upon request.  The City reserves the right to change the security fees at any 
time, without notice.   
 

To assure availability of Rosenberg Police Department certified peace officer services, it is recommended that security 
be arranged at the time of booking.  Lessee is required to confirm the total number of expected guests no less than 
thirty (30) days prior to function to confirm certified peace officer services.  
 

If a circumstance develops or exists that, in the opinion of the City Manager or any other representative of the City, 
requires additional security or will likely require additional security, the City representative shall have the right to 
determine to what extent additional security is required. If additional security is deemed necessary by the City’s 
representative, all expenses incurred by the City for security will be paid in full by the Lessee.  
 

These provisions cover all uses of the Civic Center – private, City, or community.  
 

PAYMENT OF RENTAL FEES 
Room rental fees must be paid in full no less than sixty (60) days prior to function.  Required security fee and/or damage 
deposit must be paid in full no less than (30) thirty days prior to function.  Room rental fees not paid in full sixty (60) 
days prior to function will result in automatic cancellation of the event and forfeiture of all rental fees paid to date.  Fees 
may be paid in person at the Center, via cash, check, or credit card (Visa or MasterCard) with photo identification.  
Please note:  the City assesses a 5% fee for credit card transactions.   



Rosenberg Civic Center Rental and Facility Use Policies                  Page 3 of 7 
Updated:  1/2/2014 

 
CANCELLATION POLICY 
Lessees wishing to cancel their rental contracts with the Center shall do so via the Rental Cancellation Request Form.  
Cancellations requests received more than ninety (90) days before rental date will result in the retention of fifty (50%) 
percent of all room rental fees paid.  If the cancellation request is made ninety (90) days or less before the function, the 
City will retain all rental fees paid.  Any security fees or damage deposits pre-paid (due at 30 days) will be refunded to 
lessee if event cancellation request is more than thirty (30) days from event.   
 

Rental contracts cancelled for non-payment of fees per contract terms will forfeit all fees paid to date of cancellation. 
 

From time to time, a function may have to be cancelled due to an emergency or an extreme situation beyond the 
control of the City of Rosenberg. In the case of such an emergency or situation, the Lessee will have the option to 
reschedule the function or request a refund in full of deposits and fees paid to date.  
 

APPLYING PAYMENTS TO DIFFERENT DATE 
In the event Lessee requests a date change and rollover of payments to-date to a different function, Lessee will be 
required to pay current rental contract amount in full, regardless of due dates for old/new rental contracts.  Once paid in 
full, roll-over will be allowed ONE TIME if requested via Rental Cancellation Request Form more than 90 days prior to 
event.  If request is 90 days or less before scheduled event, cancellation policy applies. 
 

COMMUNITY USE PROVISIONS 
Entities which share the City’s common goals of provision of services to enhance the quality of life of Rosenberg 
residents, including Lamar Consolidated Independent School District (LCISD), the Central Fort Bend Chamber Alliance 
(CFBCA), and Fort Bend County, and/or other entities which hold and provide copies of active tax-exempt designations 
generally described under section 501(c)(3) of the Federal Tax Code, and which provide direct services to the Rosenberg 
community, subject to final approval by the City manager, shall enjoy use of rooms at the Civic Center for no fee, up to a 
maximum of one use per month, during regular rental hours, schedules subject to management approval, so long as:  
events are booked at least 30 days out, and no more than 12 months out, and do not interfere with other bookings 
(City, or paid), and can be accommodated with available equipment; and should significant set up be required that is 
unable to be facilitated due to other Civic Center staff constraints, the entity requiring use must provide the necessary 
assistance to set up the room for complimentary use.  
 

Requests for use of the Center under the community use provision must be made via the Complimentary Use Request 
Form, and will be reviewed / approved before reservations can be made.  Staff will make every effort notify applicant 
within five (5) business days of request, regarding decision about whether or not it can be honored.   
 

ALCOHOL 
Any person desiring to lease the Center and provide alcoholic beverages, shall indicate such on their rental contract, for 
review by the Chief of Police of the City of Rosenberg, and additionally, secure all permits/licenses required by law.  
Alcoholic beverages may be served, sold, or consumed only if approved and stated on executed rental contract.  Alcohol 
may not be served, sold, or consumed after 12 midnight, and glass beer bottles are not allowed at the Center.  If alcohol 
is served, sold, or consumed at a non-alcoholic function, rental contract will be considered null and void, the function 
immediately cancelled, and client and guests will be required to immediately vacate the Center.   
  
Security will be required in all cases when alcoholic beverages are to be served, sold, or consumed and must be provided 
by the Rosenberg Police Department (see “Security Fees” above”).  The Chief of Police or his/her designee shall 
determine whether certified peace officers are required and if so, the number of such officers.  Security will be required 
from the start of the event, until the property is vacated.  Should rentals exceed the stated rental time, the 
corresponding security costs will be charged against the Lessee’s damage deposit. 
 

Functions which include the sale of alcoholic beverages require a Tobacco and Alcoholic Beverage Commission (TABC) 
temporary permit.  Lessee is required to obtain a permit from the TABC and file permit copy with the Center no less than 
forty-eight (48) hours prior to function. Failure to provide TABC permit copy shall result in cancellation of the reservation 
and forfeiture of all rental fees and deposits.  TABC, Richmond Outpost – (281) 239-2607. 
 



Rosenberg Civic Center Rental and Facility Use Policies                  Page 4 of 7 
Updated:  1/2/2014 

ATTENDANCE & EVENT LAYOUT DIAGRAMS 
Lessee is required to provide final number of people in attendance and event layout diagrams to Center personnel no 
later than thirty (30) days prior to function.  Attendance confirmation is required for all events necessitating security.   
 

Event layout diagrams not received within two (2) weeks of the event will be assigned a standard event set up by the 
Center.  Significant equipment or set up changes received within three (3) days of event are subject to additional fees at 
the Center’s discretion depending on to staff/hours needed to facilitate requested changes.   
For all after-hours events, civic center staff will set tables and chairs (taking off of racks and placing in room), dance floor 
and staging.  Lessee will have to arrange tables and chairs according to event particulars.   
 

PROPER USE OF FACILITY 
Exits, fire extinguishers and signs must remain visible, unobstructed, and accessible at all times.  
 

Cylinders of compressed gases (e.g. helium tanks for balloons) are subject to approval by Fire Marshal. Cylinders must be 
secured in an upright position at all times with a standard carrier device. 
 

Lessee shall not move or alter Center audio/visual equipment.  Lessee is liable for any equipment not returned or 
damaged. 
 

Furniture is common areas may not to be moved by Lessee.  
 

STAFFING 
An authorized Center/City Representative will be assigned to supervise the building during all functions.  
  
SET-UP ACTIVITIES 
Reservations must include the hours required for function set-up, decorating and deliveries of any kind associated with 
the function or function set-up activities.  
 

Center staff will provide one (1) event set up per Lessee Event Layout Diagram for events scheduled during regular hours 
of operation.  For after-hours events, this will only include set up of tables and chairs (taking off of racks and placing in 
room) and placement of the dance floor or staging.  Lessee will have to arrange tables and chairs according to event 
particulars.  Staging and dance floor may not be moved by lessee and cannot be moved once placed by civic center staff. 
Requests which require significant changes in set up may incur additional fees to be determined by management.   
 

SIGNAGE 
Signage of any sort is not allowed on Center property.  Lessee will be given the opportunity to request function-specific 
language to be displayed on the digital marquee the day of their event.   
 

ENTERTAINMENT 
The Center is not liable for malfunctions of equipment provided by outside vendors such as DJ or entertainment 
services.  Center audio systems may not be used or connected to by DJ services or any third party.    All equipment for 
“amplified” entertainment purposes must be provided by vendor contracted by Lessee.   
 

Music and loud noise will be monitored by Center staff and must be kept at a reasonable level at all times.  Failure to 
abide by the City of Rosenberg noise ordinance will result in the cessation of all music regardless of what time of day or 
night. The City event representative is authorized to take appropriate action to reduce or eliminate any excessive, 
disruptive or unusual noise.   
 

CANDLES  
The use of candles of any kind for ceremonial or decorative purposes is prohibited on Center property.   
 

FOOD 
Lessees may contract with whomever they desire to provide services for their function, provided they adhere to the 
terms of use, and the City’s health regulations.  Lessee is required to cover all tables when food or drink of any kind is 
served during the function.  Lessee is required to obtain all necessary permits if serving or selling food to general public.  
If a health permit is required, Lessee is required to file a copy of said permit from the City of Rosenberg Health 



Rosenberg Civic Center Rental and Facility Use Policies                  Page 5 of 7 
Updated:  1/2/2014 

Department with the Center no less than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the function; failure to present permit copy shall 
result in cancellation of the reservation and forfeiture of all rental fees and deposits.  City of Rosenberg Health 
Department - (832) 595-3500.   
 

Lessee is responsible for caterer/s following the Center’s facility use policies and will be held liable for any damages to 
facility associated with catering activities during function.   The use of catering candles for chafing dishes is permitted, 
with a protective mat under each heated chafing unit.  Caterers are required to supervise the serving area at all times. 
Lessee will be held responsible for any damage to facility, facility equipment, including flooring and carpeting.  
 

CONFETTI, ETC. 
Confetti is not allowed at any time inside or outside the Center.  The throwing or pitching of any substances such as 
natural flower petals, silk or synthetic flower petals, rice, birdseed, silly-string, or small packaged items is prohibited on 
Center property.  Glitter, hay, fog/smoke machines and flammable gas/liquids are prohibited.  The use of sparklers is 
prohibited on Center property. The use of bubbles is prohibited on Center property.   
 

DECORATIONS 
No decorations or other materials of any kind may be nailed, tacked, taped, screwed, or pinned to any part of the inside 
or outside of the Center.  Spray painting is prohibited on Center property.  Decorative water fountains may not be 
operated inside the Center. Table top Ice Sculptures may be permitted with written approval by Center Management, 
and shall be presented in appropriate trays.    
 

DELIVERIES 
Deliveries may only be made within the scheduled hours on the Rental contract, and with Lessee or designated 
representative present. There are no provisions at the Center for storage of deliveries or supplies.  Civic Center staff is 
not liable for deliveries made to the Center.  Loading and unloading will take place on a first-come, first-served basis, 
through loading dock door. 
 

BREACH OF THE PEACE 
Any person at the Center whose conduct is disorderly or disruptive may be ejected from the premises by the City 
representative or a certified peace officer.  A representative of the City of Rosenberg Police Department or the Center 
has the right to close a function or expel any individual or group if they are abusing the building, building policies, or if 
there exists any conditions or circumstances which are provoking or may tend to provoke a breach of the peace or 
circumstances which could endanger the health, safety, and well being of any person or the destruction of property.  
The City’s decision in this matter shall be final and binding.     
 

The Lessee for the function at which any such ejection occurs shall hold harmless, indemnify, and defend the City, its 
officers, agents and employees against any claim related to such ejection.  
 

DISMANTLE AND CLEAN-UP ACTIVITIES 
Music/entertainment and event activities are required to cease one (1) hour before function end time to ensure 
adequate time for dismantling and clean-up.  Alcohol may not be sold, served or consumed after 12 a.m. (midnight).  
Lessee is required to return the facility, grounds (including parking lot), and the catering kitchen if rented, to its pre-
function condition.   
 
Lessee must remove everything from the Center including all personal affects, rental equipment, and decorations, but 
will not be required to dismantle tables, chairs, or any Center equipment.  Lessee should remove all garbage and place in 
dumpster behind building.    
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 



Rosenberg Civic Center Rental and Facility Use Policies                  Page 6 of 7 
Updated:  1/2/2014 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 



Rosenberg Civic Center Rental and Facility Use Policies                  Page 7 of 7 
Updated:  1/2/2014 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 
I acknowledge that I have received and read the above Rosenberg Civic Center Rental and Facility Use Policies, and 
hereby agree to abide by them for the duration of my rental.  Additionally, I acknowledge that any violation of said 
policies may result in expulsion, loss of fees paid, and/or prohibition of future Center use, and that the City’s decision in 
this manner shall be binding.   
 
 
____________________________________________ 
Lessee Printed Name (First and Last) 
 
____________________________________________ 
Signature 
 
____________________________________________ 
Date 
 
 
Staff Use 
 
Rental Contract #: ___________________ 
 
Date Received: _____________________ 
 
Staff Initials:  _______________________   



 
 
 
 
 

ITEM 13 
 

Consider motion to adjourn for Executive 
Session.  

 



 
 
 
 
 

ITEM 14 
 

Hold Executive Session to deliberate the 
employment, evaluation and duties of Police 
Chief as authorized by Section 551.074 of the 
Texas Government Code.  
 
  



 
 
 
 
 

ITEM 15 
 

Adjourn Executive Session, reconvene into 
Regular Session, and take action as necessary 
as a result of Executive Session. 



CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 

April 15, 2014 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

16 Resolution No. R-1776 – Police Chief’s Employment Agreement 

ITEM/MOTION 
 

Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-1776, a Resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute, for 
and on behalf of the City, an Employment Agreement by and between the City and Dallis Warren to serve 
as Police Chief.   

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[   ] One-time 
[   ] Recurring 
[X] N/A 

Budgeted: 

[   ] Yes  [   ] No  [X] N/A 

Source of Funds:  N/A  

 

[   ] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[   ] District 4 
[   ] City-wide 
[X] N/A 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  MUD #:  N/A 
 

1. Resolution No. R-1776 – Exhibit “A” provided under separate confidential cover 
2. City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt – 03-18-14 
3. City Council Meeting Minutes – 03-10-14 

 
APPROVALS 

Submitted by:   
 

Vincent M. Morales, Jr./lo 
 
Vincent M. Morales, Jr. 
Mayor 

Reviewed by:   
 
[X] Exec. Director of Administrative Services   
[   ] Asst. City Manager for Public Services 
[X] City Attorney LL/lo    
[   ] City Engineer 
[X ] Human Resources Director 
 

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council: 
 
 
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

For your review and consideration, attached please find Resolution No. R-1776 which provides 
authorization for the Mayor to execute an Employment Agreement with Dallis Warren for his service in the 
position of Police Chief.  
 
Exhibit “A” to Resolution No. R-1776 will be provided under separate confidential cover. 
 



 
RESOLUTION NO. R-1776 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROSENBERG, TEXAS, AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE, 
FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE CITY, AN EMPLOYMENT 
AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, 
TEXAS, AND DALLIS WARREN TO SERVE AS POLICE CHIEF.   
 

*  *  *  *  * 
 

WHEREAS, City Council duly affirms the appointment of Dallis Warren as Police 
Chief for the City of Rosenberg effective March 10, 2014; and,  

 
WHEREAS, the Police Chief has been charged by City Council with all of the duties, 

powers, and responsibilities commensurate with the Police Chief’s position and service; 
and,  

 
WHEREAS, the Police Chief previously acted in the capacity of Interim Police Chief 

since his appointment by City Council on November 19, 2013, and participated in the Police 
Chief Assessment Center on February 22, 2014; and, 

 
WHEREAS, City Council has determined that such service will be subject to an 

Employment Agreement (Agreement) for said Police Chief which sets out compensation, 
duties, conditions, obligations, and other terms; now, therefore, 

 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG: 
 

Section 1. City Council appointed Dallis Warren as Police Chief for the City of 

Rosenberg on March 10, 2014.   

Section 2. City Council hereby authorizes the Mayor to execute an Employment 

Agreement which establishes compensation and other terms of employment of Dallis 

Warren in the position of Police Chief, said Employment Agreement being attached hereto 

as Exhibit “A” and made a part hereof for all purposes. 

Section 3. No provision of this Resolution shall be in conflict with any other 

agreements that may have been executed by Dallis Warren and the City. 

Section 4.  This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon adoption by 

the City Council. 

 PASSED, APPROVED, AND RESOLVED this _____ day of ___________ 2014. 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
              
Linda Cernosek, City Secretary    Vincent M. Morales, Jr., Mayor 



reneel
Rectangle





 
 
 
 
 

ITEM 17 
 

Announcements. 
 



 
 
 
 
 

ITEM 18 
 

Adjournment. 
 


	Regular City Council Meeting Agenda - 04-15-14 - REGULAR AGENDA ONLY
	2 - Presentation on Proposed Eagle Scout Project for Brazos Park - Park Bench Restoration
	Presentation - Proposed Eagle Scout Project - Park Bench Restoration
	Parks and Recreation Board Meeting Draft Minute Excerpt - 03-27-14

	3 - Presentation on Proposed Eagle Scout Project for SCNP - Bluebird Conservation Project
	Presentation - Proposed Eagle Scout Project - Bluebird Conservation
	Parks and Recreation Board Meeting Draft Minute Excerpt - 03-27-14

	4 - Public Hearing on Ordinance No. 2014-15 - Re-Adopting Drought Contingency Plan
	Notice of Public Hearing on Adoption of Drought Contingency Plan - Published 04-06-14

	5 - Ordinance No. 2014-15 - Re-Adopting the Drought Contingency Plan
	Ordinance No. 2014-15
	Loft Correspondence - 02-28-14
	Ordinance No. 2010-31 - 12-21-10
	City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt - 12-21-10

	6 - Ordinance No. 2014-17 - Adopting Water Conservation Plan
	Ordinance No. 2014-17 - Redlined w/o attachments 
	Ordinance No. 2014-17
	Loft Correspondence - 02-28-14
	Ordinance No. 2009-17 - 04-07-09
	City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt - 04-07-09

	7 - Resolution No. R-1778 - CDBG North Side Sanitary Sewer Improvements Phase IX Bid Award
	Bid Summary Form
	Proposal
	Kaluza Correspondence - 04-02-14
	Project Map
	Resolution No. R-1778

	8 - Resolution No. R-1779 - Administrative Services Agreement with West Fort Bend Management District
	Resolution No. R-1779
	Administrative Services Agreement - Redlined
	Resolution No. R-899
	City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt - 01-06-09

	9 - Resolution No. R-1780 - Ornamental Street Light Guidelines
	Resolution No. R-1780
	City of Missouri City Design Standard Excerpt - Chapter 4, Section 4.05 - Ornamental Street Lights
	Code of Ordinances Excerpt - Sec. 25-71
	Design Standards Excerpt, Sec. 2.9
	Ornamental Street Light Example Photos
	City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt - 01-28-14
	Planning Commission Meeting Minute Excerpt - 02-26-14

	10 - Resolution No. R-1781 - Dry Creek Drainage Improvements Project Special Warranty Deed
	Resolution No. R-1781
	Bayou Crossing Section One
	Bayou Crossing Section One Replat No. One
	Bayou Crossing Section Two
	Bayou Crossing Section Two Replat No. One

	11 - Resolution No. R-1782 - TxDOT ROE Permission for Environmental Survey-Evaluation and Transfer of Ownership of Archeological Artifacts
	Resolution No. R-1782
	Castille Correspondence - 01-07-14

	12 - Rosenberg Civic Center Usage Discussion
	Civic Center Rental and Facility Use Policies - 01-02-14

	13 - Consider Motion to Adjourn for Executive Session
	14 - Hold Executive Session
	15 - Adjourn Executive Session
	16 - Resolution No. R-1776 - Police Chief's Employment Agreement
	Resolution No. R-1776 - Exhibit "A" provided under separate confidential cover
	City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt - 03-18-14
	City Council Meeting Minutes - 03-10-14

	17 - Announcements
	18 - Adjournment

	Name of Utility: City of Rosenberg
	Public Water Supply Identification Number PWS ID: 0790003
	Certificate of Convenience and Necessity CCN Number: 
	Surface Water Right ID Number: 
	Wastewater ID Number: WQ0010607
	Completed By: John Maresh
	Title: Assistant City Manager
	Address: 2110 4th Street
	City: Rosenberg
	Zip Code: 77471
	Email: johnm@ci.rosenberg.tx.us
	Telephone Number: 832-595-3500
	Date: 04-07-14
	Regional Water Planning Group: H
	Groundwater Conservation District: Ft. Bend Subsidence   District
	finance: Off
	3300: Yes
	tceq: Off
	Current service area size in square miles: 37
	Hprwsy1: 33832
	Hpwwsy1: 
	Hpwsy1: 31463
	Hprwsy2: 32761
	Hpwwsy2: 
	Hpwsy2: 30467
	Hprwsy3: 31689
	Hpwwsy3: 
	Hpwsy3: 29470
	Hprwsy4: 30618
	Hpwwsy4: 
	Hpwsy4: 28474
	Hprwsy5: 29961
	Hpwwsy5: 
	Hpwsy5: 27864
	Pprws20: 
	Ppwws20: 
	Ppws20: 
	Pprws30: 
	Ppwws30: 
	Ppws30: 
	Pprws40: 
	Ppwws40: 
	Ppws40: 
	Pprws50: 
	Ppwws50: 
	Ppws50: 
	Pprws60: 
	Ppwws60: 
	Commentprojpop: 
	Ppws60: 
	YearRow1: 2013
	SSy1: 1342130000
	PIy1: 
	EWy1: 
	SIy1: 1342130000
	YearRow2: 2012
	SSy2: 1299118000
	PIy2: 
	EWy2: 
	SIy2: 1299118000
	YearRow3: 2011
	SSy3: 1525960000
	PIy3: 
	EWy3: 
	SIy3: 1525960000
	YearRow4: 2010
	SSy4: 1262388000
	PIy4: 
	EWy4: 
	SIy4: 1262388000
	GPCDy1: 109
	GPCDy2: 109
	GPCDy3: 132
	GPCDy4: 113
	YearRow5: 2009
	SSy5: 1360815000
	PIy5: 
	EWy5: 
	SIy5: 1360815000
	GPCDy5: 124
	AverageSS: 1358082200
	AveragePI: 0
	AverageW: 0
	AverageSI: 1358082200
	AverageGPCD: 117.4
	gallons per day: 14000000
	Elevated: 1850000
	Ground: 3872000
	Water Supply SourceRow1: Groundwater
	Dropdown1: [Ground]
	Total GallonsRow1: 10000
	Water Supply SourceRow2: 
	Dropdown2: [Choose One]
	Total GallonsRow2: 
	Water Supply SourceRow3: 
	Dropdown3: [Choose One]
	Total GallonsRow3: 
	Water Supply SourceRow4: 
	Dropdown4: [Choose One]
	Total GallonsRow4: 
	Water Supply SourceRow5: 
	Dropdown5: [Choose One]
	Total GallonsRow5: 
	Water Supply SourceRow6: 
	Dropdown6: [Choose One]
	Total GallonsRow6: 
	Group1: Off
	estimated gallons per day: 
	Projdemy1: 
	Projdempop1: 
	Watdemgal1: 
	Projdemy2: 
	Projdempop2: 
	Watdemgal2: 
	Projdemy3: 
	Projdempop3: 
	Watdemgal3: 
	Projdemy4: 
	Projdempop4: 
	Watdemgal4: 
	Projdemy5: 
	Projdempop5: 
	Watdemgal5: 
	Projdemy6: 
	Projdempop6: 
	Watdemgal6: 
	Projdemy7: 
	Projdempop7: 
	Watdemgal7: 
	Projdemy8: 
	Projdempop8: 
	Watdemgal8: 
	Projdemy9: 
	Projdempop9: 
	Watdemgal9: 
	Projdemy10: 
	Projdempop10: 
	Watdemgal10: 
	Attach additional sheets if necessary: 
	Retail1: Lamar CISD
	WUC1: [Institutional]
	AnnualWU1: 37351000
	TR1: [Treated]
	Retail2: New Quest Properties
	WUC2: [Commercial]
	AnnualWU2: 34165800
	TR2: [Treated]
	Retail3: Reading Park Apts.
	WUC3: [Residential]
	AnnualWU3: 19391000
	TR3: [Treated]
	Retail4: Brazos Master Mtr Assn
	WUC4: [Commercial]
	AnnualWU4: 16834500
	TR4: [Treated]
	AnnualWU5: 14185000
	Retail5: Pecan Park Apts
	WUC5: [Residential]
	TR5: [Treated]
	Wholesale1: FBC MUD # 66
	WUC6: [Municipal]
	AnnualWU6: 14449300
	TR6: [Treated]
	Wholesale2: FBC MUD # 152
	WUC7: [Municipal]
	AnnualWU7: 30410000
	Wholesale3: FBC MUD # 155
	WUC8: [Municipal]
	AnnualWU8: 73639000
	TR8: [Treated]
	Wholesale4: FBC MUD # 158
	WUC9: [Municipal]
	AnnualWU9: 44554200
	TR9: [Treated]
	WUC10: [Choose One]
	AnnualWU10: 
	Wholesale5: 
	Provide additional comments about utility data below: 
	TR10: [Treated]
	ARMeteredSF: 8944
	ARUnmeteredSF: 
	ARConnSF: 8944
	ARMeteredMF: 3678
	ARUnmeteredMF: 
	ARConnMF: 3678
	ARMeteredInd: 10
	ARUnmeteredInd: 
	ARConnInd: 10
	ARMeteredCom: 1018
	ARUnmeteredCom: 
	ARConnCom: 1018
	ARMeteredIns: 208
	ARUnmeteredIns: 
	ARConnIns: 208
	ARMeteredAg: 
	ARUnmeteredAg: 
	ARConnAg: 0
	ARMeteredTOTAL: 13858
	ARUnmeteredTOTAL: 0
	ARConnTOTAL: 13858
	NewSF: 208
	NewSF2: 159
	NewSF3: 170
	NewSF4: 145
	NewSF5: 112
	NewMF: 5
	NewMF2: 4
	NewMF3: 
	NewMF4: 
	NewMF5: 
	NewInd: 
	NewInd2: 
	NewInd3: 
	NewInd4: 
	NewInd5: 1
	NewCom: 12
	NewCom2: 24
	NewCom3: 15
	NewCom4: 20
	NewCom5: 31
	NewIns: 4
	NewIns2: 2
	NewIns3: 1
	NewIns4: 5
	NewIns5: 1
	NewAg: 
	NewAg2: 
	NewAg3: 
	NewAg4: 
	NewAg5: 
	NewTotal: 229
	NewTotal2: 189
	NewTotal3: 186
	NewTotal4: 170
	NewTotal5: 145
	RetGalSF1: 576565000
	RetGalSF2: 544465100
	RetGalSF3: 632070000
	RetGalSF4: 474999300
	RetGalSF5: 498210400
	RetGalMF1: 156256300
	RetGalMF2: 152667600
	RetGalMF3: 177439100
	RetGalMF4: 189164200
	RetGalMF5: 195550200
	RetGalInd1: 27169100
	RetGalInd2: 18805400
	RetGalInd3: 
	RetGalInd4: 
	RetGalInd5: 
	RetGalCom1: 310363800
	RetGalCom2: 341257520
	RetGalCom3: 427995900
	RetGalCom4: 273898100
	RetGalCom5: 390381570
	RetGalIns1: 76221600
	RetGalIns2: 50684000
	RetGalIns3: 
	RetGalIns4: 
	RetGalIns5: 
	RetGalAg1: 
	RetGalAg2: 
	RetGalAg3: 
	RetGalAg4: 
	RetGalAg5: 
	RetTotal1: 1146575800
	RetTotal2: 1107879620
	RetTotal3: 1237505000
	RetTotal4: 938061600
	RetTotal5: 1084142170
	GPCDSF1: 59
	GPCDSF2: 58
	GPCDSF3: 70
	GPCDSF4: 55
	GPCDSF5: 59
	GPCDMF1: 60
	GPCDMF2: 59
	GPCDMF3: 72
	GPCDMF4: 76
	GPCDMF5: 78
	TRJan: 84172000
	TRJan2: 82375500
	TRJan3: 81535300
	TRJan4: 71470700
	TRJan5: 73495000
	TRFeb: 77001400
	TRFeb2: 77621600
	TRFeb3: 73854200
	TRFeb4: 73399600
	TRFeb5: 81899400
	TRMar: 74346800
	TRMar2: 76186500
	TRMar3: 86145500
	TRMar4: 71716200
	TRMar5: 76724900
	TRApr: 84657700
	TRApr2: 81235800
	TRApr3: 85798400
	TRApr4: 76422800
	TRApr5: 76820400
	TRMay: 89478800
	TRMay2: 84944500
	TRMay3: 98600600
	TRMay4: 94350800
	TRMay5: 81888200
	TRJun: 87375000
	TRJun2: 95294200
	TRJun3: 108816300
	TRJun4: 95852700
	TRJun5: 92410900
	TRJul: 103639700
	TRJul2: 99874000
	TRJul3: 122869800
	TRJul4: 95207100
	TRJul5: 120938300
	TRAug: 124681800
	TRAug2: 85010700
	TRAug3: 116000300
	TRAug4: 85662700
	TRAug5: 124378700
	TRSep: 125386000
	TRSep2: 102193700
	TRSep3: 133120400
	TRSep4: 100689600
	TRSep5: 114044700
	TROct: 106847800
	TROct2: 100426400
	TROct3: 135145100
	TROct4: 89545700
	TROct5: 89567300
	TRNov: 89047600
	TRNov2: 93492000
	TRNov3: 105836600
	TRNov4: 92169800
	TRNov5: 74435100
	TRDec: 80875500
	TRDec2: 81672700
	TRDec3: 90931700
	TRDec4: 88696900
	TRDec5: 76083000
	YearTOTAL_16: 1127510100
	YearTOTAL_17: 1060327600
	YearTOTAL_18: 1238654200
	YearTOTAL_19: 1035184600
	YearTOTAL_20: 1082685900
	RWJan: 
	RWJan2: 
	RWJan3: 
	RWJan4: 
	RWJan5: 
	RWFeb: 
	RWFeb2: 
	RWFeb3: 
	RWFeb4: 
	RWFeb5: 
	RWMar: 
	RWMar2: 
	RWMar3: 
	RWMar4: 
	RWMar5: 
	RWApr: 
	RWApr2: 
	RWApr3: 
	RWApr4: 
	RWApr5: 
	RWMay: 
	RWMay2: 
	RWMay3: 
	RWMay4: 
	RWMay5: 
	RWJun: 
	RWJun2: 
	RWJun3: 
	RWJun4: 
	RWJun5: 
	RWJul: 
	RWJul2: 
	RWJul3: 
	RWJul4: 
	RWJul5: 
	RWAug: 
	RWAug2: 
	RWAug3: 
	RWAug4: 
	RWAug5: 
	RWSep: 
	RWSep2: 
	RWSep3: 
	RWSep4: 
	RWSep5: 
	RWOct: 
	RWOct2: 
	RWOct3: 
	RWOct4: 
	RWOct5: 
	RWNov: 
	RWNov2: 
	RWNov3: 
	RWNov4: 
	RWNov5: 
	RWDec: 
	RWDec2: 
	RWDec3: 
	RWDec4: 
	RWDec5: 
	YearTOTAL_21: 0
	YearTOTAL_22: 0
	YearTOTAL_23: 0
	YearTOTAL_24: 0
	YearTOTAL_25: 0
	SummerY2: 280178900
	SummerY1: 315696500
	SummerY3: 347686400
	SummerY4: 276722500
	SummerY5: 337727900
	TotalRetailUseY2: 1060327600
	TotalRetailUseY3: 1238654200
	5yrAverageSummer: 311602440
	5yrAverageTotalRetail: 1108872480
	TotalRetailUseY4: 1035184600
	TotalRetailUseY1: 1127510100
	TotalRetailUseY5: 1082685900
	WLGalY1: 214619900
	WLGPCDY1: 17
	WLPerGalY1: 0.15990991930736964
	WLGalY2: 238790400
	WLGPCDY2: 20
	WLPerGalY2: 0.1838096308418481
	WLGalY3: 287305800
	WLGPCDY3: 25
	WLPerGalY3: 0.18827872290230413
	WLGalY4: 227203400
	WLGPCDY4: 20
	WLPerGalY4: 0.17997905556770186
	WLGalY5: 278129100
	WLGPCDY5: 25
	WLPerGalY5: 0.20438421093241918
	WLTotalGal: 249209720
	WLGPCDTotal: 21.4
	WLPerTotal: 0.183272
	AveUseY1: 3671842
	PeakUseY1: 5833000
	RatioY1: 1.5885759790317775
	AveUseY2: 3538759
	PeakUseY2: 6461000
	RatioY2: 1.825781297906978
	AveUseY3: 4176360
	PeakUseY3: 6799000
	RatioY3: 1.627972684347135
	AveUseY4: 3454470
	PeakUseY4: 7144000
	RatioY4: 2.068045170460302
	AveUseY5: 3725343
	PeakUseY5: 6273000
	RatioY5: 1.6838717938187169
	HistoricResSF: 545261960
	PerSF: 0.6454033771106942
	SummaryWUResSF: 
	HistoricResMF: 174215480
	PerMF: 0.26540626353009095
	SummaryWUResMF: 
	HistoricInd: 9194900
	PerInd: 0.0007216048491845865
	SummaryWUInd: 
	HistoricCom: 348779378
	PerCom: 0.07345937364699091
	SummaryWUCom: 
	HistoricIns: 25381120
	PerIns: 0.0150093808630394
	SummaryWUIns: 
	HistoricAg: 0
	PerAg: 0
	SummaryWUAg: 
	Provide additional comments about system data below: 
	DesignCapacity: 6550000
	WWMMuni: 12622
	WWUMMuni: 
	WWConMuni: 12622
	WWPerMuni: 0.927065736320235
	WWMInd: 10
	WWUMInd: 
	WWConInd: 10
	WWPerInd: 0.0007344840249724568
	WWMCom: 775
	WWUMCom: 
	WWConCom: 775
	WWPerCom: 0.056922511935365405
	WWMIns: 208
	WWUMIns: 
	WWConIns: 208
	WWPerIns: 0.015277267719427102
	WWMAg: 0
	WWUMAg: 
	WWConAg: 0
	WWPerAg: 0
	WWMTotal: 13615
	WWUMTotal: 0
	WWConTotal: 13615
	ServicedWW: 85
	TWJan: 73658000
	TWJan2: 84928000
	TWJan3: 75794000
	TWJan4: 93673000
	TWJan5: 70397000
	TWFeb: 63375000
	TWFeb2: 93329000
	TWFeb3: 65628000
	TWFeb4: 91285000
	TWFeb5: 65654000
	TWMar: 68729000
	TWMar2: 83863000
	TWMar3: 71496000
	TWMar4: 83145000
	TWMar5: 78542000
	TWApr: 79783000
	TWApr2: 67863000
	TWApr3: 67688000
	TWApr4: 76259000
	TWApr5: 89575000
	TWMay: 79338000
	TWMay2: 82689000
	TWMay3: 73454000
	TWMay4: 98746000
	TWMay5: 73313000
	TWJun: 70311000
	TWJun2: 75480000
	TWJun3: 72884000
	TWJun4: 87013000
	TWJun5: 68077000
	TWJul: 68921000
	TWJul2: 93880000
	TWJul3: 75505000
	TWJul4: 119452000
	TWJul5: 76342000
	TWAug: 68641000
	TWAug2: 71099000
	TWAug3: 75475000
	TWAug4: 88573000
	TWAug5: 75656000
	TWSep: 73499000
	TWSep2: 75328000
	TWSep3: 75460000
	TWSep4: 94005000
	TWSep5: 79344000
	TWOct: 76315000
	TWOct2: 72871000
	TWOct3: 68927000
	TWOct4: 63539000
	TWOct5: 104730000
	TWNov: 70940000
	TWNov2: 63139000
	TWNov3: 62943000
	TWNov4: 64129000
	TWNov5: 80340000
	TWDec: 63710000
	TWDec2: 66253000
	TWDec3: 71460000
	TWDec4: 72800000
	TWDec5: 115558000
	TWTotal1: 857220000
	TWTotal2: 930722000
	TWTotal3: 856714000
	TWTotal4: 1032619000
	TWTotal5: 977528000
	Group3: PotY
	RUIrrigation: 
	RUPlant: 53294315
	RUChlor: 30228168
	RUIndustrial: 
	RUGolf: 16149460
	RUAgriculture: 
	RUDischarge: 0
	RUOthertext: 
	RUEvaporation: 
	RUOther: 
	RUTotal: 99671943
	Provide additional comments about wastewater system data below: 


